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Casa Franchising, LLC is offering franchises for the operation under the Casa de Corazon® service mark
of a Spanish immersion intercultural early childhood learning center that provides educational programs
to children between six weeks and five years of age.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Casa de Corazon franchise with up to 140 students
ranges from $767:860916,300 to $4;658:1004,268,100 including the cost of real estate and
improvements. This includes $95:56699,600 to $+62,266108.800 that must be paid to the franchisor or
its affiliate. (If you sign a Development Agreement to develop 2 or more Casa de Corazon centers, you
will pay us a Development Fee equal to the number of centers you agree to develop multiplied by
$10,000).

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully.
You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement
with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise
sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this
document.

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for you.
To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact our Franchise Development and
Support Specialist at 6301 Wayzata Blvd, St. Louis Park, MN 55416, telephone (612) 790-9673.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the Disclosure
Document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract
and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can help you
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other
sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try to
obtain this information from others, like current
and former franchisees. You can find their names
and contact information in Item 20 or Exhibit D.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. [tem
7 lists the initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit E includes financial
statements. Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
Casa de Corazon center in my
area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the
franchisor and other franchisees can compete with
you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or
its management have been involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Casa de
Corazon franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibit D list current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about
their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in
this disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other
fees even if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to
change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may
require you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your
franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a
limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive
than similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions.
Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what
you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory,
the franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to
continue to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your
landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the
agency information in Exhibit B.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda (if
any).

See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risk(s) to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The Franchise Agreement and
Development Agreement require you to resolve disputes with the franchisor
by mediation at a location chosen by the mediator and litigation only in
Minnesota. Out-of-state mediation and litigation may force you to accept a
less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate at a
location chosen by the mediator, and litigate with the franchisor in
Minnesota than in your own state.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State
Specific Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be
highlighted.
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ITEM 1
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES
To simplify the language in this Franchise Disclosure Document “Casa de Corazon,” “we,” “us,” “our”
or the “Franchisor”, means Casa Franchising, LLC. “You”, your” or the “Franchisee” means the
person, corporation, partnership or other business entity that buys the franchise. If you are a corporation,
partnership or other entity, these terms also include your owners who must sign a personal guaranty
agreeing to comply with all provisions of the Franchise Agreement.

The Franchisor

We are a Minnesota limited liability company formed on June 20, 2016. Our principal business address
is 6301 Wayzata Blvd, St. Louis Park, MN 55416. We do business only under our company name, “Casa
de Corazon” and “Casa Franchising”. In the summer of 2016, we began offering franchises for the
operation of Casa de Corazon Spanish immersion intercultural early childhood learning centers that
provide educational programs to children between six weeks and five years of age. Although our affiliate
has operated similar centers, we have never operated a business of the type being franchised. We do not
conduct business in any other line of business, nor do we offer franchises in any other line of business.

Our agents for service of process are disclosed on Exhibit B.
The Business

We offer franchises for the establishment, development and operation of Spanish immersion intercultural
early childhood learning centers that provide educational programs to children between six weeks and
five years of age. These centers are operated under the Casa de Corazon® service mark and logo and
other trademarks, trade names, service marks and commercial symbols we may authorize (the “Marks”).
These centers are referred to in this Disclosure Document as a “Center”.

You will operate your Center using our unique operating system, which includes the curriculum we
specify, our proprietary supplemental curriculum, food recipes, and other know-how, information, trade
secrets and confidential information, as well as our standards, designs, methods of trademark and service
mark usage, and research and development (“System”). We may change or otherwise modify the System
at any time as we see fit. Each Center will follow our “environmentalism” approach, meaning that all
meals will be made on-site using natural whole foods that are organic and locally sourced when possible
and you must perform recycling and composting that meets our standards. Certain ingredients and food
items must be organic, hormone-free, or meet our other specifications. The curriculum is intended to
prepare students for kindergarten, assist students with the stages of learning development, and cover the
core components of early childhood education as determined by the National Association for the
Education of Young Children (“NAEYC”). Your Center must be large enough and have the facilities to
accommodate at least 122 students (30 infants, 32 toddlers and 60 preschoolers).

You must sign our standard franchise agreement if we grant you a Casa de Corazon franchise
(“Franchise Agreement”). Your Center may only provide the services and products we authorize and
may only use the curriculum we specify. You must always use the recipes we provide you for meals and
other food you provide to your students. You must also follow all our other policies and procedures
when performing services including using the products we specify. We can add to, modify, or delete any
services or products that you must offer or sell at any time as we determine, and change and modify our
policies.

If we approve you to become a Casa de Corazon developer, and you commit to develop and open at least
2 Casa de Corazon centers, you will sign our Development Agreement in the form attached to this



Disclosure Document as Exhibit G (the “Development Agreement”) along with our then-current form of
Franchise Agreement for the initial Casa de Corazon center you must develop and open under the
Development Agreement. You must sign our then-current form of Franchise Agreement you seek to
open under the Development Agreement. This form will differ from the form of Franchise Agreement
attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit F.

Although you do not need to be an owner-operator, you must be involved in the day-to-day operation of
the Center and you must be the license holder as required by applicable state law. If you are an entity,
your majority owner must be involved in the day-to-day operation of the Center and this individual or the
entity may be the license holder, as permitted by applicable state law. If you are not going to be
overseeing the Center on a full-time basis you must retain an Operations Manager to oversee the Center’s
Operations. Although no prior experience in operating a child care center is needed, we are looking for
franchisees who have some management experience and a college degree. The Operations Manager and
the Director of the Center must also have management experience, be Spanish/English bilingual and have
a college degree. The Director of the Center will also need to be involved in the day-to-day operation of
the Center.

Predecessors and Affiliates

Our owner has been involved in the child care industry since 2002 when she founded a home-based
center. In 2006 she, along with a partner, opened their first bilingual non-home-based center in
Minneapolis. Four additional centers were opened between 2010 and 2014 in South Minneapolis, Edina,

Eden Prairie, and Maple Grove, Minnesota. AH-efthese-centers—were-operated-underthenameJardin
Magico-and-were-owned-byJardin-Magieotne—In 2015, our owner became the sole owner of Jardin
Magieotne—whichretained-ownership-ofour affiliate Casa de Corazon, Inc. (“Casa”) and the South
Minneapolis, Edina and Maple Grove-eenters—At-that-time,JardinMagico-changed-itsname-to-Casa-de
Corazon—tne—(~“Casa’)—these—three centers were rebranded as Casa de Corazon centers, an all-new

curriculum was instituted, and each center focused on the environmentalism approach. Casa also opened
a fourth center in Rochester, Minnesota in early February 2023 and acquired a center in Edina,
Minnesota in May 2023. Casa is the owner of the Casa de Corazon service mark and various other
trademarks, trade names and intellectual property you will use in your Center, including the supplemental
curriculum and recipes. As such, Casa would be considered a predecessor of ours. Casa has the same
principal address as we do. It has never offered franchises in any line of business. Casa would also be
considered an affiliate of ours, as it will sell items to our franchisees. We have no parent companies. We
have no other predecessors or affiliates exeeptasrequired to be disclosed in this Item 1.

Market and Competition

The target market for your services is any person in need of child care services with children between the
ages of 6 menthsweeks and 5 years. We have found that most of Casa’s clients are made up of dual
income upper to middle class families who are predominately English speakers and usually have 1-2
children. We suggest you focus your marketing efforts on these potential clients.

The market for your services is highly developed and very competitive. You will be competing for
clients with larger national child care centers, local day care providers and nannies offering their services
directly to families with children.

Industry Specific Regulations
Your Center and its employees are highly regulated. You, or if you are an entity, your majority owner or

the entity, must be the Center’s license holder as required by the Department of Human Services or other
licensing entity in your state. Each state has laws specific to the childcare industry and education. You
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must comply with these laws. Each state will make the final determination of a Center’s student
enrollment capacity. You must also comply with all zoning laws and regulations that apply to your
Center as well as those that apply to commercial kitchens since you will be making meals on-site. There
may be certain state bonding requirements that apply to your Center. All of your staff, including any
Operations Manager, must undergo and pass background checks and your Directors must meet certain
requirements imposed by state and federal law. You must also comply with all laws regarding the
protection of children and all transportation laws in connection with the transportation of your students.

Your Center must also comply with all applicable state and federal requirements as they relate to child
care centers including minimum number of educational materials per student and minimum amount of
food each child must receive each day.

In addition to the specific laws discussed above, your Center will be subject to national, state and local
regulations that apply to all businesses, such as the Americans With Disabilities Act, wage and hour laws,
occupational health and safety, equal employment opportunity, taxes, business licensing requirements and
those laws that allow the government to restrict travel and/or require some businesses to temporarily close
during state or national emergencies.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer and Director — Natalie Standridge

Ms. Standridge has been our Chief Executive Officer and our sole Director since our incorporation in
June 2016. Ms. Standridge has been the Chief Executive Officer of our predecessor, Casa de Corazon,
Inc., located in Minneapolis, Minnesota since October 2002. Casa de Corazon, Inc. owns the existing
affiliate-owned Casa de Corazon centers.

Franchise Development and Support Specialist — Kelly Undlin

Ms. Undlin has worked with us and our affiliate in various capacities since August 2017. Since January
2021 she has served as the Franchise Development and Support Specialist for us and our affiliate. From
August 2017 to September 2019 she was the Center Director at our affiliate’s Edina location.

President-and-Marketing Manager — Mallory French

Ms. French has served as our President and the President of our affiliate since October 2022-and. She
served as our Marketing Manager and the Marketing Manager of our affiliate sineefrom September 2019
to August 2024. From January 2015 to September 2019 she served as the Marketing Manager for
Hemisphere Companies, a private equity firm located in Minneapolis, Minnesota.

Senior Accountant — Jose Julio Milla Martorell

Mr. Milla Martorell has been the Senior Accountant for us and our affiliate since January 2024. From
April 2017 to December 2023 he served as Collections Manager, Collections Lead and Collections
Specialist for Ascension Point Recovery Services, located in St. Louis Park, Minnesota. Since February
2023 he has also served as the assistant to the Chief Financial officer for Cocina Nova LLC located in
Hopkins, Minnesota.

Director of Marketing — Daniel Laux

Mr. Laux has been the Director of Marketing for us and our affiliate since August 2024. From August
2022 to August 2024 he worked at Kula Creative LLC, a marketing services firm that he co-founded




located in Waukesha, Wisconsin. From July 2019 to October 2022 he served as the Executive Director
of Communications for Life Center Milwaukee, a non-profit organization based in Milwaukee,
Wisconsin.

ITEM 3
LITIGATION

Except as disclosed below, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

; : L .

Nicholas Kamp, et al v. Natalie Standridge, Casa Franchising, LLC et al (4™ Judicial District (Hennepin
County)). This dispute arises out of the relationship of Mr. Kamp and Ms. Standridge, the owner of Casa
Franchising, LLC. On April 24, 2023 Mr. Kamp and his related entities including Child Care Core
Consulting, LLC, a former Casa de Corazon franchisee, and Ms. Standridge and her related entities,
including us, entered into a Confidential Settlement Agreement & Release (the “Settlement Agreement”)
resulting in, among other things, the purchase by our affiliate of the assets of the former Casa de Corazon
child care center operated by Kamp and his affiliates and Kamp’s affiliates ownership interest in the
landlord of the center, and a full and final release by each party of all claims.

On November 27, 2025, Mr. Kamp began a new lawsuit alleging various matters in an attempt to nullify
the Settlement Agreement. Mr. Kamp has alleged that Ms. Standridge’s police report resulting in a

Statement of Probable Cause of the Amended Complaint filed March 7, 2023 in the matter of State of
Minnesota v. Nicholas Gary Kamp, 27-CR-23-4734 was false and that Mr. Kamp signed the Settlement

Agreement under duress in light of the report and ongoing criminal investigation and prosecution of Mr.
Kamp. He has asserted that the Settlement Agreement is void and unenforceable and otherwise should

be rescinded, that Ms. Standridge defamed him by filing a false police report, abused the legal process,
engaged in malicious prosecution, caused intentional infliction of emotional distress, tortiously interfered
with the contracts and prospective economic advantage of Mr. Kamp and his affiliates, violated the
Minnesota Franchise Act and that he allegedly owns an interest in us, along with promissory estoppel and
unjust enrichment. Mr. Kamp has also alleged damages in excess of $50,000. Ms. Standridge and her
affiliated entities, including us and our affiliate, vehemently deny all of the allegations. A Motion to
Dismiss, Motion for Sanctions and Motion for Leave to File Confidentially was heard on February 7,
2025

ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5
INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee

Our initial franchise fee (“Initial Franchise Fee”) for a Center is $70,000, payable when you sign the
Franchise Agreement. The Initial Franchise Fee is due when you sign the Franchise Agreement, is fully
carned by us at that time and is nonrefundable.

Casa-de-Corazon®2024



We will reduce the Initial Franchise Fee in the following situations. First, if you are purchasing your
second or subsequent Center we will reduce the Initial Franchise Fee by 50% of the then-current initial
franchise fee you would otherwise pay for that Center. We also provide a 20% discount off the Initial
Franchise Fee if you qualify for our Veterans Program. To qualify for this program, you must be a
current member of the United States military, or a veteran who received an honorable discharge from a
branch of the United States military. You may only use one of these discounts at a time. We can modify
or terminate these discounts at any time. These discounts apply to the Initial Franchise Fee for Centers
opened under the Development Agreement.

Development Fee

When you sign a Development Agreement, you must pay us a Development Fee of $10,000 multiplied by
the number of Casa de Corazon Centers to be developed under your Development Agreement, with a
minimum of at least 2 Casa de Corazon Centers. We will then apply this fee on a pro rata basis toward
payment of a portion of the Initial Franchise Fee for each Casa de Corazon Center you open under the
Development Agreement (but this portion of your Initial Franchise Fee is not subject to refund under any
circumstances). The Development Fee is payable in full when you sign the Development Agreement and
it is nonrefundable. These amounts are in addition to the payment of the Initial Franchise Fee.

Casa Branded Items

You must also buy from our affiliate branded Casa de Corazon items to begin operations, including staff
uniforms and printed tour packet materials. The package you must buy before opening ranges from
$3,9004,500 to $7%2607,800 depending upon the quantity and type of items in the package you purchase.

You must also purchase from our affiliate the Casa de Corazon Internal Brand Package which includes
internal signage, a food board, and other brand identifying materials. The cost for this package ranges
from $+66014,500 to $+4506620,000 depending upon the number of classrooms in the Center. You
must pay for all of these items upon receipt of an invoice. None of these amounts are refundable.

Introductory Supplemental Curriculum

You must also purchase from our affiliate introductory supplemental curriculum for use in your Center’s
pre-school classrooms. The cost for this curriculum ranges depending upon the number of pre-school
classrooms you will have in your Center. A typical Center will have 3-5 pre-school classrooms
depending upon its size. The cost for the introductory supplemental curriculum for 3 pre-school
classrooms is $600 and $1,000 for 5 classrooms. You must pay this amount upon receipt of an invoice.
This amount is not refundable.

Grand Opening Advertising

You must spend at least $10,000 on grand opening advertising before the opening of your Center. If you
fail to spend this amount you must pay us the difference and we will put it in the Brand Fund.

ITEM 6
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee Amount (Note 1) Due Date Remarks
Royalty Fee 7% of monthly Gross Payable on the tenth day |Gross Revenue includes all revenue
Revenue. of each month for the generated by your Center.
prior month. (See Note 2)
Brand Fund 2% of your monthly Gross  [Payable on the tenth day
Contribution Revenue. of each month for the
5




Type of Fee Amount (Note 1) Due Date Remarks

prior month.

Technology Fee Currently, $560705 per |Payable on the tenth day |[(See Note 3)
month. of each month for the

prior month.
New Currently, up to $5,000 Payable before we Each new Director or Operations
Director/Manager depending upon length. provide the training. Manager must successfully complete
Training this training. Covers up to 5

individuals attending this training.

Curriculum and e Payable before-we Mocholsuetonehen s vaderes
Assessment Training  |ptasNo charge for this provide-the-tratnieon eurrtethum-and-assesstent

initial training as long as it is

demand. Normally at

The initial training must be

performed within 1 year of

time we book travel and

completed within 1-year of beginning

Center opening, but you

lodging.

must reimburse us for the
travel and living expenses of
our trairers—trainer, up to
$2.000.

After the initial training-s
not-held-at, $150 per hour
plus travel and living

expenses of our
offieestrainer.

slosaprenebine o opleone b
e if | I $
this-tratningthe opening of your

Center.

Additional Curriculum and
Assessment Training is charged at
$150 per hour, plus travel and living
expenses of our trainer.

This training is typically 8-6-8
hours in length.

perational Training |Currently, $150 per hour Payable before we If you de—momectommrnndnedsd
ee plus travel and living provide the training. we-requirerequest additional

expenses of our trainers if
the training is not held at our
offices.

training, the accountant providing you
accounting services changes-er, we
require additional training to attempt
to maintain competitiveness in the
industry; or because you request

additionaldo not meet our
standards, this training that-we-agree
to-providewill occur.
Convention Fee Currenth;-$195-Up to 120 days before the If we hold a convention you must pay
See Note 4) $1,000 depending upon convention. this fee, regardless of whether you
location. attend the convention.
Grand Opening You must spend at least Upon demand. If you fail to spend at least $10,000 to
Advertising $10,000 to market the grand market the grand opening of your
opening of your Center. Center on marketing we approve, you
must pay us the difference and we
will put that amount into the Brand
Fund.
Annual Local You must spend at least Upon demand. If you fail to spend at least $10,000
Advertising $10,000 annually to market per year on local advertising, we
Expenditure your Center. approve you must pay us the
difference and we will put that
amount into the Brand Fund.
Advertising No more than the Brand Monthly. This fee would only be paid te-the
Cooperative Fund Contribution, which is Cooperativeonce we establish a
6
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Type of Fee Amount (Note 1) Due Date Remarks
| currently 2% of Gross cooperative in your market area.
Revenue.
Renewal Fee $7,500 At least 30 days before | You only pay this fee if you want to

the term of your
Franchise Agreement
expires.

renew your franchise.

Transfer Fee

Amount equal to then
current initial franchise fee.
If not selling franchises at
time of transfer, fee will be
amount of franchise fee paid
by franchisee for initial
franchise.

Before you transfer the
franchise.

You only pay this fee if you sell your
franchise or an interest in it, subject
to state law.

Audit Cost of audit, including the |Upon demand. Payable only if audit shows an
charges of any independent under-statement of at least 2% of
accountant and the travel Gross Revenue for any month.
expenses, room and board,
and compensation of persons
we employ to make the
audit.

Indemnification Will vary under As incurred. You must reimburse us if we are sued
circumstances. or held liable for claims arising from

your business.

Cost of Enforcement

All costs including

Immediately after notice

You only pay this amount if we are

or Defense accounting and attorneys’ from us. successful in any legal action we
fees. Amount will vary bring against you, or in defending any
under the circumstances. claim you bring against us.

Interest Lesser of 1.5% per month or [As incurred. Payable on all overdue amounts.
highest rate of interest
allowed by applicable law.

Website Modification |$500 per modification. Upon demand. You only pay this fee if you ask us to

Fee modify your web page more than one

time per month.

IIroduct Purchases Varies from $6-4+5 to Upon receipt of an You pay these amounts to our
$425470 per item invoice. affiliate for items you purchase.
depending on item and
quantity purchased

Financial Reporting $50 per failure. Upon demand. If you fail to provide us with the

Failure Fee financial information we request in

the time we require.

Taxes on Amounts Will vary under As incurred. If your state, or any governmental

Paid to Us and Our circumstances. body in your state, charges a tax on

Affiliates any fee you owe to us or to our

affiliates, then you are required to pay
an additional amount equal to the
amount of this tax. This does not
apply to any federal or Minnesota
income taxes we or our affiliates have
to pay.

Insurance Cost of premiums. Upon demand. If you fail to maintain, or fail to

7
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Type of Fee

Amount (Note 1)

Due Date

Remarks

Reimbursement

provide satisfactory evidence of
maintaining, any insurance coverage
we require, we may obtain the
insurance coverage on your behalf
and you must reimburse us.

De-Identification
Costs

Will vary under
circumstances.

Upon demand.

After expiration or termination of
your franchise, if you fail to remove
from the premises all signage that
includes our name and marks, we may
remove and destroy the signage at
your cost.

Management Fee

5% of Gross Revenues, plus
reimbursement of our

Upon demand

Only payable if we notify you of our
intent to exercise our purchase option

out-of-pocket expenses. under the Franchise Agreement.

All fees and other amounts in the chart above are paid to us or our affiliate as disclosed above and are
non-refundable. All fees are uniform for all new franchisees. These fees apply to each Franchise
Agreement and Development Agreement that you sign. You must pay fees and other amounts due to
us or our affiliates via electronic funds transfer/direct debit or other similar means. You must comply
with our procedures and perform all acts and deliver and sign all documents, including authorization
(in the form attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit H or other form that we may require)
forso that we may make direct debits from your business bank operating account to pay amounts owed
to us. Under this procedure you authorize us to initiate debit entries and/or credit correction entries to
a designated checking or savings account for payments of fees and other amounts payable to us and
any interest that may be owing. You will make the funds available to us for withdrawal by eleetrenie
transferno later than the payment due date. If the payment due date is not a business day, the date for
payment shall be the next immediate business day. If you have not timely reported the Gross Revenue
to us for any reporting period, or you withhold our access to accounting or financial systems or data
we use to determine Gross Revenue, we can, at our option, debit your account for: (a) 110% of the
fees transferred from your account for the last reporting period for which a report of the Gross
Revenue was provided to us; (b) the amount due based on information we have regarding your
business activities; or (¢) 110% of the fees transferred from your account for the same period in the
prior year. This is in addition to any other rights we may under the Franchise Agreement. You must

certify to us your Gross Revenue in the prior month by the 5" of the immediately followmg month

Other—thanlncreases. Without your consent, we will not, during the term of your Franchise
Agreement, modify the Royalty Fee, Brand Fund Contribution, Grand Opening Advertising,
Annual-Loeal-Advertising,—Renewal Fee;_or Transfer Fee;and-Website ModificationFee from
the amounts disclosed in the chart above. However, we can modify any other fees or other

amounts we-chargecharged to you up-te-the-ameuntson 30 days’ notice, but any modification of

the Technology Fee, New Director/Manager Training amount, Curriculum and Assessment
Training amount, Convention Fee, Website Modification Fee and Financial Reporting Fee will

be capped at 10% of the then-current fee or other amount, except that we can increase a fee or
other amount in any given year by greater than 10% to adjust for prior years when no increase, or
an increase of less than 10%, was implemented, regardless of whether the fee or other amount
was actually charged or collected. The annual adjustment cap discussed in-the-table-above for
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these-ameunts—for-which-weprovide-aformula-er-otherwisedoes not limit our or our affiliates’
ability to eeverincrease any additional-expenses-to-usother fee or amount, or to impose new fees
as permitted by the Franchise Agreement.

Gross Revenue.(2)- You must pay us a Royalty Fee on the monthly Gross Revenues of your
Center. Gross Revenues mean the total amount of revenues, income, receipts and other fees
received from all business activities taking place by or through the Center, and all other services
and products, if any, sold under the Marks, or otherwise related to the Center.

Technology Fee. This fee covers our provision to you of certain technology services, such as
use of an online tool to assist you in your Center's operations, at least 3+ email addresses, a
project management platform, cloud storage for certain documents and the Casa App-and-its

Convention Fee. We-may-inerease-thisfee-on30-days—writtennotice-to-your—4-You or your

Director or Operations Manager, if any, must attend any conference we decide to have for
franchisees. This fee will cover the cost of that registration. If you want to send additional
people to the Annual Conference, for each one you will pay an additional registration fee.

For more information as to your initial investment, see Item 7.

ITEM 7
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Type of Expenditure! | Low Amount High Method of | When Due To Whom
Amount Payment Payment is to b¢
Made
Initial Franchise Fee? $70,000 $70,000 Lump sum |Upon signing |Us
the Franchise
Agreement

Minibus? $3,000 $55,000 Lump sum |Before opening |Vendor
Real Estate and $75,000 $3,000,000 |As Incurred |Before opening |Landlord and
Improvements* vendors
] $60,000 $106,00681 |Lump Sum |Before opening |Vendor
Serviees’Design Fees® 20,000
Furniture and Equipment® |$446,666$160 [$226.006$2 |Lump sum |Before opening [Us and Vendors

,000 50,000
Kitchen Equipment $40,000855,0 |$565000%65 |Lump sum |Before opening [Vendors

00 ,000
Playground Equipment  [$140,000 $150,000 Lump sum |Before opening |Us and Vendors
and Safety Surfacing
Initial Supplies’ $44.,000 $55,000 Lump sum |Before opening |Vendors
Initial-Supphes-and $20,000814,5 |$22,0006%$20 |Lump sum |Before opening [VendersUs
Internal Brand Package” |00 ,000
Signage $4,800 $21,600 Lump sum |[Before opening |Vendors
Curriculum?® $23.500836,0 |$37066%50 |Lump Sum |Before opening |Vendor

00 ,000
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Type of Expenditure! | Low Amount High Method of | When Due To Whom
Amount Payment Payment is to be
Made
Travel and Living $1,500 $5,000 As incurred | As incurred Adirlines, hotels,
Expenses While during training |restaurants
Training®’
Grand Opening $10,000 $10,000 As incurred |Before opening |Vendors or us
Advertising®!” of the Center
Ongoing Advertising®!!  [$1,500 $3,000 As incurred |As incurred Vendors or us
Technology Expenses*'? [$12,000 $17,500 As incurred |Before opening |Vendors
Security System*?!? $45,000 $55,000 Before As agreed Vendor
opening
Insurance*'4 $2,500 $5,000 Lump sum |As agreed Vendor
Permits and Licenses*'>  |$4,000 $7,000 Lump sum |As incurred Governmental
Agencies
Legal and Professional $5;000$10,00 [$10;006815 [Lump sum |As incurred Vendors
Fees 0 ,000
Pre-Opening Payroll $7,500 $24,000 Before As incurred Employees
Expenses opening
Miscellaneous $10,000 $20,000 As agreed |As incurred Vendors
Expenses*™!®
Additional Funds ané $100;0008150 |$200,60082 |As incurred |As incurred Vendors and
Werking-Capital-for First {,000 50,000 governmental
3 Months*!” agencies
TOTAL"!® $767:8003916 |S4:058:100
300 $4.268,100

Notes:
(D Estimates. The low estimates in the chart above assume a Center with 7 classrooms and the high

estimates assume a Center with 11 classrooms. None of these payments are refundable.

Initial Fee.

)

See Item 5 for more information on the Initial Franchise Fee.

If you sign a

Development Agreement to open and operate at least two Centers, you will pay us a
Development Fee determined by multiplying $10,000 by the number of Centers that you will be
opening under your Development Agreement. We will credit the Development Fee on a pro rata
basis toward the Initial Franchise Fee for each Center you open and you will pay us the
remainder of the Initial Franchise Fee. There are no other incidental expenses you should incur
as a developer, as the current expenses to open each Center are accounted for in the chart above.
These amounts are in addition to the payment of the Initial Franchise Fee.

3)

Minibus. These estimates are for one minibus that you will use to transport children to various

activities. The low estimate assumes you lease the minibus and the high estimate assumes you
purchase a new minibus. In either case, the vehicle must meet our specifications which include
that the minibus not seat more than 14 passengers, must be equipped with 5 point harness
restraints, have a first aid kit on board, be decaled as we require, and meet all legal requirements
including those of the Department of Transportation. The low estimate assumes a 3-year lease
for the minibus, with $2,000 down. The high estimate assumes you pay for the vehicle in full at
the time of purchase.

Real Estate and Improvements.
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(6)

(7

{4-(a) The low estimate assumes you will lease space for your Center and these assumptions are
based on the cost to lease and build out Centers in the Minneapolis, Minnesota market. The
typical size of a Center is approximately 8,500-10,000 square feet, with 14 parking spaces and an
outdoor playground of approximately 2;6063,000 square feet. Rent costs are generally between
$20 - $32 per square foot in the Minneapolis, Minnesota market, including CAM and taxes, and
will vary in other markets. The low estimate assumes a build to suit lease and includes first and
last month’s rent and a security deposit. If you were to rent the space and fund the renovation
costs yourself, we estimate that your costs would be between $1,600,000 and $2,100,000, based
on the experience of our franchisees.

(b) The high estimate assumes you are purchasing the land on which your Center will be
located. Assuming a 10,000 square foot building the cost for build-out is approximately
$200-$250 per square foot in the Minneapolis, Minnesota market plus $500,000 for land, and
will vary in other markets, and includes at a minimum, concrete floors, demised exterior walls,

HVAC, roof, exterior signage, playground fencing, and utilities stubbed to the premises
sufﬁcrent for a Center Our estimates are based on these assumptions $h<+lew—estim&t%ass+nnes
3 and-3 it—The high
estimate assumes you Would pay for all build out costs. Unless we 0therw1se approve, each
Center roof must be fitted with solar panels that meet our specifications. We have included the
cost for these panels in the high estimate. We encourage you to review this information with your
professional advisors for assistance. If you were to purchase an existing building and fund the
renovation costs yourself, we estimate that your costs would be approximately $2,600,000,

assuming you buy the building at $800,000 and the renovations cost are $18,000,000, based upon
the experience of one of our franchisees.

Design Fees. (5)-These estimates arefor-an-architeetto-ereateinclude architectural, structural,
civil and landscaping services. We have included in architectural and structural services creation
of detailed construction documents-and-to-assist, assistance by the architect or another party in
the construction efprocess to ensure your Center is built in compliance with our mandatory
specifications, and-te—ebtain—any acquisition of required permits, and eenfermconforming the
premises to applicable law, including local ordinances erand building codes. Civil engineering
services include grading, drainage, site plans and stormwater management. The estimates
assume standard tenant improvements within a structure designed for commercial use,—and

HRProvements. The low estimate assumes renovation of an exrsting space and the high estimate
assumes a ground-up design plan.

Furniture and Equipment. These estimates include the purchase of cribs, shelving, changing
tables, books, toys, washer-dryer-area rugs and gym equipment, but excludes kitchen equipment.

Initial Supplies. These estimates are for uniforms, bibs, arts and crafts, child care, office and
janitorial supplies, including a commercial washer and dryer that you will need to open your
Center.

Curriculum. This includes teacher curriculum, including the supplemental curriculum disclosed
in Item 5, and the eostforcosts of child assessments tools for conferences. We have included
140 child assessment tools for each estimate as that number does not vary based upon the

purehasenumber of the-Internal BrandPackageclassrooms in your Center.

8>-Training Expenses. While we do not charge for our Initial Training Program, you must pay
for airfare, meals, transportation costs, salaries, benefits, lodging and incidental expenses for all
attendees. The low estimate assumes both you and your Director attend our Initial Training

11
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Program. The high estimate assumes you, your Director and your Operations Manager attend our
Initial Training Program. This training will be held at our corporate offices in Minnesota or at
another location we specify. Your actual costs will vary depending on the distance to be
traveled, your method of travel, and your personal circumstances. The low estimate assumes 2
people attend training and the high estimate assumes 3 people attend training.

9)>—Grand Opening Advertising. You must spend at least $10,000 on grand opening
advertising before the opening of your Center. If you fail to spend this amount you must pay us
the difference and we will put it in the Brand Fund. This is in addition to any other rights we
may have against you. We recommend advertising on the Internet as well as in print.

+0)9-Ongoing Advertising. You must spend at least $10,000 annually on advertising your
Center, in addition to your grand opening spend requirement. If you fail to spend this amount
you must pay us the difference and we will put it in the Brand Fund. This estimate is for the first
3 months after your center opens. The low estimate assumes $500 per month, the high estimate
assumes $1,000 per month. We recommend that you spend significantly more than we have
estimated.

+H-Technology Expenses. These estimates are for the minimum technology, including
software, you must obtain to open your Center. The low estimates assume 3 personal computers,
1 printer (with color printing, scanning and faxing capabilities), 12 iPads, 8 Bluetooth speaker
docks, a wall-hung computer screen, and speakers. The high estimate includes all of the items
above except 15 iPads and 11 speaker docks plus labor for setting up equipment and firewall.

+2)-Security System. This estimate is for the purchase and installation of a security system in
your Center that meets our requirements. It includes a camera and key card entry system and fire
alarm system.

3)>Insurance. You must carry the types and amounts of insurance we specify. We currently
require you to carry commercial general liability insurance, child accident, vehicle, umbrella,
business personal property, employee dishonesty, workers compensation and employment
practices insurance. This estimate is for the first three months of these insurance coverages.

+4)-Permits and Licenses. These estimates are for a business permit and licenses required by
the state agencies that regulate child care facilities.

+5)—Miscellaneous Expenses. These estimates include gas, electric, telephone, waste,
composting and recycling removal, landscaping and internet charges.

+6)-Additional Funds. This amount includes estimated operating expenses you should expect
to incur during the first 3 months of operation, which includes security and fire alarm system
costs, maintenance and repair costs, landscaping/snow removal costs, vehicle lease costs, food
costs for students, ehild-assessment—eosts;—advertising costs, payroll for your staff (based on
salaries betweenranging from $17 andto $2021 for 15 employees for first 3 months after
opening)-and-costs-of-untforms—for-your-employees. The low estimate also includes real estate
lease costs for two months as the first month is covered above in the Real Estate and
Improvements category. These estimates exclude any revenue generated by your Center and
taxes. The high-estimate-exeludes—theestimates exclude any loan payments you may need to
make in connection with yeurpurehase-of-the real-estatefordevelopment of your Center. We
have relied on the experiences of our affiliate in opening locations in Minnesota and the
experience of our franchisees to compile this estimate.
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H-Total. This is only an estimate of your initial investment and is based on our estimate of
costs and market conditions prevailing as of the date of this Franchise Disclosure Document. It
is possible to significantly exceed costs in any of the areas above. You must bear any deviation
or escalation in costs from the estimates that we have given. You should review these figures
carefully with a business and a legal advisor before making any decision to purchase a franchise.

Many factors that are unique to your market can make a dramatic difference in the estimates
provided. Except as set forth in Item 10, we do not offer financing for any part of the initial
investment. The availability and terms of financing will depend on factors like the availability of
financing generally, your credit worthiness, your relationship with local banks, your business
experience, and any additional collateral you may offer to a lender to secure the loan. Our
estimates do not include any finance charges, interest or debt service obligations.

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The equipment, including playground equipment, supplies, curriculum, furniture, shelving, food, food
stuffs, beverages, meals, books, gifts for Center students and their families, toys, diapers, dishes,
landscaping, design and décor, solar panels, vehicles, signage, computer hardware and software,
technology and security and fire alarm systems, employee uniforms, client surveys, certain client
communication templates, and products you purchase for use or sale at your Center, must meet our
specifications. Those specifications may include minimum standards for type, purity, composition,
delivery, performance, design, appearance, and quality. We will issue the specifications to you before
you begin operating. We may include these specifications in the manual that we provide to you either
hard copy or on-line, or we may issue them separately. While we do not have specifications for local
advertising you create to promote your Center, you must obtain our prior approval to the use of any
advertising materials you prepare, and before establishing or having established any website, application,
online directory, web page, social media and/or social networking site, profile, account, or hashtag
relating to or making reference to us, your Center, or to the System.

Y ou must join and maintain membership in a state quality assessment organization meeting our standards
and obtain a quality assessment approval or rating from that organization that meets our standards.
Additionally, you must apply for accreditation by the NAEYC or another child care education
organization we specify, and obtain accreditation by the organization as specified by us. You must carry
the types and amounts of insurance we specify and your insurers must meet standards we specify. We
currently require you to carry the following policies and minimum amounts of coverages:

Commercial General Liability e $1,000,000 limit per occurrence

e $2,000,000 Aggregate
Business Personal Property e Replacement Cost Coverage

e Co-insurance of not less than 80%
Business Motor Vehicle e $1,000,000 combined single limit of liability per occurrence
Liability e $1,000,000 uninsured/underinsured motorist coverage
Employee Dishonesty and e $250,000 limit per occurrence
Employment Practices
Workers” Compensation and e Policy limits pursuant to applicable state law
Employer’s Liability
Umbrella/Excess Liability e 31,000,000 limit per occurrence

e 31,000,000 aggregate
Child Accident Insurance e §$25,000 limit per occurrence
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You can expect that the items you purchase to meet our specifications will represent over 90% of the
total purchases you will make to begin operations. Once you begin operating, we expect the items you
purchase that meet our specifications will represent between 80% and 90% of your total annual expenses.

We-may require you to purchase certain products, food, food stuffs, beverages, supplies, equipment,

construction management, architecture, build-out and technology consulting services, and services used
or offered by your Center and other items from suppliers we approve, in which case we will provide you
with a list of approved suppliers. These suppliers may pay rebates to us_or our affiliates. There are no
caps or limitations on the amount of rebates we or our affiliates may receive from suppliers as a result of
franchisee purchases. They may also provide us and our affiliates with discounts or credits on purchases
we and our affiliates make from them based on the volume of purchases our franchisees make from them.

In 20232024 we received $42;95414,678 in revenue from franchisees’ purchases and leases of products
and services or +-61.3% of our total revenues of $828:3621,172,795. In 20232024 our affiliate received
$40,35949,356 in revenue from franchisees’ purchases and leases of products and services. This
information was taken from our audited financial statements and our internal financial records and from
our affiliate’s internal financial records.

If you want to purchase items for your Center that differ from our specifications, or from an unapproved
supplier, you must notify us in writing. If we request, you must submit samples and other information we
require for testing or to otherwise determine whether the product, material, or supply and supplier meets
our specifications and quality standards. We do not impose any fee for our consideration.

Although we do not make available the criteria we review when approving unapproved items or
suppliers, we consider various factors including whether the product or service is consistent with our
concept and brand; how the supplier and/or their products or services would enhance our brand; if the
product or service is already available through other sources, would approval of another vendor enhance
competition or dilute our ability to maximize pricing benefits for our franchisees; and is the product of a
commercial quality with a proven record of durability. We will generally notify you and the supplier of
our approval or disapproval within 30-days of our receipt of all the information and samples we request.
If we revoke approval of any supplier or any item offered by a supplier, we will send you written notice
of our revocation of an approved supplier or item.

We only have one approved supplier for reusable food storage bags, eleth-diapers;-child assessment tools,
curriculum, and certain software you will use at your Center. We do not plan on approving any other
suppliers from whom you could purchase these items. If you are located in an area where there is only
one type of supplier we require you to purchase certain items from, you must purchase the items only
from that supplier. For example, a local food cooperative.

Your teachers must obtain their curriculum and assessment training from us or a third party trainer we
approve and we have approved only one training company for this training. We have one supplier who
will provide you with market analysis and site selection services, at no additional charge to you. If you
choose not to use this supplier we must approve the supplier(s) you use for these services and you will
need to pay their fees for these services. If you choose to purchase additional services beyond those our
supplier provides without additional charge, you will need to pay for those services.

Our affiliate is the sole supplier of cloth diapers and all Casa de Corazon branded items, including staff
uniforms, supplemental curriculum materials (introductory and on-going), tour packet folders and inserts,
business cards, the-CasaBex-the Casa Graduation Box, graduation attire, thank you, birthday, and blank
Casa note cards, letterhead and envelopes, child gifts and gift bags, t-shirts, stickers, the Casa de Corazon
branded La Casita children’s book, enestes;—bibs, CDs and desktop applications and all of the items
included in the Internal Brand Package. Our affiliate is also the sole supplier of the Casa App. You must
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use it for the client facing and administrative functionalities we require We will not approve another
supplier for any of these items. We and our affiliates intend to make a profit on any products or services
they or we sell to you.

We do not have any purchasing or distribution cooperatives as of the date of this Disclosure Document.

We may negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers and distributors of approved products for the
benefit of our franchisees. For example, one of our suppliers provides franchisees with a discount on
their purchases and another provides a free month of services. We do not provide material benefits, such
as renewing or granting additional franchises to franchisees, based on their use of designated or approved

suppliers and distributors.

Our officer does not own any interest in any of our suppliers, other than our affiliate.

ITEM 9
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help
you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items
of this Franchise Disclosure Document.

Obligation

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Section in
Development
Agreement

Disclosure Document Item

a. Site selection and acquisition/lease

Sections 3(a),
(b), (d) and (4)

Section 3

Items 7 and 11

b. Pre-opening purchases/leases

Sections 3(d),
(e), (2), (h),
8(d), 10(h) and
13

Section 3

Items 7 and 8

c. Site development and other
pre-opening requirements

Sections 3(e),

(), (), (h), 4,
10(a) and 11(a)

Section 3

Items 7 and 11

d. Initial and ongoing training

Sections 10(a),
(b), (¢), (d) and
11(a)-(d)

Not Applicable

Item 11

e. Opening

Section 11(a)

Section 3

Items 7 and 11

f. Fees

Sections 2(c)(ii),
3(i), 6, 7, 8(a),
(d), 9(a)(i), 9(D),
10(c) and (1),
11(g), 14(a) and
18(c)(ii)(e)

Sections 2(d)
and 2(e)

Items 5, 6 and 7

g. Compliance with standards and
policies/operating manual

Sections 2(a),
(c), 3(b)-(h),
(j)-(m), 8(c)-(D),
10(e), (h),
11(b)-(m), (0),
13(a), (b) and 15

Section 3

Items 8, 11, 15, and 16

h. Trademarks and proprietary
information

Sections 8()(i1),
11(e), 12, 14(d)
and 16

Section 2(e)

Items 13 and 14
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Section in Section in Disclosure Document Item
Obligation Franchise Development
Agreement Agreement
1. Restrictions on products/services Sections 10(h) Not Applicable | Items 5,8, 11, and 16
offered (i) and 13
j. Warranty and customer service Sections 11(d), | Not Applicable | Item 16
requirements (e) and (p)
k. Territorial development and sales | Section 5(¢) Section 2 Item 12
quotas
1. Ongoing product/service purchases | Section 13 Not Applicable | Item 8
m. Maintenance, appearance and Sections 3(d), Not Applicable | Item 6
remodeling requirements (g), (h), G-k),
11(e) and (i)
n. Insurance Section 15 Not Applicable | Item 7
0. Advertising Sections 3(m), Not Applicable | Items 6, 7, and 11
8(c)-(D), 11(e),
13(a) and 16(b)
p- Indemnification Sections 3(i), Not Applicable | Item 6
18(c), 19(b), and
23(c) and (d)
g. Owner’s participation/ Sections 10(a), Not Applicable | Item 15
management/staffing 11(b), (¢), (k)
and (1)
r. Records and reports Section 14(a) Not Applicable | Not Applicable
s. Inspections and audits Sections 14(b) Not Applicable | Not Applicable
and (¢)
t. Transfer Sections Section 4 Item 17
18(b)-(e)
u. Renewal Sections Not Applicable | Item 17
2(b)-(d), 3(k)
v. Post-termination obligations Sections 16, 17, | Sections 6 and 7 | Item 17

18(c)(ii), 19(b)

and 21(c)
w. Non-competition covenants Section 17 Section 6 Items 15 and 17
x. Dispute resolution Sections 22(a), Section 9(d) Item 17

(b) and (e)
y. Other: guaranty of franchise Section 14(e) Guaranty (which | Item 15

obligations'

and Personal

follows the

Guaranty (which | Development
follows the Agreement)
Franchise

Agreement)

Notes:

(D Each-individual-whe-is-an owner of any business entity that is the franchisee (or developer), and
their spouse, if any, must sign a personal guaranteeguaranty of all the obligations of the

franchisee.

This guaranteeguaranty also includes an agreement to be bound by the

contfidentiality—and noncompete—provistons—of-all provisions of the Franchise Agreement (er

Casa-de-Corazon®2024
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. or Development Agreement, as applicable, including any
confidentiality and noncompete provisions of these agreements.

ITEM 10
FINANCING

Exeept-as-diselosed-belows—weWe do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee
your note, lease or obligations. Although we may, we do not currently intend to sell, assign or discount

to a third party the financing discussed below.

Financing Offered

WeOur affiliate may offer to provide select franchisees financing assistance in the acquisition of
their Casa de Corazon franchise and development of their Center. Whether we-prevideit provides this
assistance will depend on various factors including whether and to what extent we-have-set-asidethere are
funds for this purpose, whether the franchisee is in a market which we deem to be a target market, our
strategy for growth, the creditworthiness of the candidate and various other factors. WeQur affiliate may
offer to loan $100,000 to $200,000 for use solely in connection with the development of your Center.
You will need additional funds for the development of your Center.

The interest rate will be the then-current prime rate of interest as published by the Wall Street
Journal, as adjusted annually. (Promissory Note.) Payments will be made in 71 equal installments.
(Promissory Note.) The amount of your loan payments will depend on the amount financed and the
interest rate. You may prepay the loan without penalty. (Promissory Note.) Partial prepayments will not
affect your obligation to pay future scheduled payments at the time and in the amount due until the
Promissory Note is paid in full. (Promissory Note.) You will be required to waive presentment, demand
for payment, notice of dishonor, notice of protest, protest, and all other notices or demands in connection
with the Promissory Note. (Promissory Note.) If you default under any of the financing documents, and
do not cure the default within 30 days after notice, we may terminate your Franchise Agreement.
(Franchise Agreement, Section 21(a)(xv).)

You will be in default under the Promissory Note if you fail to pay amounts owed when due or
you breach any other provisions of the financing documents, the Franchise Agreement, any other loan
you may have, including any SBA loan, or any agreement between you and us, as well as ceasing your
business, the sale of all or substantially all the assets of your business, the appointment of a receiver,
assignment for the benefit of creditors, commencement of any bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, or
failure to dismiss an involuntary petition of bankruptcy. (Promissory Note.) If you default on the
Promissory Note, weour affiliate may, at eurits election, accelerate and require that you pay all accrued
and unpaid amounts outstanding. (Promissory Note.)

You must grant a security interest in all of your assets and those of any subsidiary (“Collateral”)
to secure your obligations under the Promissory Note. (Security Agreement, Section 1.) The security
interest in the Collateral will be junior and subordinate to any SBA loan previously entered into by you.
(Security Agreement, Section 4; Promissory Note.) You must execute, deliver or endorse any documents
or other agreements which we may require to protect or enforce our affiliate’s rights under the Security
Agreement. (Security Agreement, Section 2.) You will be in default under the Security Agreement if you
breach any term of the Security Agreement, or you are in default under the Promissory Note. (Security
Agreement, Section 3.) Upon default, weour affiliate may examine or inspect the Collateral; send
requests to obligors for verification of amount owed to you; require you to assemble and make available
the Collateral; and exercise any other right or remedy available under law. (Security Agreement, Section
3).
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If you or a subsidiary own the real property upon which the Center will be located you must grant
a mortgage in the real property and all improvements to secure your obligations under the loan
documents, including the Promissory Note. (Mortgage, Sections 1-5.) The Mortgage will be junior and
subordinate to any SBA loan previously entered into by you. (Mortgage, Section 6; Promissory Note.)

If you sell, assign, or otherwise transfer the real property without our affiliate’s permission, the
amount owed under the Promissory Note will become due, at our option. (Mortgage, Section 10.)
WeOur affiliate may require you to make monthly deposits for the purpose of paying taxes due on the
real property, which shall be held in escrow, shall not accrue interest, and shall be used for the payment
of taxes levied against the real property. (Mortgage, Section 13.) You will be in default under the
Mortgage if you breach any term of the Mortgage (with 30 days’ to cure a breach after notice from us),
you are in default under the Promissory Note, or you are in breach of preexisting SBA loan. (Mortgage,
Section 27) WeOur affiliate may: accelerate and require that you pay all accrued and unpaid amounts
outstanding under the Promissory Note (including attorneys’ fees); foreclose the Mortgage (including
non-judicial sale or post-sale tenant at sufferance); appoint a receiver for all or part of the real property;
initiate judicial foreclosure; and, upon 10 days’ notice, sell the real property in full or part at public sale);
and you must repay usit for such actions or payments. (Mortgage, Sections 16 and 28.)

You must indemnify usour affiliate from all loss, liability, damages, costs and expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) incurred to defend or uphold the terms of the Mortgage. (Mortgage, Section
30-32.) In connection with the mortgage you will waive your right to jury trial. (Mortgage, Section 34.)
Upon assignment of the Mortgage, all covenants in the Mortgage run with the real property. (Mortgage,
Section 35.)

Your owners must, as a condition of the loan, personally guaranty your obligations to asour
affiliate under the financing documents. Under the Personal Guaranty, the obligations are joint and
several, and the guarantors waive all defenses and notices and agree to pay all costs and expenses,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in collecting or enforcing the financing documents.
(Personal Guaranty, Sections 3-5.)

A copy of the financing documents are attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit J.

ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,
COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.
Before you open your Center, we will:

(1) Provide you a “search area” in which you must locate your Center (Franchise Agreement
— Section 3(a)/Rider), assuming you do not have a site for your Center that we have approved at the time
you sign the Franchise Agreement.

(2) Have our supplier provide you with certain market analysis and site selection services
(Franchise Agreement — Section 10(m)) at no additional charge to you.

(3) Designate your Designated Territory (Franchise Agreement — Sections 5(a)/Rider). If you
are signing a Development Agreement, designate your Development Territory and approve the location
for your Center (Development Agreement — Section 2; Development Agreement — Rider). Under the
Development Agreement, you must commit to develop at least 2 Centers in the Development Territory,
and we will approve or reject each location for a Center that you propose (Development Agreement —
Section 2-3).
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(4) If you are signing a Development Agreement, we will designate your Development
Schedule ( Development Agreement — Section 2; Development Agreement — Rider).

(5) Provide you a sample layout of the interior of a typical Casa de Corazon early childhood
learning center, including a 3D rendering of a typical center, typical preliminary plans and décor
specifications (Franchise Agreement — Section 3(e)).

(6) Review your proposed lease for your Center to confirm that it satisfies the requirements
of the Franchise Agreement (Franchise Agreement — Section 4(b)).

(7) Provide you with a webpage on our or our affiliate’s website to advertise your Center
(Franchise Agreement — Section 8(f)).

(8) Provide for you, your Director if you are not the Director, and your Operations Manager,
if any, at our expense, the Initial Training Program (Franchise Agreement — Section 10(a)).

(9) Provide you with electronic access to our manuals that contain various information
including mandatory and suggested specifications, standards and procedures. We may modify any
manual periodically in our discretion. (Franchise Agreement — Section 10(¢)). As of the issuance date of
this Disclosure Document, the Operations Brand Standards Manual contains 7270 pages. A copy of the
table of contents of the Operations Brand Standards Manual is attached to this Disclosure Document as
Exhibit C.

(10) Provide you with various forms you may use in the operation of your Center, including a
form of enrollment form, parent contract, classroom routines, daily schedules, and a form of parent
handbook (Franchise Agreement — Section 10(i)).

(11) &2>-Provide you with a list of the approved suppliers for certain equipment, supplies and

services for your Center (Franchise Agreement — Section 13(a)).

(12)  &3)-Cause our affiliate to sell to you certain items you will use in the opening of your
Center, including introductory supplemental curriculum materials (Franchise Agreement — Section 10(h)
and 13(a)(iii)).

(#413) Provide you with 1 day of on-site support at your Center, without additional charge,
immediately prior to the opening of your Center for business (Franchise Agreement — Section 10(g)).

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, we will:

(1) Provide you 1 day of on-site support at your Center, without additional charge, during the
14-day period after your Center opens for business (Franchise Agreement — Section 10(g)).

(2) Be available during normal business hours to provide you with telephone support on
operating issues you confront (Franchise Agreement —Section 10(g)).

(3) Provide our New Director/Operations Manager Training Program to any new Director or
Operations Manager you retain at your Center (Franchise Agreement — Section 10(b)).

(4) Provide you with additional training as discussed below (Franchise Agreement — Sections
10(b) and (e), 11(d)).

19



(5) Maintain and administer the Brand Fund (Franchise Agreement — Section 8(b)).

(6) Provide you on a monthly basis supplemental curriculum you will use to teach your
students (Franchise Agreement — Section 10(h)).

(7)  Provide you on a monthly basis a meal preparation guide, including recipes for meals that
you will make for your students and an inventory list of foods for the recipes (Franchise Agreement —
Section 10(h)).

(8) Cause our affiliate to sell to you certain items you will use in the operation of your Center
(Franchise Agreement — Section 13(a)(iii)).

Training

Initial Training Program

You and 2two of your Directors, and your Operations Manager, if you have one, must successfully
complete the Initial Training Program. If you are a Director, then only one Director other than you must
attend and successfully complete the Initial Training Program. The Initial Training Program must be
completed by you and by your Directors and Operations Manager within the 90-day period before the
Center opens. (Franchise Agreement Section — 10(a)). The Initial Training Program will usually be
conducted in Minnesota at a location we specify. This training will be held on an as needed basis as we
sell franchises. There is no charge to you for this training, but you are responsible for all travel and
living expenses you and your attendees incur in attending the training. If you or any other attendee fail
this training we can terminate the Franchise Agreement.

Our Initial Training Program as of the date of this Disclosure Document consists of approximately 10
days of training as follows:

INITIAL TRAINING PROGRAM

Subject Hours of Hours Of Location
Classroom On-The-Job
Training Training

Model, Curriculum, Culture 24 0 Minnesota

Family Relations 8 0 Minnesota
Marketing 8 0 Minnesota
In-Center Director/Operations 0 40 Minnesota
Manager Training

Total Training Time 40 40

The officer in charge of our Initial Training Program is Natalie Standridge. Ms. Standridge, our founder,
has been involved in the early childhood education field since 2002. Each instructor providing this
training will have at least 1 year of experience with us or an affiliate of ours and at least 1 year
experience in the early childhood education field. Our Operations Brand Standards Manual serves as our
primary instructional material during the Initial Training Program. The Initial Training Program along
with the training discussed below are for the purpose of protecting the goodwill related to the Casa de
Corazon franchise system and the Marks and not to control the day-to-day operation of your Center.

Additional Training

New Director/Operations Manager Training
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Any new Director or Operations Manager must attend and successfully complete to our satisfaction our
New Director/Operations Manager Training Program within 90 days after they begin to perform services
on your behalf. This training is held at our offices (3 days) and a center of ours (5 days). The cost of this
training is currently $5,000 depending upon length for up to 5 attendees, but may be adjusted. (Franchise
Agreement — Section 10(b)). You are responsible for travel and living expenses of your attendees.

Curriculum and Assessment Training

Each of your teachers must complete to our satisfaction ewrriewlsmCurriculum and assessment
%FaimagAssessment Trammg W1th1n l-year of begmmng classroom teachlng ¥ea—eﬂl¥pay—th+s—fe%kf—yea

do not assess a separate charge for the Currlculum and Assessment Training we provide for your 1n1t1a1

teachers, but you must reimburse us for travel and lodging expenses of our trainer, up to $2.000. Any

additional Curriculum and Assessment Training we provide is currently charged at $150 per hour, plus
the travel and living expenses of our ainesstrainer if the training is not held at our offices—TFhis-cost

may-be-adjusted. Training is typically 8-hours in length.

Operational Training

You and the accountant who will be providing you with accounting services must complete financial
training within 30 days after opening. We will provide this training on-line. It {astlasts approximately 3
hours. There is no additional cost for this training. (Franchise Agreement — Section 11(d)).

If you do not meet our standards and we require additional training, the accountant providing you
services changes or we require additional training to help maintain competitiveness in the industry, or
you request training that we agree to provide. (Franchise Agreement — Sections 10(d) and 11(d)). Cost
of this training is currently $150 per hour plus the travel and living expenses of our trainers if the training
is not held at our offices. This cost may be adjusted. This training may be a mix of in-person and on-line
training. If we require this training you must complete it to our satisfaction.

You or a representative approved by us must attend any conferences or conventions we hold and pay any
registration fees we require, even if you or your representative fail to attend.

Facility Manager Training

If you request, and we agree, we will provide facility manager training to your facility manager
(Franchise Agreement — Section 10(d)). Cost of this training is currently $150 per hour plus the travel
and living expenses of our trainers if the training is not held at our offices. This cost may be adjusted.
Training is typically 8-hours in length.

Advertising Programs

We have no obligation to conduct advertising or marketing on your behalf.

System Brand Fund

Under the Franchise Agreement, you must contribute 2% of your monthly Gross Revenue to the Casa de
Corazon System Brand Fund. (Franchise Agreement — Section 8(a)). Your contributions to this Fund are
due at the same time you pay your Royalty Fee, based on the amount of Gross Revenue your Center
generated in the previous month. All our franchisees must contribute to this Fund. Centers operated by
us or our affiliates will contribute to this Fund.
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We account for the contributions to this Fund separately from our other revenues, and we do not use
them to pay any of our general operating expenses other than our costs of administering the Fund and fer
ereative—servieesthe costs, including salaries and overhead, of these—individualspersonnel engaged in
administration or operation of the System Brand Fund, including those performing services that benefit,
or are on behalf of, the System Brand Fund, including creative services. The purpose of the Fund is to
develop programs that benefit the Casa de Corazon brand and promote the Marks. This means we may
use monies in the Fund for any purpose that promotes the Casa de Corazon name, including the creation,
production and placement of commercial advertising; to pay for agency costs and commissions; to pay
the costs to create and produce video, audio and written advertisements; to pay for direct mail and other
media advertising, including internet advertising, internet search engine campaigns and the cost to
maintain and update our or our affiliate’s websites, web pages, social media and social networking sites,
profiles and accounts and for the costs of search engine optimization; to pay for salaries, administrative
costs, direct expenses, and overhead we incur in activities related to the operation and administration of
the Fund; local and regional promotions; public relations campaigns including the cost of retaining public
relations firms; market research; and other advertising and marketing activities.

We may create advertising materials in-house or use international, national, regional and local agencies.
Advertising may be placed in local, regional or national media of our choice, including print, direct mail,
electronic and online advertising, video, radio or television. We do not guarantee that advertising
expenditures from the Fund will benefit you or any other franchisee directly, on a pro rata basis, or at all.
It is our responsibility to determine how these monies are spent. We are not required to use monies in
this Fund to benefit any individual market. However, we will not spend any portion of these monies for
advertising principally designed to solicit the sale of franchises, but we may use monies in the Fund to
update and administer our or our affiliate’s website, which may contain information on franchise
opportunities. In our fiscal year ended December 31, 20232024, 45% of expenditures from the Brand
Fund were used for media placement, 52% were used for production of advertising, 6362% were used for
social media and internet marketing, and 2831% for administrative expenses.

Any unused amounts in the Fund in any calendar year will be carried over to the following year. Any
interest the Fund earns will be used for advertising before we use any principal. At your request, we will
make available to you an annual accounting for the Fund that shows how the Fund proceeds were spent
for the previous year, but these statements will not be audited. We may, but have no obligation to, loan
amounts to the Fund and can determine the repayment obligation of the Fund, including interest rate of
the loan and repayment terms, as we see fit. Currently, we would intend any loan to be due on demand,
and until paid in full would accrue compound interest at the prime rate of interest as determined annually.

We do not have an advertising council that advises us on advertising policies.

Local Marketing

You must conduct your own local marketing of your Center. You must spend at least $10,000 to market
the grand opening of your Center on marketing we approve. You must also spend at least $10,000 per
year on local marketing that we approve for your Center, exclusive of the grand opening advertising
spend requirement. If you do not meet any of these minimum advertising requirements, in addition to our
other rights, you must pay us the difference and we will put that amount in the System Brand Fund.
(Franchise Agreement — Section 8(d)).

You must obtain our prior approval of all local marketing you engage in for your Center. Use of the
Marks and other materials identifying our brand must be consistent with our approved standards. You
may not use the Marks or other materials identifying our brand on items to be sold or services to be
provided without our prior written approval. You must also obtain our approval before establishing, or
having established, any website, application, online directory, hashtag, profile or account relating to or
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making reference to us, your Center, or to the System. You are ultimately responsible for ensuring that
your advertising complies with all applicable laws before using it. (Franchise Agreement — Section 11(n)

and 8(1)).

Although we can require you to, we do not currently require Casa de Corazon franchisees to participate
in a local or regional advertising cooperative. If we do, we will define the area of membership of the
cooperative and determine how much you must contribute to the cooperative. Generally, the area of
membership will be the city or market area in which there are at least 2 Centers and the required
contribution will not be more than your Brand Fund Contribution, which is currently 2% of your monthly
Gross Revenue. All franchisees in the area of membership will be required to contribute at the same
amount. If we establish a cooperative in a market serviced by Centers owned by us or an affiliate, these
Centers will not participate in the cooperative. We will administer any cooperatives. The cooperatives
will not operate from governing documents nor will they prepare annual or periodic financial statements.
We can form, change, dissolve or merge these cooperatives.

Site Selection and Opening

Development Agreement

Under the Development Agreement, you will have the right to develop, open, and operate 2 or more
Centers within the Development Territory according to a mandatory Development Schedule and
according to our then-current System standards and other approval requirements. You must to sign our
then-current form of Franchise Agreement for each Center you develop and open under the Development
Agreement (Development Agreement — Section 3), which may contain materially different terms and
conditions than the Franchise Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit F. We will
determine or approve the location of future Centers and any Designated Territories for those Centers
based on our then-current System standards for sites and Designated Territories (Development
Agreement — Section 3).

Franchise Agreement

You must operate your Center from one location we approve in your Designated Territory. If you do not
have a location that we have approved for your Center at the time you sign the Franchise Agreement, we
will assign you a non-exclusive “search area” in which you must locate your Center. (Franchise
Agreement — Section 3(a)). We will also have our supplier provide you with certain market analysis and
site selection services as discussed above, at no additional charge to you. We do not provide you with
any site selection assistance, except as discussed above. Although we provide you with prototypical
plans and specification for a typical center including a 3D rendering of a center, we do not conform the
premises to local ordinances and building codes or obtain any required permits for you, and we do not
construct, remodel or decorate the premises.

You must submit to us information and materials we require and obtain our approval of the site for your
Center within 120 days after the date you sign your Franchise Agreement. If weyou have not
approvedobtained our approval of a site within this time period we can terminate your Franchise
Agreement and retain any fees you have paid. (Franchise Agreement — Section 3(a)). We take various
factors into consideration when reviewing a site, such as whether the site is located in a metropolitan
area, the location and proximity of the site to a residential neighborhood and to parks, whether the site is
on a main thoroughfare, size of the proposed premises, parking availability, and whether the site is a one
level building. The site must generally be at least 8,500 square feet with a-2;000—3,000-square-footan
outdoor playground area_of at least 3,000 square feet. It must also have at least 14 parking spots unless it
has on-street parking in close proximity to the Center. The premises must be capable of accommodating
5 age groups — infant, toddler, Preschool A, Preschool B, and Pre-kindergarten and also have adequate
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space for a laundry room, reception area, office and storage area, a nursing/pumping room with outlet
and sink, a kitchen, an indoor play area and a breakroom for your employees.

Unless we otherwise approve, you must enter into a lease or sublease for the premises of the Franchised
Center and before signing it you must provide us with a copy of your lease or sublease and the Lease
Rider so that we can confirm that they meet the requirements of the Franchise Agreement and then
provide us with a fully signed copy of both documents once signed by you and the landlord. (Franchise
Agreement — Section 4(b)). If you or an affiliate will own the premises from which the Franchised
Center will be operated, each of you must sign a Landlord’s Agreement and a Declaration of
Restrictions, Notice of Options (the “Declaration”) restricting the use of the premises for a period of 2
years after the Franchised Center is no longer operated on the premises. During this time period, the
premises may not be used as a business or other venture that provides child care services to children 5
years of age or younger. (Franchise Agreement — Section 4(c)). The form of Landlord’s Agreement and
form of Declaration are attached as an exhibit to the Franchise Agreement.

You may not open your Center until: (1) we notify you in writing that all of your pre-opening obligations
have been fulfilled; (2) you and your Director(s) and Operations Manager, if required, have completed
our Initial Training Program to our satisfaction and you certify that you have provided all of your
employees with the training we require; (3) you have furnished us with copies of all insurance policies
and certificates required by the Franchise Agreement, or other documentation of insurance coverage and
payment of premiums we request; (4) you notify us that all approvals and conditions in the Franchise
Agreement have been met; and (5) you have obtained all required permits and licenses, including those
required by the licensing agency having jurisdiction over the Center. If an individual is required to be the
license holder you must be that individual. If you are an entity the license holder may be the entity or
your majority owner, subject to compliance with state law. You must open your Center within 18 months
from the date you sign your Franchise Agreement, but no later than the required opening date provided in
the Development Schedule, if applicable (Development Agreement — Section 3(¢)). If you do not, we can
terminate your Franchise Agreement and retain all amounts you have paid to us.

We estimate that the typical length of time between signing of the Franchise Agreement and the opening
of your Center will be between 9 and 18 months. Some factors that may affect this timing are whether
you need to remodel your site, the amount of time it takes you to obtain licensure and your ability to
secure any necessary financing.

We may require you to remodel, modernize or redecorate your Center at any time according to standards
and specifications we determine.

Computer Systems

Computer Hardware

You must purchase and use at a minimum, 3 personal computers with speakers, 1 printer (with color
printing, scanning and faxing capabilities), 12-15 iPads, and 8-11 Bluetooth capable iPad speaker docs.
All of these items must meet our specifications, including those related to model, brand and functionality,
but can be purchased from any vendor. You will use the computers to send invoices, perform accounting
functions, process payroll and tuition payments, complete enrollment forms and immunization reporting,
play training videos, maintain financial information, produce daily reports, and email correspondence
with clients, us and others. The iPads are for use by your students and administrative staff. You must
also purchase the hardware required for a building security system, including camera surveillance, a
speaker system and a fire alarm system meeting our requirements.
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The number of items specified above is based upon a Center with 7-11 classrooms. If the number of
classrooms projected for your Center is greater than this number or actual enrollment of your Center is
greater, you will need to purchase additional computers to be used by your students and teachers.

Computer Software

Each of the iPads discussed above must contain the desktop applications we require, including the Casa
App_and other educational applications. You must maintain on your computer the most current versions
of SmarteareSmartCare, Egnyte, Dropbox, Emerge QuickBooks Online and Intranets and certain
anti-virus software that meets our specifications. Many times these items will come preloaded on a
computer. If they are not preloaded on your computer you will need to purchase them and load them on
your computer. You must also maintain certain music playlists. You must also purchase the software
required for a building security system, including a camera and key card system and fire alarm system
meeting our requirements. You must renew your licenses on a yearly basis.

We estimate the total cost for the computer hardware and software above, excluding the security system,
to be between $12,000 and $17,500, with monthly software costs ranging between $26129 and $+50400
per month. This does not include music licensing costs, which will vary, nor does it include processing
fees. We estimate the cost for the security system, including its software and fire alarm system, to be
between $45,000 and $55,000. Other than the Technology Fee, we do not charge you any additional

amounts to use the Casa App—and—&s—ba&%fw%&%a%ﬁes—%eu—we&dd—HeH%&s%&s—adv%eed

Ongoing Maintenance and Use

We are not obligated to provide you with ongoing maintenance, repairs, upgrades or updates to the
technology discussed above. Although most new computers come with a limited warranty, we are not
aware of any third parties with an obligation to repair, update, upgrade or maintain these items. We
anticipate that you will be required to upgrade or update your hardware, software or other technology,
including the Casa App, during the term of the franchise, and there are no contractual limitations on the
frequency and cost of the obligation.

You must have access to the Internet and maintain an email account that allows us to communicate with
you on a regular basis. We ean-independenthyhave full and unrestricted independent access to all of your
eleetreniecomputer and other technology systems, including all information and-data—andincluded in
them. We can collect and use this eleetrenie-information-and-data in any manner we choose without
compensation to you. There is no contractual limitation on our right to reeeive-eraccess and of these
systems or the information in them, and we may use information in any manner we ebtain—frem—you-
choose. (Franchise Agreement — Section 11 (f)).

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

Development Agreement

When you sign a Development Agreement, you or your affiliates will commit to develop a specified
number of Centers within the “Development Territory” according to the Development Schedule. We
will determine the size and boundaries of your Development Territory before signing the Development
Agreement. The size and boundaries for the Development Territory will vary depending on the number
of Centers that we approve you to develop, demographics and population, geographic area, natural
boundaries and access to streets and highways, neighborhood character, location and number of
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competing centers, site availability, and other factors. There is no minimum Development Territory size
and the exact size of each Development Territory varies based on the applicable factors. You do not
have the right to change your Development Territory. You and we will negotiate the Development
Schedule describing the number of Centers that you must develop to keep your development rights and
the dates by which you must develop them. You and we will complete the Development Schedule in the
Development Agreement before signing it. You will sign our then-current form of Franchise Agreement
for each Center you develop and open under the Development Agreement, which may contain materially
different terms and conditions than the Franchise Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document as
Exhibit F.

For any Center you desire to develop in the Development Territory under your Development Agreement,
you must first locate and obtain our approval for the proposed site. We will approve or reject that
proposed site based on our then-current standards for franchise sites. Upon approval of the location for
the Center, we will complete the Franchise Agreement indicating the address and the Designated
Territory granted to you or your affiliate for that Center, but in no event will the Designated Territory be
outside the Development Territory.

As long as you and your affiliates are in compliance with the Development Schedule and the
Development Agreement and any other agreements between us or our affiliates and you or your affiliates,
then during the term of the Development Agreement, we will not operate or grant a third party the right
to operate a Spanish immersion intercultural early childhood learning center under the Casa de Corazon
mark, that is physically located in your Development Territory. Other than this limitation there are no
other prohibitions on us in your Development Ferritoryterritory. Wewe may exercise all of the rights that
we now reserve in the Franchise Agreement (as described below). Upon termination or expiration of the
Development Agreement, regardless of the reason, we may operate or grant to third parties the right to
operate early childhood centers under the Casa de Corazon mark or under any other trademarks in the
Development Territory, or engage in any other activities within or outside your Development Territory,
despite any rights you previously had, subject only to your or your affiliate’s rights in any Designated
Territory under any Franchise Agreement then in effect.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from
outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

There are no other restrictions on us or our affiliates under the Development Agreement. You may not
develop or operate Centers outside the Development Territory without our written consent. We may
terminate the Development Agreement, but not Franchise Agreements, if you do not satisfy your
development obligations according to the Development Schedule. Except as described above,
continuation of your territorial rights in the Development Territory does not depend on you achieving a
certain sales volume, market penetration, or other contingency. During the term of the Development
Agreement, we may not alter your Development Territory or your territorial rights without your written
consent.

Franchise Agreement

If you do not have a site for your Center when you sign your Franchise Agreement, we will list a general
“search area” in the Rider to your Franchise Agreement. You do not acquire any exclusive rights in this
area. It is only the area in which you will look for a site for your Center. We may grant other people a
franchise for this area as well. Once you identify a site for your Center, and we approve that site, we will
then update the Rider to your Franchise Agreement to identify this location.

At the time we approve a site for your Center, we will also grant you a territory. We refer to this territory
as the “Designated Territory” and we describe it in the Rider to your Franchise Agreement. Your
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Designated Territory will generally encompass an area surrounding your Center that is the lesser of a 3
milesmile area or an area encompassing 10,000 households. However, the exact size and shape will
depend upon various factors including whether your Center is located in a metropolitan area, the size of
your Center, and the number of students you are licensed to care for in your Center. We will allow you
to relocate your site so long as it continues to be in your market, is not within the Designated Territory of
another of our franchisees, and meets our other then-current requirements for a site. If we allow you to
relocate your site, we also may change the Designated Territory to conform to our then-current standards
for the grant of similar territories.

As long as you are in compliance with your Franchise Agreement and any other agreements with us and
any of our affiliates, we will not operate or grant a third party the right to operate under the Casa de
Corazon name an early childhood learning center physically located in your Designated Territory. Other
than this limitation there are no other prohibitions on us in your Designated Territory. For example, we
can operate or allow others to operate similar or identical businesses within the Designated Territory if
such businesses do not operate under our Marks, and to operate similar or identical business outside of
your Designated Territory under any trademarks even if the businesses compete with your Center in your
Designated Territory. We can also operate or allow others to operate businesses inside the Designated
Territory under the Marks so long as the businesses are not competitive with your Center. We can sell
any products we or our affiliates provide to you for use in your Center to any person, whether in or
outside your Designated Territory. We can sell or grant third parties the right to sell goods or services
competitive with those sold by your Center under the Marks or otherwise through other distribution
channels including the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing or other direct marketing, inside and out of
your Designated Territory. We can acquire businesses in the Designated Territory that are similar to
your Center or sell our business whether through a sale of assets or stock to anyone, regardless_of
whether they operate or franchise the operation of businesses similar to your Center. We can also
operate or allow others to operate businesses located inside or outside of your Designated Territory that
sell to locations in or outside of your Designated Territory our proprietary curriculum, our recipes or
both, either under the Marks or otherwise.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other Casa de Corazon
franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive businesses
that we control.

If on the 2-year anniversary of the date you opened your Center the Center does not have actual
enrollment equal to 90% of its actual capacity on a full-time equivalency basis or if annually thereafter
you do not maintain student enrollment at your Center of at least 90% of its actual capacity on a full-time
equivalency basis, in either case determined by the number of students you are licensed to care for, we
can decrease the size of your Designated Territory. If we exercise either of these rights we will provide
you notice of our decision and the results of that decision. Other than these rights, we cannot unilaterally
change your Designated Territory, and there are no minimum quotas required. If you are in compliance
with your Franchise Agreement, including satisfaction of the minimum enrollment requirements
discussed above, you will retain the rights described above.

Unless you sign a Development Agreement, you will not receive any options, rights of first refusal, or
similar rights to acquire additional franchises. We will not pay you any compensation for soliciting or
accepting orders in your Designated Territory.

We do not restrict the clients you may serve, and you generally may solicit clients outside your
Designated Territory. In fact, aggressive franchisees may solicit clients in your Designated Territory.

Although you can solicit clients outside of your Designated Territory you cannot solicit these clients via
the Internet, telemarketing or other direct marketing efforts unless we approve of those efforts. In any
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event, all of your advertising must be approved by us, and you must obtain our written approval before
you establish any website, application, online directory, web page, or social networking or social media
site, profile, account or hashtag, relating to or making reference to us, your Center or the System.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

The Franchise Agreement gives you the right to operate a Center under the trade-nrames;-trademarks-and
servicemarks-that-we-establishMarks we authorize you to use. The Development Agreement does not
grant you any rights to use the Marks. We consider the Casa de Corazon word mark and the Casa de
Corazon logo to be our principal marks. Our affiliate registered the word mark on the Principal Register
of the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”) on April 26, 2016, Registration No.’s
4,945,379 and 4,945,381. Our affiliate also registered the Casa de Corazon logo on the Principal
Register of the USPTO on September 29, 2020, Registration No. 6163132.

There are no currently effective material determinations of the USPTO, the Trademark Trial and Appeal
Board, the trademark administrator of any state or any court, any pending infringement, opposition or
cancellation proceedings or any pending material litigation involving any of our Marks which are
relevant to the use of these Marks. No currently effective litigation affects our use or rights in any of
these Marks. No currently effective agreement limits our right to use or license the use of these Marks.

All affidavits required to preserve and renew the principal mark disclosed above have been or will be
filed. We do not know of any infringing uses that could materially affect your use of these Marks.

We obtained the rights to use the Casa de Corazon marks and all other marks, logos, commercial symbols
and other intellectual property owned by our affiliate, and to license others to use these items, under an
Intellectual Property License Agreement dated June 30, 2016, between us and our affiliate. Under the
terms of that Agreement, our affiliate may continue to operate its own businesses under these marks,
provided it does not do so within any Designated Territory granted to any of our franchisees. We are not
restricted in any way in which we use these items and the length of the Agreement is indefinite. We
therefore essentially have all the rights as the owner of the intellectual property to license others to use
the intellectual property. If this License Agreement were terminated you would have to stop using the
Casa de Corazon marks and all other intellectual property licensed to us under the Agreement.

You must follow our standards when you use the Marks. You may not use any of the Marks alone or
with modifying words, designs or symbols as part of a corporate or business name or in any form on the
Internet, including—but—net—tmited—te online directories, URLs, domain names, hash tags, e-mail
addresses, locators, links, metatags or search techniques. You may not use any of the Marks for the sale
of any unauthorized product or service or in a manner we have not authorized in writing. You are not an
officer, director, manager, member, shareholder, other owner or employee of us, our affiliates or the
“Casa de Corazon” brand. You may not hold yourself out to anyone in this manner. You must ensure
that your employees and anyone else connected with you comply with this requirement.

We will protect and maintain all rights to use the Marks against encroachment, misuse or unauthorized
use and against all challenges to any rights of use, as we deem appropriate. You must notify us
immediately when you learn about an infringement of or challenge to your use of these Marks. We may
take the action necessary, in our sole discretion, to prevent the unauthorized use of the Marks, including
bringing actions against third parties regarding the use of any of the Marks, but the Franchise Agreement
does not require us to take any specific affirmative action. We will control any administrative
proceedings or litigation involving the Marks. You must cooperate with us and take all actions we
require to carry out the defense or prosecution. While we are not required to defend you against a claim
based on your use of the Marks, we will either do so, or we will reimburse you for your liability as long
as you properly use the Marks, including against claims of infringement or unfair competition arising out

of your use of the Marks.
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We may change the Marks and require you to adopt new marks as if they were part of the Franchise
Agreement at the time you sign it. You must comply with these changes immediately after we notify you
that we have discontinued, modified or changed one or more of the Marks. We will have no liability or
obligation because of the discontinuation, modification or change. You must not directly or indirectly
contest the validity of the Marks or our right to use or license the Marks, trade secrets, confidential
information or business techniques that are part of our System. You must use the designations of ®, ™,
and M in advertising and promotions using the Marks, as we designate.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

There are no patents or pending patent applications that are material to the purchase of a franchise. We
claim copyright protection for our manuals, our curriculum and recipes, and to advertising and
promotional materials, forms, and related materials that we produce, but we have not registered any of
these materials with the Copyright Office of the Library of Congress. These materials are proprietary
and confidential and are our property. You may use them only as long as you are a franchisee, and only
as provided in your Franchise Agreement.

There are currently no effective determinations of the United States Copyright Office or any court
regarding any of our copyrighted materials, nor are any proceedings pending, nor are there any currently
effective agreements between us and third parties pertaining to our copyrighted materials that will or may
significantly limit your use of our copyrighted materials. We are not aware of any infringing uses of
these materials that could materially affect your use of these materials. We are not required by any
agreement to protect or defend our copyrights.

We will be disclosing to you certain information we believe to be confidential or proprietary information
and trade secrets, including our curriculum and recipes. This will be included in our manuals, and in
materials we may separately provide you. You may use these materials, in the manner we approve, in the
operation of your Center during the duration of your Franchise Agreement. However, you may not use
these materials in any other way for your own benefit, or communicate or disclose them to, or use them
for the benefit of, any other person or entity. These materials include all trade secrets, knowledge or
know-how, confidential information, advertising, marketing, designs, plans, or methods of operation.
You may disclose this information to your Director(s), Operations Manager, and teachers but only to the
extent necessary to operate the Center, and then only while your Franchise Agreement is in effect. We
also own and consider as our confidential information any data, such as client data, click-stream data,
user data, hits or other information collected via any website or other electronic medium or social media
or social networking site, or application, whether web-based or otherwise, that is related to the System or
the Marks. You can use this data if we obtained it from you but only during the term of your Franchise
Agreement and only to operate your Center.

You may not use our confidential information or Marks, or any aspect of the System including any of our
trade dress, or information contained in our manuals for the purpose of machine learning, augmented
human intellicence development, training any artificial intelligence (“AI”’) model, algorithm
improvement, or similar data aggregation activities. You may not input any of our confidential
information, including any aspect of the System, or any information contained in the manuals into any
generative Al platform, or disclose this information to any provider or source of generative Al services.
You must opt out of allowing any provider or source of generative Al to utilize any of our confidential
information, or any aspect of the System, including any of our trade dress or information contained in our
manuals, for training of any Al model or for other purposes.

We may take photographs, videos and electronic records of your Center premises, vehicles and signage
for use in any advertising or promotional material and in any medium we choose, without your notice or
consent and we may use them as we see fit.
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If you conceive or develop any improvements to the System, you must notify us, and we will own them.
But we will authorize you to utilize any improvement authorized generally for use by other franchisees.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL
OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

Development Agreement

You must develop Centers under the Development Agreement according to the Development Schedule.
We prefer, but do not require, that you personally supervise the development of Centers under the
Development Agreement. You must hire sufficient personnel to manage and supervise the development
of Centers under the Development Agreement, who do not need to have an ownership interest in you or
complete our Initial Training Program.

If you are a corporation, limited liability company, or partnership or you transfer your Development
Agreement to a corporation, limited liability company, or partnership, you and any other owners (and
your and their spouses) must sign a personal guaranty of all obligations under the Development
Agreement.

We will grant the right to open Centers under the Development Agreement only to you or your affiliates
that we approve, and subject to applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations. The affiliate
must generally be a corporation, limited liability company, or partnership, of which you or one or more
of your majority owners owns at least 51% of the total authorized ownership interests, but only if you or
the owner(s) also has the right to control the day-to-day management of the corporation, limited liability
company, or partnership. Any Casa de Corazon franchise that we grant to you or your approved affiliate
under the Development Agreement will be granted under our then-current Franchise Agreement, and the
Center must be supervised and operated by Directors we approve (as provided below).

Franchise Agreement

You must participate personally, on a full-time basis, in the operation of your Center. You or if you are
an entity, the entity or its majority owner, must be the license holder for the Center as required by
applicable law. You must have two Directors operate the Center. Both Directors must have successfully
completed our Initial Training Program and be licensed, if required by applicable law. The Directors
need not have any ownership interest in your Center but must sign a confidentiality agreement that
restricts him or her to the same extent as you are restricted under the Franchise Agreement. You can be
one of these Directors. If you are not going to be involved in the Center on a full-time basis you must
also have an Operations Manager who will oversee its operations. This individual must complete our
Initial Training Program, is not required to have an ownership interest in your Center, but must sign a
non-competition and confidentiality agreement that restricts the individual to the same extent you are
restricted under the Franchise Agreement.

If you are a legal or business entity or you transfer your Franchise Agreement to a corporation, limited
liability company or partnership, you and any other owners_(and your and their spouses, if any) must sign
a personal guaranty of all obligations under the Franchise Agreement. Additionally, your license holder
must be one of your owners who owns at least majority control of the entity, if required by applicable
state law.
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ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer the services we specify, and you may not sell other products or services in your Center
without our prior written approval. This means that we can limit the type of items that you may sell. We
can also change the services and products we allow you to offer at any time. You must follow our
policies, procedures, methods, and techniques and comply with all of our mandatory standards and
specifications when providing services through your Center. You must follow the curriculum we specify
when providing educational services, you must use our recipes for the food you provide at your Center,
and you may only use the food we specify at your Center. You must teach all classes in Spanish.

We do not restrict or limit the clients you may serve, and we expect you to market your business
throughout a broad trade area. We can also implement pricing policies, such as minimum or maximum
price policies, minimum advertised price policies and unilateral minimum price policies, and you must
abide by these policies. You cannot operate other businesses from your Center.

ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should
read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Franchise Disclosure Document.

Section in
Franchise,
Development
Agreement, or Other
Agreements

Provision Summary

Length of the franchise term

Franchise Agreement -|10 years.
Section 2(a)

Development

the Development Agreement is terminated (subject to
applicable state law).

. Renewal or extension of the

term Section 2(b) you can renew your franchise for an additional 10-year
period.
Development There are no renewal rights under the Development

Agreement - None Agreement.

Requirements for you to renew |Franchise Agreement -|Give written notice, sign new franchise agreement (which

Expires on date when last Center under the Development
Agreement - Section 5 |Schedule opens, or should have opened, for business, or

Franchise Agreement -|If you are in good standing and you meet our conditions,

or extend

Section 2(c)

may contain materially different terms and conditions than
your original Franchise Agreement); upgrade your Center
and update your equipment to comply with then-current
standards; provide us with evidence of property control;
sign general release, subject to applicable state law; pay
renewal fee.
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Provision

Section in
Franchise,
Development
Agreement, or Other
Agreements

Summary

Development
Agreement - None

Not Applicable

Termination by you

Franchise Agreement -
Section 21(f)

Development
Agreement - None

You may terminate on 10 days’ notice to us, if you are in
compliance with the Franchise Agreement and we
materially breach the agreement and fail to cure the breach
within 30 days after you give us notice of the breach.

You may not terminate (subject to applicable state law).

Termination by us without

cause

Franchise Agreement -
None

Development
Agreement - None

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Termination by us with cause

Franchise Agreement -
Section 21(a)

Development
Agreement - Section 7

We may terminate only if you default.

We may terminate only if you default.

“Cause” defined — curable

defaults

Franchise Agreement -
Section 21(a)

Development
Agreement - None

Most defaults are curable and you will have 30 days to
cure (10 days for monetary defaults).

You have no right to cure defaults (subject to applicable
state law).

“Cause” defined — non-curable

defaults

Franchise Agreement -
Section 21(a)

You are liquidated or dissolved; fail to obtain our approvall
of a site for your Center within 120 days of the date of
your Franchise Agreement, fail to open within 18 months
of the date of your Franchise Agreement; abandon the
business, lose the right to do business or to occupy the
Center; lose a license required to operate the Center;
unapproved transfers; you or any of your owners engage in
fraudulent conduct or are convicted of, or plead guilty or
no contest to, certain crimes; you maintain false books or
records or submit any false or misleading application,
statement or report to us; you misuse the Marks or
materially impair the value of, or the goodwill associated
with the Marks or the System; fail to successfully
complete the Initial Training Program in a timely manner;
withhold our access to any accounting or financial systems|

or data, revoke any electronic-funds transfer/direct debit

Casa-de-Corazon®2024
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Section in

Franchise,
Development
Agreement, or Other
Provision Agreements Summary

authorization granted to us, or initiate any stop payment
against us or our affiliates; default under your lease or
sublease for the Center’s premises, default under any loan,
financing or other document related to you, your business
or the Center, including the Center’s premises; or fail to
comply with any agreement with us or our affiliates which
failure is not cured within 30 days of notice to you, and
other stated non-curable defaults.

Development Failure to meet Development Schedule; breach of any

Agreement - Section 7

obligation under the Development Agreement; termination|
of any Franchise Agreement with you or your affiliate; an
assignment for the benefit of creditors; any unauthorized
assignment or transfer; conviction of an offense related to
the Center; or submitting of any false or misleading
application, statement, or report to us.

L

Your obligations on
termination/non-renewal

Franchise Agreement -
Section 21(c)

Development
Agreement - Section 7

Stop operating the business, stop using our names and the
Marks, return information to us, assign to us or cancel
certain registrations, listings, telephone numbers, websites
and domain names, pay all amounts you owe us, and
comply with our purchase option, including our right to
assume the existing lease or sublease for the Franchised
Center or enter into a lease.

Your development rights cease, and your rights to use the
System and Marks is limited to those Centers in
development or in operation pursuant to effective
franchise agreements.

j-

Assignment of contract by us

Franchise Agreement -
Section 18(a)

Development
Agreement - Section
4(a)

No restriction on our right to assign.

No restriction on our right to assign.

k.

“Transfer” by you — defined

Franchise Agreement -
Section 18(b)

Development
Agreement - Section
4(b)

Includes transfer of contract or business, or transfer of
majority control of the Franchise Agreement or of the
business.

Not transferable.

L

Our approval of transfer by

Franchise Agreement -

We must approve all transfers, but will not withhold our
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Section in

Franchise,
Development
Agreement, or Other
Provision Agreements Summary
franchisee Section 18(¢) consent if all of the requirements for the transfer are met.

Development
Agreement - Section
4(b)

No transfers.

m. Conditions for our approval of
transfer

Franchise Agreement -
Section 18(c)

Development
Agreement - Section
4(b)

Transferee must meet our requirements, including
satisfying any licensure requirements imposed by
applicable law and sign a new franchise agreement on our
then current form for the remaining term of your
Agreement. (The new agreement may provide for
different fees or territory than in your Agreement, but we
will not require the transferee to pay us a new initial
franchise fee.) You must also pay a transfer fee and sign a
release (subject to state law).

You do not have the right to transfer the Development
Agreement or any interest in it without our consent.

n. Our right of first refusal to
acquire your business

Franchise Agreement -
Section 19(a)

Development
Agreement - None

We can match any offer for your business or an interest in
the business, including a sale between owners or between
an owner and you, or for the property upon which the
Center is located.

Not Applicable

0. Our option to purchase your
business

Franchise Agreement -
Sections 4 and 19(b)

Development
Agreement - None

We have the option to purchase or lease the assets used in
your business after the Franchise Agreement ends,
including the real estate. We also have the option to lease
your Center’s premises after the Franchise Agreement
ends.

Not Applicable

p- Your death or disability

Franchise Agreement -
Section 18(c)

Development
Agreement - None

Your heirs can assume your rights, but if they do, they
must meet the transfer requirements (subject to applicable
state law).

Not Applicable
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Provision

Section in
Franchise,
Development
Agreement, or Other
Agreements

Summary

g. Non-competition covenants
during the term of the franchise

Franchise Agreement
-Section 17(a)

Development
Agreement - Section

6(a)(1)

No involvement in a business that provides educational
services to children of any age between the ages of 6
weeks and 5 years or that franchises or licenses this type
of business, no diversion of a client to a competitor, may
not interfere with the business activities of us, any of our
affiliates or any of our franchisees.

No involvement in a business that provides educational
services to children of any age between the ages of 6
weeks and 5 years or that franchises or licenses this type
of business, no diversion of a client to a competitor, may
not interfere with the business activities of us, any of our
affiliates or any of our franchisees.

T.

Non-competition covenants
after the franchise is terminated

or expires

Franchise Agreement
-Section 17(a)

For a period of 2 years, no involvement in any business
that provides educational services to children of any age
between the ages of 6 weeks and 5 years, and is located or
doing business in your Designated Territory, a radius of 10
miles from the Designated Territory or a radius of 10
miles from any other Casa de Corazon Center. During this
period, no involvement in a business that is offering or
selling franchises or licenses for this type of a business
and that is located in or doing business in the prohibited
area above, or that is selling franchises or licenses for
locations located in or to be located in the prohibited area
above. During this period, you may not interfere with the
business activities of us, any of our affiliates or any of our
franchisees including diversion of any client to a
competitor.

If there is no Designated Territory identified in the
Franchise Agreement, the prohibited area means the
“search area”, a radius of 10 miles from the search area,
and a radius of 10 miles from any other Casa de Corazon
Center. The search area is the area we grant you to search
for a Center location (see Item 12).

Development
Agreement - Section

6(a)(2)

For a period of 2 years, no involvement in any business
that provides educational services to children of any age
between the ages of 6 weeks and 5 years, and is located or
doing business in the Development Territory. During this
period, no involvement in a business that is offering or
selling franchises or licenses for this type of a business
and that is located in or doing business in the
Development Territory, or that is located outside the
Development Territory but is selling franchises or licenses
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Provision

Section in
Franchise,
Development
Agreement, or Other
Agreements

Summary

for locations located in or to be located in the
Development Territory. During this period, you may not
interfere with the business activities of us, any of our
affiliates or any of our franchisees including diversion of
any client to a competitor.

Modification of the agreement

Franchise Agreement
-Section 25(i)

Development
Agreement - Section

90)

No modifications without consent by all parties, but our
manuals are subject to change.

No modifications without consent by all parties, but our
manuals are subject to change.

Integration/merger clause

Franchise Agreement
-Section 25(c)

Development
Agreement - Section
9(m)

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement and other
written agreements are binding (subject to applicable state
law). Any representations or promises outside of this
Disclosure Document and the Franchise Agreement may
not be enforceable.

Only terms of the Development Agreement and other
written agreements are binding (subject to applicable state
law). Any representation or promises made outside of this
Disclosure Document and Development Agreement may
not be enforceable. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing in any agreement is intended to disclaim the
express representations made in this Disclosure
Document, its exhibits, and amendments.

u. Dispute resolution by

arbitration or mediation

Franchise Agreement
-Section 22(b)

Development
Agreement - Section
9(d)

Except for certain disputes, all disputes must be mediated,
and if not settled by mediation, are then subject to
litigation (subject to applicable state law).

Except for certain disputes, all disputes must be first
mediated.

v. Choice of forum

Franchise Agreement -
Section 22(b) and (e)

Development
Agreement - Section
7(d)

Mediation to be held in a metropolitan area with a
population of at least 250,000 people that is not located
within 200 miles of your Center or our principal office. In
most cases, litigation must be brought in the state or
federal courts located in Hennepin County, Minnesota,
except as provided in a state specific addendum.

Subject to state law, mediation to be held in accordance
with requirements of franchise agreement.

36




Section in
Franchise,
Development
Agreement, or Other
Provision Agreements Summary

w. Choice of law Franchise Agreement -|Subject to state law, Minnesota law generally applies.
Section 25(a)

Development Subject to state law, Minnesota law generally applies.
Agreement - Section

9(c)

ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not currently use any public figure to promote our franchise.

ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for
the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing Center you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about the possible
performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

This Item 19 is broken into two sections. Section A provides historical Revenue information for the
12-month period ended December 31, 2024 for all of our affiliate-owned and franchised centers as of
December 31, 2024. Section B provides historical Revenue, expense, income and other information for
the 12-month period ended December 31, 2024 for certain of our affiliate-owned and franchised centers
as further explained in Section B.

A. 2024 REVENUE INFORMATION

As of December 31, 20232024 there were 8eight Casa de Corazon Centers open and operating in the

Casa de Corazon System—Five—ofthesefranchise system. All eight Centers eperatedwere open and
operating for the entire 12-month period ended December 31, 2024. We have provided eertain

statements-of-actual revenues;expenses-and-ineomethe total Revenue for all efthesecight Centers-as-they
were-al-open for mere-than24-menths-as-efthe full year ended December 31, 2023-and-thus-were-at-or
near-maturity2024.
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Affiliate Affiliate Affiliate Affiliate Franchised | Franchised | Franchised | Franchised
Center 1 Center 2 Center 3 Center 4! Center 1 Center 2 Center 3! Center 4!
Tuition $2*7?0’35 $3*2?0’12 $2*3‘1‘3’52 $1,422,561 | $2.650.896 | $2,844.360 | $1,154,104 | $2.795,502
Photography
Rebates $350 $567 $0 $0 $246 $333 $243 $353
Total
Revenues | Tt | 3223068 | SBIISE | g1 429 561 | 52,651,142 | $2.844,693 | $1.154.346 | $2.795.855

1. Affiliate Center 4 and Franchised Center 3 opened in 2023 and Franchised Center 4 opened in 2011
and was transferred from our affiliate to a franchisee in May 2024. Please see the table below for the
year in which the other Centers opened.

All of the Centers are located in the Minneapolis/St. Paul metropolitan area, with the exception of one
affiliate-owned center which is located in Rochester, Minnesota, and two of the franchised Centers-which
is-loeated, one of which is located in Madison, WI and the other in the Milwaukee, WI metropolitan area.
AH-ef-theseThe Centers—other—than—ene—ofthe—affiliate-owned—Centers—is located in the heart of a
metropohtan area—aﬁd—thefefefe have a hlgher populatlon surroundlng the Center The atfiliate-ewned

3% 3% r-areacarliest of these

!)8043

B. 2024 STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, INCOME AND OTHER
o INFORMATION

It takes 2-3 years for a Casa de Corazon center to reach maturity, meaning it takes 2-3 years for its
expenses to normalize. We have provided statements of actual Revenues, expenses, income and other
information for the five Centers in the Casa franchise system that were open as a Casa de Corazon center
on our before December 31, 2022 and that operated as a Casa de Corazon center for the entire 12-month
period ended December 31, 2024. We have excluded one Center that our affiliate sold in May 2024,
even though this Center was open as of December 31, 2022, as the expenses of that Center were
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intermixed between corporate and franchised expenses during 2024. No Casa de Corazon centers closed
in 2024.

Of the five Centers, three are owned and operated by our affiliate, and two are franchised Centers. We
have adjusted the actual results, as described in the notes to the statements, to omit costs incurred by the
affiliate-owned Centers that a franchisee would not have incurred, and to add costs that we reasonably
expect a franchisee would incur.

Affiliate Affiliate Affiliate Franchised | Franchised
Center 1 Center 2 Center 3 Center 1 Center 2

Year Opened 2010 2014 2018 2019 2020
Full-Time Student
Equivalent Enrollment' 111 142 100 113 121
Occupancy Rate? 94% 76% 73% 95% 96%
Revenues

Tuition $2,790,351 $3.290,121 $2,343,521 $2.650,896 $2,844,360

Photography Rebates $350 $567 $0 $246 $333
Total Revenues®* $2,790,701 $3.290,688 $2.343,521 $2.651,142 $2.844,693
Direct Expenses

Educational and

Childcare Expenses $32,661 $32.220 $23.052 $26.441 $29.779

Child Assessment

Tools® $2,759 $2.966 $2,580 $2.120 $2.025

CPR/First Aid

Training $1,132 $834 $657 $2,085 $2.229

Field Trips and

Activities $13.739 $14,592 $7.238 $24,025 $13.365

Furniture/Equipment $9.020 $10,692 $1,400 $348 $240

Food $96.327 $99.446 $59.092 $98.398 $73.315

Hiring/Training® $4.973 $8.335 $5.922 $14.792 $6,425

Janitorial and Kitchen

Supplies $19,010 $22.346 $12,660 $13,603 $13,825

Licenses & Permits $852 $1.055 $1.960 $3.422 $2.545

Staff Payroll, Benefits

and Payroll Taxes’ $1,506,577 $1.800,954 $1,239,037 $1.173,777 $1,541,734

Payroll Processing $10,085 $10,085 $7.203 $10,048 $4.,560

Uniforms $926 $1.,422 $1,253 $3.176 $2.,513
Total Direct Expenses $1.698,061 $2.004,947 $1,362,054 $1.372,236 1,692,555
Gross Profit $1,092,640 $1,285,742 $981.467 $1,278.906 1,152,138
Other Expenses

Accounting® $12,000 $12,000 $12,000 $12.128 $520

Computer, IT,

Software & Website $17,693 $16,982 $6.,084 $7.518 $830

Human Resources’ $1,000 $1.000 $1,000 $0 $0
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Affiliate Affiliate Affiliate Franchised Franchised
Center 1 Center 2 Center 3 Center 1 Center 2
Insurance $34.556 $34,556 $50,068 $35,306 $29.543
Legal &
Professional!” $5,839 $5.839 $5,839 $14,526 $9.423
Brand Fund
Contribution!' $55.814 $65.814 $46.870 $53,023 $56.894
Marketing &
Advertising!'? $13,265 $13,711 $11,544 $12.459 $10,000
Royalty Fee!? $195.349 $230,348 $164,046 $185,580 $199.,128
Technology Fee'* $8.,460 $8.460 $8.,460 $8.460 $8.,460
Accreditation!’ $0 $1.,400 $0 $450 $1.,400
Office Supplies $11.282 $16,351 $10.967 $4,225 $12.099
Rent and Property
Taxes $181.597 $331.874 $286.335 $274.484 $219.100
Teacher Housing!¢ $0 $0 $0 $17.229 $0
Repairs and
Maintenance $32,862 $80,163 $18,070 $14,126 $50,596
Utilities'” $50,463 $64.849 $9.425 $31,792 $48.296
Miscellaneous!® $ 7,983 $10,630 $5.596 $33,738 $14,697
Total Other Expenses $628.,163 $893.977 $636.304 $705,044 $660,986
Net Operating Income
Before Depreciation,
Interest, Debt
Repayment and $464.477 $391,765 $345,163 $573,862 $491,152
Income Taxes!%?2°

1. The Full-Time Student Equivalent Enrollment was calculated by adding the total number of students enrolled at a Center
each day of the week for the last week of 26232024 and dividing the total by five. This number was calculated as of December
31, 20232024 for each Center. Students can be enrolled on a 2 day per week, 3 day per week, or full-time schedule and due to
part-time enrollments, the total number of children enrolled may be greater than the number of children attending daily.

2. Occupancy Rate was determined as of December 31, 20232024 by dividing the student enrollment number applicable to the
Center by the Center's enrollment capacity, which is set by the Center’s childcare license. The Occupancy Rate for Affiliate
Centers 2 and 3 was affected due to the completion of construction adding additional classrooms during 2024 leading to an
increase in capacity before the end of 2024.
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GrossProfit 0008 2022 B0 01E —2e002d 02025
Otber e enses
Accounting® 12,000 12.000 12,000 9.845 555
Computer1h
Software-& Website 13.655 14,157 12.862 2.671 606
Human Resources’ 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 0
Insurance 30.741 30.830 30.741 37.513 29,123
Legal & Professional® 25.868 11,392 8,632 18697 6,448
il ead
Contribution® 56:290 58,006 61452 52,588 48,033
Sl [
Advertising®™ 15.203 15911 15:331 18375 10,000
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S e S e te S e Franchised | Franchised
Center 1 Center 2 Center 3 Cestes] Cestesd
Reyalty Fee™ 197645 203649 215,082 184,659 tegHe
Technology Fee™ 6000 6;000 6000 6,600 6,000
Acereditation™ 925 0 9 LS ==
Poplrnd ens et
Teacher Housing™ 9 0 9 Di et 9
Repairs-and
Uilities™ M=k 52235 74,698 29,748 43,091
Miscellancous®™ —hl s e e =t
Lotal Otheropenses T15,137 625,233 815,965 728,449 596,047
St Operatinge Tregme
BeforeD iation,
TaterestDalbt
Repaymentand
Income Taxes' 8 564,859 616,790 443,050 632:389 507,888

3. Revenues have the same meaning as the definition of Gross Revenues in the Franchise Agreement.

24. All of these Centers also received_early childcare education grants in the amounts of $+55:+08113.547, $+66,555168.919,
$483.272201.771, $496:499122,633, and $+56:+79-152.461respectively. However, because we did not charge Royalty Fees on
these amounts, we have excluded them from the revenues above TFheseAll Centers also received early chlldcare education grants
began—ln e ¢ S g 2024. A small

also excluded from Revenue tu1t10n dlscounts (such asa s1b11ng dlscount) as Royalty Fees are not pald on them.

35. You must obtain these child assessments through a third-party vendor. Each Center will pay an initial fee in the year that
they begin using the service.

46.  All of the Centers incurred contlnulng education expenses in 26232024. All of the Centers_except Affiliate Center 2
1ncurred the cost of h1r1ng cultural visa exchange teachers W&aﬂeeatee%—eﬁﬂ%&tetal—%epeﬁs%mem*ed—by—th&aﬁﬁhat%ewneé

>

7. With respect to the affiliate-owned Centers, the expense for Staff Payroll, Benefits and Payroll Taxes also includes staff gifts,
staff meals during monitoring and evaluation, and staff parties. However, it does not include any headquarters payroll that we
incurred. Thus, we did not include the salaries of our curriculum writer, our event planner, our recruiter, our internal accountant
and bookkeeper, our human relations director or our marketing or franchise development directors. You should not need any of
these employees for one Center. We also excluded employee bonuses paid based on pandemieearly childcare education grants-.

We also did not include our principal owner’s salary. Our numbers do, however, include the salaries of 2 full-time Directors. If
you had operated these Centers, and served as a Director and an Operations Manager and filled the other roles at the salary we
pay our Directors, then your compensation would have been included in this number. If you had operated these Centers and did
not serve as a Director or as the Operations Manager, then your compensation would not be included in these numbers and
would have to come from the Center’s Net Operating Income. Likewise, if you had hired others to provide operations, recruiting,
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bookkeeping and/or event planning services, your expenses would have been higher. The amounts incurred by Franchised
Centers 1 & 2 enly-include 2 full-time Directors for each Franchised Center. Franchised Center 1 had a full-time Operations
Manager for-the—fullyear-and-a—full-time HR administrator for34-efthe-yearin 2024 but these wages arewere excluded as this
Center is in the process of opening a second franchise and that-is-why-they-have-twofull time-administrators-that-a single-center
franchise would not hawveincur these expenses. In Franchise Center 2 the-owneracted-as-thean Operations Manager was hired
and a portion of these wages were—exeluded-as—wellare included here. All of the-affiliate-ownedfive Centers andfranchised
CenterHneludesinclude 401 (k) benefits in-2023-(admin fees and match) but excludesexclude any 401(k) audit expenses.

68. Our affiliate’s accounting expenses were higher than shown because it eutseurees-all-efitsoutsourced a controller and CFO
due to more complex accounting; issues and maintainsmaintaining multiple locations. We have adjusted these fees to $1,000 per

month per Center which 1s what we expect a franchrsee would 1ncur4n—292%—Fraﬂeh+s&Genter—1—reeewed—an—Employee

Mer—s%evem&&and—@epenses—r&th&eh&rt—above Franchrse Center 2 does most of 1ts bookkeeplng and accountlng work

internally, resulting in the lower expense for this Center in the chart above.

79. Because we have over 100 employees in our headquarters and our affiliate-owned Centers, we employ a full-time human
resource specialist that we would not have had if we were operating only one Center. In lieu of including these expenses, we
allocated $1,000 to human resource consulting for each affiliate-owned Center. Our franchise Centers did not incur this
expense.

810. Our affiliate-owned Centers’ total legal and professional expenses were from expenses for employee matters, immigration
matters, and international teaching program matters;-and-complex-taxreturn-issaes-a-single- Center-would-not-encounter. We-alse
excluded exy expenses for commercial property appraisals, trademark and website infringement, establishing a non-profit, software
development, actual and proposed sales of centers, employment agreements; and updating our employee handbook. Otherwise,
the amounts for our affiliate-owned Centers are the actual amounts expended by these Centers.

911. You must make a 2% contribution to the Brand Fund. The amounts above are actual amounts paid for the period ending

cember 31, 20232024, as adjusted based upon actual revenue.

10-—As—thel2. The Franchise Agreement requires a franchised Center to spend $10,000 on Marketing, Advertising and
Promotional Materials we used that amount above. Each of the Centers above except for Franchise Center 2 spent more than
this amount. Franchise Center 2 spent less than this amount so we increased the amount to the required spend. Because these
Centers were not newly opened they did not incur the minimum $10,000 grand opening advertising expenditure we require and
we have not included it above..— We permit our franchised Centers to apply the discount they offer to Brand Ambassadors and
enrolled families who make referrals, toward the $10,000 requirement discussed above.

++13. Although our affiliate-owned Centers do not pay a Royalty Fee we have used a 7% Royalty Fee for those Centers as that
is the Royalty Fee you must pay under the Franchise Agreement. The amounts above for the franchise-Centers are actual
amounts paid for the period ending December 31, 20232024, as adjusted based upon actual revenue.

1+214. Although our affiliate-owned and franchised Centers did not pay this fee it is a fee you must pay under the terms of the
Franchise Agreement. It was not paid by the franchised Centers as their Franchise Agreements did not require it to be paid.
However, we have included it in the chart above for all of the Centers as this would be a fee you would be required to pay.

4315. You must apply for and renew NAEYC accreditation and state accreditation. The charge for the NAEYC accreditation is
based on the number of children in the Center. The initial accreditation charge is approximately $2,000. Centers only pay for
accreditation at one of their Centers, if multiple Centers are owned. The Centers are not required to pay a fee for the state
accreditation as Minnesota does not charge a fee for this process. Depending upon the state you are located in, there may be a
charge for this accreditation.

1+416. Franchised Center 1 pays rent to hold housing space that its international teachers may choose to rent upon arrival. The
Center pays this rent so the space is not lost for its international teachers who have difficulty finding a place to rent immediately

upon arrival. This is an optional expense and one we would not expect you to incur.

1

~

145 This includes telephones (landlines and mobile units), Internet, electric, gas, water, waste removal and alarm service.

1+618. This includes miscellaneous general and administrative expenses, including tuition processing fees, postage, sales and use
taxes, child/family gifts, charitable contributions, subscriptions and travel costs. It also includes bank charges, which we
estimated at $80 per month per Center. Our affiliate’s bank charges were higher because it had charges related to the operation
of multiple Centers that one Center would not have.
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1+719. We did not include any income or expense for depreciation, amortization, interest, or the repayment of debt from these
Centers. Depreciation and amortization expense will depend upon tax decisions made by the owner of the Center. The amount
of interest expense, and the cost of repaying debt would depend on how the Center was capitalized.

14820. These amounts do not include state or federal income taxes, as those expenses would vary, depending on the other taxable
income and expenses that entity may have.

Notes Applicable to this entire Item 19

Some outlets have achieved these revenues and earned these amounts. Your individual results may
differ. There is no assurance you’ll achieve these revenues or earn as much.

All amounts were rounded to the nearest dollar—er—snearest, whole number, or whole percent, as
applicable.

These figures were prepared without an audit. Prospective franchisees should be advised that no
certified public accountant has audited these figures or expressed his/her opinion with regard to the
content or form.

Written substantiation for the financial performance representations made in this Item 19 will be made
available to you upon request.

Other than as set forth above, we do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial
performance or the past financial performance of company-owned or franchise Centers. We also do not
authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations, either orally or in writing.
If you are purchasing an existing Center, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that
Center. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income,
you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting our Franchise Development and
Support Specialist, at 6301 Wayzata Blvd, St. Louis Park, MN 55416, telephone (612) 790-9673, the
Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Numbers in the Tables below are as of December 31 of the applicable year.

Table No. 1

Systemwide Outlet Summary
For Years 2021-202342022-2024

Outlets at the Outlets at the
Outlet Type Year Start of the Year End of the Year Net Change
Franchised 2021 3 3 0
2022 3 3 0
2023 3 3 0
2024 3 4 1
Company-Owned? 2021 3 3 0
! 2022 3 3 0
2023 3 5 +2
2024 5 £ -1
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Outlets at the Outlets at the
Outlet Type Year Start of the Year | End of the Year Net Change
Total Outlets 2021 6 6 0
2022 6 6 0
2023 6 8 +2
2024 8 8 0

| —Fhenumberstoreach-yearareasof December 3+
2~ These outlets are owned by our affiliate.
2. Affiliate-owned Center was sold to a franchisee.

Table No. 2

Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)

For Years 2021-202322022-2024!

State

Year

Number of Transfers

Minnesota

2021

9

All States

2022

2023

2024

Totals

2024
2022

2023

2024

oclo|lo ollo|lo|o

e smmbes Lo enehenr e v Do ceambop 2 1

1. 2-Does not include transfers where beneficial ownership of less than 50% of the franchise did
not change, circumstances where ardan individual transfers to an entity the individual owns or transfers

to heirs.
Table No. 3
Status of Franchised Qutlets
For Years 2021-2023'2022-2024
Ceased
Opera-tio
Outlets at Reacquired| ns-— Outlets

Start of | Outlets | Termina-| Non-Rene by Other |at End of
State Year | the Year | Opened tions wals Franchisor | Reasons | the Year

Minnesota | 2921 2 0 0 0 9 0 2

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2023 2 0 1 0 1! 0 1

2024 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
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Ceased
Opera-tio
Outlets at Reacquired| ns-— Outlets

Start of | Outlets | Termina-| Non-Rene by Other |at End of

State Year | the Year | Opened tions wals Franchisor | Reasons | the Year
Wisconsin | 2021 1 o o o 9 o 1
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Tokal 202t 3 o o o 9 o 3
Totals 2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 1 1 0 1 0 3
2024 | 3 1 0 0 0 0 4

1. Thenumberforeneheneare e ot Doconalber 2 LThis Cent

er’s Franchise Agreement was terminated

and this Center was subsequently reacquired by our affiliate.

Table No. 4

Status of Company-Owned Outlets

For Years 2021-2023°2022-2024"

Outlets
Outlets at Reacquired Outlets at
Start of Outlets From Outlets | Outlets Sold | End of the
State Year Year Opened | Franchisee | Closed | to Franchisee Year

Minnesota 2021 3 0 0 0 0 3

2022 3 0 0 0 0 3

2023 3 1 1 0 0 5

2024 S 0 0 0 1 4
Fotal 2021 3 0 0 0 0 3
Totals 2022 3 0 0 0 0 3

2023 3 1 1 0 0 5

2024 S 0 0 0 1 4
. Thenumberstoreach-yearareasof December3+
2—These outlets are owned by our affiliate.

Table No. 5
Projected Openings as of
December 31, 20232024*
Franchise Agreements
Signed as of December 31, Projected New Projected New
20232024, But Outlet Franchised Outlets in | Company-Owned Outlets
State Not Opened 20242025 in 20242025

Florida 0 0-1
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Franchise Agreements
Signed as of December 31, Projected New Projected New
20232024, But Outlet Franchised Outlets in Company-Owned Outlets
State Not Opened 20242025 in 20242025
0
Illinois 0 0-1 0
South Dakota 0 0-1 0
Massachusetts 0 0-1 0
Minnesota 01 0-11-3 0
Chie 9 oL 9
Wisconsin 1 011 0
e 9 oL 9
Total 12 +42-3 0

* We are looking for prospective franchisees throughout the United States, and cannot know in advance
where we might find prospects. Therefore, any projection of this nature is very speculative. We will add
franchises wherever we find qualified prospects.

Listed on Exhibit D are the names, addresses and telephone numbers of all of our franchisees. Our
centers owned by our affiliates are also listed on Exhibit D. We have also listed on Exhibit D the
franchisees who have had a Franchise Agreement terminated, canceled, not renewed, or who otherwise
voluntarily or involuntarily, ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreement during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 20232024, or who had not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the issuance
date of this Franchise Disclosure Document. There is-one—franchiseeare no franchisees listed on Exhibit

D-iadhientocas:

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the
franchise system. In some instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their
ability to speak openly about their experience in the Casa de Corazon franchise program. You may wish
to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all of such franchisees will be able to
communicate with you.

We have not created, sponsored, or endorsed any franchise organization and no independent franchisee
organization has asked to be included in this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached to this Franchise Disclosure Document at Exhibit E is a copy of our audited financial
statements as of December 31, 2024, 20232022 and 26212022. We have also included at Exhibit E a
copy of our unaudited financial statements as of February 2928, 20242025. THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AS OF FEBRUARY 2928, 26242025, ARE PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT.

PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEES SHOULD BE ADVISED THAT NO CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE FIGURES OR EXPRESSED HIS/HER OPINION WITH
REGARD TO THE CONTENTS AND FORM.
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ITEM 22
CONTRACTS
Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit A are state specific addenda to the Disclosure
Document. Attached as Exhibit F is a copy of the form Casa de Corazon Franchise Agreement, state
specific addenda to the Franchise Agreement, if any, form of a Guaranty to be signed by shareholders of
a corporate franchisee, members of a limited liability company franchisee (and their spouses), or partners
of a partnership franchisee (and their spouses), as a condition to your transfer of the Franchise
Agreement to a corporation, limited liability company or partnership, a Statement of Ownership and
Management, ard-Lease Rider, and a Declaration of Restrictions, Notice of Option. Also attached is a
form of a transfer form if you want to sell, assign or transfer your Franchise Agreement to a corporation,
limited liability company, or partnership you own and an example of a release you must sign if you want
to sell, assign or transfer your Franchise Agreement to an unrelated third party or to an entity or
partnership you do not own or control.

Attached as Exhibit G is a copy of the form Casa de Corazon Development Agreement, state specific
addenda to the Development Agreement, if any, a Statement of Ownership and Management and form of
a Guaranty to be signed by shareholders of a corporate developer, members of a limited liability company
developer (and their spouses), or partners of a partnership developer (and their spouses), as a condition to
your transfer of the Development Agreement to a corporation, limited liability company or partnership.
Attached as Exhibit I is a Franchisee Questionnaire you must complete at the time you purchase a
franchise. Attached as Exhibit J is a copy of the form of Casa loan documents.

ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

The last 2 pages of this Disclosure Document are detachable documents acknowledging receipt of this
Disclosure Document. Please sign both receipt pages and return one to us.
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EXHIBIT A

STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT



ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Casa de Corazon Disclosure
Document, the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all
Casa de Corazon franchises offered and sold in the state of Minnesota.

This Minnesota Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of Minnesota or if your
business will be located in Minnesota.

1. The page titled “Special Risk(s) to Consider About This Franchise” is amended to
include the following:

Special Risk(s) to Consider About This Franchise

EARLY STAGE. THE FRANCHISOR IS AT AN EARLY STAGE OF
DEVELOPMENT AND HAS A LIMITED OPERATING HISTORY. THIS
FRANCHISE IS LIKELY TO BE A RISKIER INVESTMENT THAN A FRANCHISE
IN A SYSTEM WITH A LONGER OPERATING HISTORY.

2. The Minnesota Department of Commerce has imposed a financial assurance requirement
due to our financial condition. Therefore, we have obtained a surety bond in accordance
with Minnesota Rules 2860.1900. A copy of the surety bond is on file with the Minnesota
Department of Commerce.

3. Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit the
franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver
of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination
penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document
or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights as provided for
in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or
remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

4. With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with
Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified
cases) (1) that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure)
and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the Franchise Agreement and (2) that consent to
the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

5. To the extent required by the Minnesota Franchise Act, the franchisor will protect the
franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other
commercial symbols related to the trademarks or indemnify the franchisee from any loss,
costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the
trademarks, provided the franchisee is using the names in marks in accordance with the
Franchise Agreement.

6. Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to

assent to a general release.
MN



7. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of
(1) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor,
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

8. Each provision of this addendum to the Disclosure Document shall be effective only to
the extent that with respect to such provision, the jurisdictional requirements of
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C are met independently without reference to this
Addendum.



ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Casa de Corazon Disclosure
Document, the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all
Casa de Corazon franchises offered and sold in the state of Wisconsin.

This Wisconsin Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of Wisconsin or if your
business will be located in Wisconsin.

“The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law applies to most franchise agreements in the
state and prohibits termination, cancellation, non-renewal or substantial change in
competitive circumstances of a dealership agreement without good cause. The law
further provides that 90 days prior written notice of the proposed termination, etc.
must be given to the dealer. The dealer has 60 days to cure the deficiency and if
the deficiency is so cured the notice is void. The Disclosure Document and
Franchise Agreement are hereby modified to state that the Wisconsin Fair
Dealership Law, to the extent applicable, supersedes any provision of the Franchise
Agreement that is inconsistent with Wis.Stat.Ch.135, the Wisconsin Fair
Dealership Law, § 32.06(3), Wis. Code.”

Each provision of this addendum to the Disclosure Document shall be effective only to
the extent that with respect to such provision, the jurisdictional requirements of the Wisconsin
Fair Dealership Law are met independently without reference to this addendum.
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EXHIBIT B

LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

STATE

STATE ADMINISTRATOR

AGENT FOR
SERVICE OF PROCESS

CALIFORNIA

Department of Financial Protection and
Innovation

L0 e na Eanlenamed

651 Bannon Street, Suite 300

Sacramento, CA 9583495811
866-275-2677 (toll free)
Ask.DFPl@dfpi.ca.gov (email)

Commissioner of Financial Protection
and Innovation
2101-ArenaBoulevard

651 Bannon Street, Suite 300

Sacramento, CA 95834-95811

CONNECTICUT

Securities and Business Investment Division
Connecticut Department of Banking

260 Constitution Plaza

Hartford, CT 06103

860-240-8230

Connecticut Banking Commissioner
Same Address

FLORIDA

Department of Agriculture & Consumer
Services

Division of Consumer Services

Mayo Building, Second Floor
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0800
850-245-6000

Same

GEORGIA

Office of Consumer Affairs

2 Martin Luther King Drive, S.E.
Plaza Level, East Tower

Atlanta, GA 30334
404-656-3790

Same

HAWAII

Commissioner of Securities

Department of Commerce and Consumer
Affairs

Business Registration Division
Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, HI 96813

808-586-2722

Same

ILLINOIS

Franchise Division

Office of the Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706
217-782-4465

Illinois Attorney General
Same Address

INDIANA

Securities Commissioner

Indiana Securities Division

302 West Washington Street, Room E 111
Indianapolis, IN 46204

317-232-6681

Indiana Secretary of State
201 State House

200 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204

IOWA

Iowa Securities Bureau
Second Floor

Lucas State Office Building
Des Moines, IA 50319

Same
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STATE

STATE ADMINISTRATOR

AGENT FOR
SERVICE OF PROCESS

515-281-4441

KENTUCKY

Kentucky Attorney General’s Office
Consumer Protection Division

1024 Capitol Center Drive
Frankfort, KY 40602

502-696-5389

Same

LOUISIANA

Department of Urban & Community Affairs
Consumer Protection Office

301 Main Street, 6th Floor

One America Place

Baton Rouge, LA 70801

504-342-7013 (gen. info.) 504-342-7900

Same

MAINE

Department of Business Regulations
State House - Station 35

Augusta, ME 04333

207-298-3671

Same

MARYLAND

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, MD 21202
410-576-6360

Maryland Securities Commissioner
Same Address

MICHIGAN

Michigan Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

Antitrust and Franchise Unit

G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor
525 W. Ottawa Street

Lansing, MI 48909

517-373-7117

Michigan Department of Commerce
Corporations and Securities Bureau
Same Address

MINNESOTA

Minnesota Department of Commerce
Registration and Licensing Division
85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101-2198
651-539-1600

Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce
Same Address

NEBRASKA

Department of Banking and Finance
1526 K Street, Suite 300

Lincoln, NE 68508

P.O. Box 95006

Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-5006
402-471-2171

Same

NEW HAMPSHIRE

Attorney General

Consumer Protection and Antitrust Bureau
State House Annex

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-3641

Same

NEW YORK

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor
New York, NY 10005
212-416-8222

New York Secretary of State

One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor
Albany, New York 12231-0001
518-473-2492

Casa-de-Corazon®2024
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STATE

STATE ADMINISTRATOR

AGENT FOR
SERVICE OF PROCESS

NORTH CAROLINA

Secretary of State’s Office/Securities Division
2 South Salisbury Street

Raleigh, NC 27601

919-733-3924

Secretary of State
Secretary of State’s Office
Same Address

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol - 14th Floor, Dept 414
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510
701-328-2910

Securities Commissioner

OHIO

Attorney General

Consumer Fraud & Crime Section
State Office Tower

30 East Broad Street, 15th Floor
Columbus, OH 43215
614-466-8831 or 800-282-0515

Same

OKLAHOMA

Oklahoma Securities Commission
2915 Lincoln Blvd.

Oklahoma City, OK 73105
405-521-2451

Same

OREGON

Department of Insurance and Finance
Corporate Securities Section

Labor and Industries Building

Salem, OR 96310

503-378-4387

Director
Department of Insurance and Finance
Same Address

RHODE ISLAND

Rhode Island Department of Business
Regulation

Securities Division

John O. Pastore Center — Building 69-1
1511 Pontiac Avenue

Cranston, RI 02920

401-222-3048

Director, Rhode Island Department of
Business Regulation
Same address

SOUTH CAROLINA

Secretary of State
P.O. Box 11350
Columbia, SC 29211
803-734-2166

Same

SOUTH DAKOTA

Department of Insurance
Securities Regulations
124 S. Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, SD 57501
605-773-3563

Director of South Dakota
Division of Insurance

Securities Regulation
Same Address

TEXAS

Secretary of State

Statutory Documents Section
P.O. Box 12887

Austin, TX 78711-2887
512-475-1769

Same

UTAH

Utah Department of Commerce
Consumer Protection Division

160 East 300 South (P.O. Box 45804)
Salt Lake City, UT 84145-0804

Same

B-3




AGENT FOR

STATE STATE ADMINISTRATOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

801-530-6601

VIRGINIA State Corporation Commission Clerk of the State Corporation
Division of Securities and Retail Franchising %’Or%r%l;::(i\l}lam Street, 1st Floor
Tyler Building, 9th Floor Richmond, Virginia 23219
1300 E. Main Street
Richmond, VA 23219
804-371-9051

WASHINGTON Department of Financial Institutions Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division Securities Division
PO Box 41200 150 Israel Road SW
Olympia, WA 98504-1200 Tumwater, WA 98501
360-902-8760 360-902-8700

WISCONSIN Wisconsin Dept. of Financial Institutions Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities

Division of Securities

4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, WI 53705

608-266-8557

Same Address
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LIST OF OUTLETS/FORMER FRANCHISEES
as of December 31, 20232024



FRANCHISEE AND AFFILIATE OWNED CENTERS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 26232024

FRANCHISEES:

State

Address

Minnesota

Bilingual Babies, LLC
Jennifer Quist

770 Howell Street

South St. Paul, MN 55116
(651) 456-8608

Bilingual Babies, LLC
Jennifer Quist

5101 France Avenue S
Minneapolis, MN 55410

(612) 886-2453

Uhane Lani, LLC *

Prachi Bawaskar

18390 58th Ave N

Plymouth, Minnesota, 55446

(716)390-9820

Wisconsin

Olivia, Inc.**

Nicholas Plummer

4600 North Port Washington Road
Glendale, WI 53212

(414) 436-9227

Olivia, Inc.

Nicholas Plummer
4114 N Oakland Ave
Shorewood, WI 53211
(414) 436-9227

Tuskerz, Inc.
Heather Reekie

6 Odana Court
Madison, WI 53705
(608) 845-1328

* As of December 31, 20232024, this Franchise Agreement has been signed but the Outlet had
not opened as of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document.
** This outlet opened after December 31, 2024, but before the issuance date of the Disclosure

Document.

Casa-de-Corazon®2024



AFFILIATE OWNED CENTERS:

State Address

Minnesota 5101 Erance Avenue South
Edina; MN-55410
felreles

4000 West 76 Street, Suite 300
Edina, MN 55435

(952) 846-8656

8351 Elm Creek Boulevard N.
Maple Grove, MN 55369
(763) 416-3992

3928 Nicollet Avenue
Minneapolis, MN 55409
(612) 824-7831

970 34" Avenue, NW
Rochester, MN 55901

(507) 735-6532

FORMER FRANCHISEES WHO HAD A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT TERMINATED,
CANCELED, NOT RENEWED, OR WHO OTHERWISE VOLUNTARILY OR
INVOLUNTARILY CEASED TO DO BUSINESS UNDER THEIR FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT DURING THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20232024, OR
WHO HAS NOT COMMUNICATED WITH US WITHIN 10 WEEKS OF THE
ISSUANCE DATE OF THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT:

digpesels

hild - - line. LLC
NiekKamp
Crystal. MN (763-300-4222)
None
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Member and Board of Directors
Casa Franchising, LLC
St. Louis Park1, Minnesota

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Casa Franchising, LLC (a Minnesota single member
Limited Liability Company) which comprise the Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 and
the related Statements of Income (Loss) and Member’s Equity, and Cash Flows for the years ended and the
related Notes to the Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Casa Franchising, LLC as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Casa Franchising,
LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Casa Franchising, LLC’s ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

600 Hwy 169 South, Suite 300
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55426
Phone 7635452353 | Fax 763 354 7059 www.tdhcd.com



Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of Casa Franchising, LLC’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Casa Franchising, LLC’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Fhrssean Dby Heile bovdlant podgg, Jne .

Minneapolis, MN
March 8, 2025
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Assets
Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid commissions
Due from related party
Total current assets

Other assets
Note receivable

Total other assets

Total assets
Liabilities and Member's Equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue - franchise fee
Due to related party

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities, less current maturities
Deferred revenue - franchise fee

Total liabilities
Member's equity

Total liabilities and member's equity

See Notes to Financial Statements

Casa Franchising, LLC
Balance Sheets

December 31

2024 2023 2022
$ 95,815 $ 79,747 199,035
181,020 178,733 111,086

48,534 15,987 17,115

9,243 - ]

6,400 - 4,199

341,012 274,467 331,435

233,120 214,188 :
233,120 214,188 _

$ 574,132 $ 488,655 331,435
$ 67,619 $ 136,762 94,893
130,314 119,931 57,570

: 160,000 :

197,933 416,693 152,463

57,673 22,803 14,275

255,606 439,496 166,738

318,526 49,159 164,697

$ 574,132 $ 488,655 331,435




Casa Franchising, LL.C
Statements of Income (Loss) and Member's Equity
Years Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Revenues
Franchise fees $ 24,747 2.1 % $ 69,111 83 % $ 270 - %
Brand fund fees 386,181 32.9 316,551 38.0 333,990 41.7
Royalty fees 747,189 63.7 434,181 52.2 448,961 56.2
Technology fees 10,000 9 - - - -
Training fees 4,678 4 12,368 1.5 14,297 1.8
Sales of products - - - - 2,776 3
Total revenues 1,172,795 100.0 832,211 100.0 800,294 100.0
Cost of goods sold
Franchise curriculum 13,053 1.1 38,869 4.7 7,889 1.0
Total cost of goods sold 13,053 1.1 38,869 4.7 7,889 1.0
Gross profit 1,159,742 98.9 793,342 95.3 792,405 99.0
Operating expenses
Bank charges 70 - 25 - - -
Credit loss expense - - 9,728 1.2 - -
Office supplies 1,061 A 1,004 1 195 -
Meals 76 - - - - -
Dues and memberships 600 - - - 3,690 .5
Insurance 22,169 1.9 19,165 2.3 17,190 2.1
Advertising 276,136 23.5 264,633 31.8 303,582 379
Background checks 6,766 .6 8,695 1.0 890 .1
Business development 9,000 8 12,140 1.5 20,628 2.6
Technology fees 77,393 6.6 74,280 8.9 40,641 5.1
Training 6,030 .5 8,728 1.0 8,232 1.0
Commissions 2,007 2 - - 7,000 9
Travel 20,539 1.8 16,096 1.9 13,629 1.6
Miscellaneous 32,548 2.8 16,913 2.0 15,769 2.0
Management fees 422,097 36.0 325,909 39.2 239,746 30.0
Corporate overhead allocation 38,744 33 - - - -
Consulting and professional fees 61,552 52 188,865 22.7 59,865 7.5
Total operating expenses 976,788 83.3 946,181 113.6 731,057 91.3
Income (loss) from operations 182,954 15.6 (152,839) (18.3) 61,348 7.7
Other income (expense)
Rewards income 2,481 2 2,704 3 2,317 3
Interest income 18,932 1.6 14,188 1.7 - -
Total other income (expense) 21,413 1.8 16,892 2.0 2,317 3
Net income (loss) 204,367 174 %  (135,947) (16.3) % 63,665 8.0 %
Member's equity
Beginning of year 49,159 164,697 216,032
Capital contributions 65,000 20,409 -
Distributions - - (115,000)
End of year $ 318,526 $ 49,159 $ 164,697

See Notes to Financial Statements



Casa Franchising, LL.C

Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Credit loss expense
Accrued interest on note receivable
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid commissions
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue - brand fund fees
Deferred revenue - franchise fees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Note receivable advance
Net advances (payments) on due from related party
Receipts from repayment of notes receivable
Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Member capital contributions
Member distributions
(Payments) proceeds from due to related party - net
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash

Beginning of year
End of year

See Notes to Financial Statements

5
Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
204,367 $ (135947) $ 63,665
- 9,728 -
(18,932) (14,188) -
(2,287) (77,375) (57,420)
(32,547) 1,128 (12,240)
(9,243) - -
(69,143) 41,869 47,775
- - (49,665)
45,253 70,889 69,730
117,468 (103,896) 61,845
- (200,000) -
(6,400) 4,199 (3,249)
(6,400) (195,801) (3,249)
65,000 20,409 -
- - (115,000)
(160,000) 160,000 -
(95,000) 180,409 (115,000)
16,068 (119,288) (56,404)
79,747 199,035 255,439
95,815 $ 79,747 $ 199,035




Casa Franchising, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business description

Casa Franchising, LLC (the Company), located in St. Louis Park, Minnesota, is a Minnesota limited liability
company formed on June 20, 2016. The Company offers franchises for the establishment, development, and
operation of Spanish immersion intercultural early childhood learning centers that provide educational programs
to children between six weeks and five years of age. These centers are operated under the Casa de Corazon®
service mark and logo.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) as codified by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.

Franchising

The Company executes franchise agreements that set the terms of its arrangement with each franchisee. The
agreements cover a ten-year period. The franchise agreements require the franchisee to pay an initial, non-
refundable fee of $70,000. Each franchisee is required to pay a monthly royalty fee of 7% of monthly gross
revenue. Each franchisee is also required to pay a monthly brand fund fee of 2% of monthly gross revenue and a
monthly technology fee of $500. The monthly royalty fees and the monthly brand fund fees become due
following the first full month after the commencement of operations. Subject to the Company’s approval and
payment of a renewal fee totaling $7,500, a franchisee may generally renew its agreement upon its expiration
subject to satisfaction of certain conditions. Direct costs of sales and servicing of franchise agreements are
charged to operating expenses as incurred.

Revenue recognition

The Company accounts for revenue in accordance with FASB ASU No. 2019-09, Revenue from contracts with
Customers (Topic 606), implemented from inception.

Performance obligations

A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the client and is the
unit of accounting in Topic 606. A contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation
and recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. For contracts with multiple
performance obligations, the Company allocates the contract’s transaction price to each performance obligation
based on the relative standalone selling price. The primary method used to estimate standalone selling price is the
expected cost plus a margin approach, under which the Company forecasts their expected costs of satisfying a
performance obligation and then add an appropriate margin for that distinct good or service based on margins for
similar services sold on a standalone basis. While determining relative standalone selling price and identifying
separate performance obligations require judgment, generally relative standalone selling prices and the separate
performance obligations are readily identifiable as the Company sells those performance obligations
unaccompanied by other performance obligations.



Casa Franchising, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022
NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Franchise revenue

Franchise revenues consist of the initial franchise fee and renewal fees. The Company has identified the following
performance obligations in connection with the initial franchise fee:

1. Intellectual property license
2. Commission or referral bonus
3. Site selection

4. Curriculum materials

5. Background checks

6. Training

7.

Pre-opening services includes providing services (e.g. advertising, budgeting, grand opening, and a food
board) to the franchisee to assist in opening and operating for the first three to four months.

Each of the identified performance obligations is considered to be a series of distinct services transferred over
time. While the underlying activities may vary from day to day, the nature of the commitments are the same each
day, and the franchisee can independently benefit from each day's services.

Under ASC 606, the intellectual property license portion of the initial and renewal fees, and renewal fees are
recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective franchise agreement. Under the
previous standard, initial franchise and renewal fees were recognized as revenue when the Company has provided
substantially all significant services, which is generally when the location begins operations. Consideration received
in advance of performing all significant services is included in deferred revenue and recorded as a liability.

Revenue from brand fund fees is deferred and classified as a liability until earned. Brand fund fees are computed
as a percentage of gross revenue earned by the franchisee.

Revenue from royalties is recognized in the period in which the franchisee earns the revenue upon which this fee
is based. Royalties are computed as a percentage of gross revenue earned by the franchisee.

Revenue from technology fees is recognized monthly on a straight-line basis over the period the services are
provided.

Training fee revenue is considered a separate performance obligation from the franchise fee and is recognized
after completion of the training services.

Revenue from product sales is recognized in the period in which the sale is made.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

The Company capitalizes direct and incremental costs, principally consisting of commissions, associated with the
sale of franchises and amortizes them over the term of the franchise agreement.



Casa Franchising, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and such differences could be material.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company did not hold any
cash equivalents at December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. At times throughout the year, the Company’s cash
balances may exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits. As of December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022, the Company did not have cash deposits in excess of the federally insured limit, respectively. The Company
has not experienced any losses from such accounts.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable evolve in the normal course of business. It is the policy of management to review the
outstanding receivable balance at year end, as well as the credit loss write-offs experienced in the past, and
establish an allowance for credit losses for amounts deemed uncollectible. The Company believes no allowance
for credit losses is necessary as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. Normal accounts receivable are due net
30 days from the invoice date. Extended terms may be offered on a per customer basis. The Company accrues
interest on past due accounts based on terms on a per contract basis.

Income taxes

The Company, with the consent of its member, has elected under the Internal Revenue Code to be an S
corporation effective January 1, 2022. In lieu of corporation income taxes, the member is taxed on the Company’s
taxable income or losses. Therefore, these statements do not include any provision for corporation income taxes,
refunds, or deferred income taxes. For state tax purposes the member is taxed on the proportionate share of the
Company’s taxable income.

Uncertain tax positions

Management has determined that the Company does not have any uncertain tax positions and associated
unrecognized benefits that materially impact the financial statements or related disclosures. Since tax matters are
subject to some degree of uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the Company’s tax filings will not be
challenged by the taxing authorities and that the Company or its member will not be subject to additional tax,
penalties, and interest as a result of such challenge. Generally, the Company’s tax filings remain open for three
years. The Company has adopted the policy of expensing any interest or penalties related to uncertain tax
positions in other expense on the Statements of Income (Loss) and Member’s Equity. For the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, there were no such interest or penalty expenses.

Advertising costs

Advertising and marketing costs are generally charged to operations in the year incurred and amounted to
$276,136, $264,633, and $303,582 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.



Casa Franchising, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments and credit losses

The financial instruments of the Company consist of accounts receivable, due from related party, note receivable,
accounts payable, deferred revenue, and due to related party. It is management’s opinion that the Company is not
exposed to significant interest rate or credit risks arising from these instruments. Unless otherwise noted, the fair
values of these financial instruments approximate its carrying value.

On January 1, 2023, the Company adopted FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic
326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, and all related subsequent amendments thereto.
This ASU replaced the incurred loss method of measuring financial assets with an expected loss method, which is
referred to as the current expected credit loss (CECL) method. CECL requires an estimate of credit losses over the
life of the financial asset using historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable
forecasts. For the Company, the ASU applies to the measurement of its accounts receivable. Accounts receivable
are now presented by using an allowance for credit losses to reduce the receivables balances to the net amount
expected to be collected over the lives of the receivables. The Company adopted the new standard using the
modified retrospective approach. For the Company, there was no transition adjustment related to the adoption of
CECL.

Leases

ASC 842 requires a lessee to recognize a liability to make lease payments and an asset with respect to its right to
use the underlying asset for the lease term.

Leases are to be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense
recognition in the Statements of Income (Loss) and Member’s Equity.

ASU 2016-02 defines a lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of
identified property, plant, or equipment for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To determine whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of the identified asset for a period of time, the customer has to have
both (1) the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the identified asset and (2)
the right to direct the use of the identified asset, a contract does not contain an identified asset if the supplier has a
substantive right to substitute such asset ("the leasing criteria). Management only reassesses its determination if
the terms and conditions of the contract are changed.

Management determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are included in right of use
(ROU) assets, and lease liability obligations are included in the Balance Sheets, except for those that qualify for
the short-term scope exception of 12 months or less. ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for
the lease term and lease liability obligations represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease
payments over the lease term.

As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 the Company was not party to any lease agreements in which it was
the lessor or the lessee.

Subsequent events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 8, 2025, the date which the financial statements were
available to be issued.
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Casa Franchising, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022
NOTE 2 — FRANCHISING

Franchise revenue consisted of the following:

Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Franchise revenues

Revenue, initial fees $ 24,747 $ 69,111 $ 270
Brand fund fees 165,968 100,842 177,938
Royalty fees 580,881 352,947 448,961
Technology fees 10,000 - -
Training fees 4,678 12,368 14,297
Sales of products - - 2,776
Total franchise revenues $ 786,274 $ 535,268 $ 644,242

Related party franchise

revenues:
Brand fund fees 220,213 215,709 156,052
Royalty fees 166,308 81,234 -
Total related party franchise
revenues $ 386,521 S 296,943 S 156,052
Total revenues $ 1,172,795 S 832,211 $ 800,294

Information about the number of franchised offices is as follows:
Year Ended
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Franchised offices:

Opened 1 3 0
Closed 0) 0) (0)
Sold — not in operation 1 3 0
In operation as of December 31* 10 9 6

*Four of the current locations are owned and operated by an affiliate of the Company.
NOTE 3 - NOTE RECEIVABLE

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company entered into a note receivable agreement with Tuskerz
Inc., a party external to the Company. The Company has lent a principal amount of $200,000 to the borrower. The
note bears interest at an annual rate of 7.5% per annum and is adjusted on January 1 of each calendar year prior to
the maturity date to the prime rate of interest published by the Wall Street Journal on the last business day prior to
such date. The interest rate as of December 31, 2024, and 2023 was 8.5% and 7.5%, respectively. Interest that
accrues in advance of the initial payment date is capitalized, adding to the principal balance. Monthly payments
commence on September 1, 2026, in the amount of $4,554, which includes principal and interest. The payments
are structured to continue until the full amount of the principal and the accrued interest is paid in full. The final
loan payment is due on July 1, 2032, at which time any remaining principal and interest on the note is due in full.
The receipt of these payments is contingent upon the borrower's financial ability to pay as agreed, and the
Company has evaluated the credit risk associated with this note receivable, considering the borrower's financial
condition and payment history. The Company evaluated the note for collectability and determined that no
allowance for credit loss was necessary as of the reporting date.



Casa Franchising, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 3 - NOTE RECEIVABLE (continued)

This note receivable is accounted for under ASC 310, Receivables, which requires that such financial instruments
be recognized at the amount lent and subsequently measured at amortized cost. The note is subject to impairment

if it is determined that it is probable that not all contracted payments will be collected. The outstanding balance of

the principal and accrued interest as of December 31, 2024, and 2023, is $233,120 and $214,188, respectively.

The principal repayments expected to be received under the terms of the agreement are as follows:

Year ending December 31 Amount
2025 $ -
2026 11,724
2027 36,977
2028 39,847
2029 42,941
Thereafter 132,568
Total $ 264,057

The total balance includes capitalized interest over the life of the note of $64,057.

NOTE 4 - CONTRACT BALANCES

Contract liabilities are comprised of unamortized initial franchise fees received from franchisees, which are
presented as deferred revenues on the accompanying Balance Sheets. A summary of significant changes in

deferred revenues are as follows:

December 31

2024 2023 2022
Deferred revenues — beginning of year $ 142,734 $ 71,845 $ 2,115
Additions for initial franchise fees received 70,000 140,000 70,000
Revenue recognized during the year (24,747) (69,111) (270)
Deferred revenues — end of year $ 187,987 $ 142,734 $ 71,845

As of December 31, 2024, deferred revenues are expected to be recognized as revenue over the remaining term of

the associated franchise agreements as follows:

Year ending December 31: Amount
2025 $ 130,313
2026 7,367
2027 7,367
2028 7,367
2029 7,322
Thereafter 28,251

Total $ 187,987
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December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 4 - CONTRACT BALANCES (continued)

Deferred revenues consisted of the following:

December 31
2024 2023 2022
Franchise units not yet opened $ 169,878 $ 140,000 $ 70,000
Opened franchise units 18,109 2,734 1,845
Total $ 187,987 $ 142,734 $ 71,845

The direct and incremental costs, principally consisting of commissions, are included in the prepaid commissions
in the accompanying Balance Sheets. The direct and incremental costs expected to be recognized over the
remaining term of the associated franchise agreements are as follows:

Year Ended December 31 Amount
2025 $ 9,243
Total $ 9,243

NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, four, five, and three centers were in operation under common
ownership, respectively. The Company requires these locations to operate under the terms of the franchise
agreement related to the brand fund fee. The Company is also charging one of its locations brand fund and royalty
fees while it is in the process of being transitioned to a franchisee location. Sales to these locations comprised
33%, 36% and 19.5% of total sales for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.
Accounts receivable relating to these locations totaled $30,245, $34,017, and $12,968 at December 31, 2024,
2023, and 2022, respectively.

Accounts payable due to a related party under common ownership totaled $9,250, $82,352, and $52,973 for the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

Due to related parties

In the ordinary course of business, the Company periodically advances funds to and receives funds from entities
affiliated through common ownership. Advances to and from affiliates are noninterest bearing and are payable on
demand and, accordingly, have been classified as current liabilities. The balance due to related party amounted to
$0, $160,000, and $0 as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. The balance due from related party
amounted to $6,400, $0, and $4,199 as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

Management fee and overhead allocation

During the year ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company was charged a total of $460,841,
$325,909, $239,746 by Casa de Corazon, Inc., a related entity under common control, consisting of management
fees of $422,097, $325,909, $239,746 for executive oversight, strategic planning, and administrative support.
Also, an overhead allocation of $38,744, $0, and $0 for shared services such as accounting, marketing, HR, and
IT infrastructure for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. These charges were based
on internal cost allocation methodologies determined by management and may not necessarily reflect market-
based rates. As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company had an outstanding payable balance of
$9,250, $82,352, $52,973 to Casa de Corazon, Inc., included in accounts payable.



UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF,

AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED, MARCH
31,2025 ARE PREPARED WITHOUT

AN AUDIT. PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEES
OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE
ADVISED THAT NO CERTIFIED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED
THESE FIGURES OR EXPRESSED AN
OPINION WITH REGARD TO THE

CONTENT OR FORM.

Casa-de-Corazon®2024



Casa Franchising, LLC

Balance Sheet
As of February 28, 2025

Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts 139,506.36
Accounts Receivable 248,347.11
Other Current Assets 32,646.97
Total Current Assets $ 420,500.44
Other Assets 236,043.18
TOTAL ASSETS $ 656,543.62
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 144,072.31
Long-Term Liabilities 221,141.09
Total Liabilities $ 365,213.40
Equity 291,330.22

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 656,543.62



Casa Franchising, LLC

Profit and Loss
January - February, 2025

Total
Income 286,685.36
Cost of Goods Sold 49,404.04
Gross Profit 237,281.32
Expenses
Accounting 2,381.37
Advertising & Marketing 48,777.31
Commissions & Referrals 1,777.50
Computer, IT, Software, & Technology 13,632.29
Events 244 .34
HQ Overhead Allocation 13,570.68
Insurance 3,913.80
Legal & Professional 19,344.50
Management Fees 139,441.04
Meals - 50% 181.30
Office Supplies 117.51
Postage And Delivery 44.65
Professional Development 6,000.00
Prospecting 11,583.50
Travel 6,810.24
Total Expenses $ 267,820.03
Net Operating Income -$ 30,538.71
Other Income 3,341.81
Other Expenses 0.00
Net Other Income $ 3,341.81
Net Income -$ 27,196.90
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CASA DE CORAZON FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made the day of , 20, by and

between CASA FRANCHISING, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (“Franchisor”),

and (“Franchisee™).

INTRODUCTION

Franchisor and its affiliate have developed certain policies, procedures and techniques for
the operation of Spanish immersion intercultural early childhood learning centers under the Casa
de Corazon service mark that provide educational programs to children from six _(6) weeks to
five (5) years of age. These centers are identified by their Spanish immersion curriculum in all
classes as well as their natural organic meals made on-site for the students from Franchisor’s
proprietary recipes. Franchisor desires to grant to qualified persons franchises to use the
concepts, programs and methods of promotion developed by Franchisor and its affiliate to
develop and operate a Casa de Corazon center. Franchisee has made application to Franchisor
for a franchise and the application has been approved by Franchisor in reliance on all the
representations made in the application.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promise of the parties hereto, and
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1.) DEFINITIONS

The terms and phrases specified below shall have, for purposes of this Agreement, the
following meanings:

(a) “Competitive Business” shall mean any business that provides educational
services, including child care services, to children of any age between the ages of six (6)
weeks and five (5) years.

(b) “Designated Territory” shall mean the area described as such and identified in the
Rider to this Agreement.

(©) “Franchise” shall mean the right granted to Franchisee by Franchisor to use the
System of Operation and to use the Names and Marks selected, used, and promoted by
Franchisor to operate a Spanish immersion intercultural early childhood learning center
providing educational programs to children from six_(6) weeks to five (5) years of age
through a Spanish immersion curriculum specified by Franchisor and that provides
natural organic meals made on-site for the children from Franchisor’s proprietary recipes
or recipes otherwise meeting Franchisor’s standards.

(d) “Franchised Business” shall mean the business franchised under this Agreement
to operate utilizing the System of Operation and the Names and Marks.




(e) “Franchised Center” shall mean the early childhood learning center franchised
under this Agreement to operate utilizing the System of Operation and the Names and
Marks.

® “Gross Revenues” shall mean the total amount of revenues, income, receipts and
other fees received from all business activities taking place by or through the Franchised
Business, and all other services and products, if any, sold under the Names and Marks, or
otherwise related to the Franchised Business. There shall be excluded from “Gross
Revenues” amounts collected and remitted by Franchisee to any governmental taxing
authority in satisfaction of sales or occupation taxes.

(2) The term “including” shall mean “including, but not limited to.”

(h) “Names and Marks” shall mean the commercial trade names, trademarks, service
marks, domain names, and other commercial symbols, including associated logos, now or
hereafter selected, used or promoted by Franchisor and licensed to Franchisee for use in
connection with the System of Operation.

(1) “Restricted Area” shall mean the Designated Territory, a radius of ten (10) miles
from the Designated Territory, and a radius of ten (10) miles from any other Casa de
Corazon early childhood learning center in existence as of the date of termination,
expiration or assignment of this Agreement. If there is no Designated Territory at the
time of termination or assignment of this Agreement, the Restricted Area shall mean the
Search Area, a radius of ten (10) miles from the Search Area, and a radius of ten (10)
miles from any Casa de Corazon early childhood learning center in existence as of the
date of termination or assignment of this Agreement.

) “System of Operation” shall mean the business plans and methods developed by
Franchisor and its affiliates to be used in connection with a Spanish immersion
intercultural early childhood learning center providing educational programs to children
from six_(6) weeks to five (§) years of age through a Spanish immersion curriculum
specified by Franchisor that provides natural organic meals made on-site for the students
from the Franchisor’s proprietary recipes or recipes otherwise meeting Franchisor’s
standards. The “System of Operation” includes standards, specifications, methods,
procedures, techniques, and management systems, all of which may be changed,
improved and further developed from time to time by Franchisor, but specifically
excludes any employee policies or procedures that Franchisor may make available to
Franchisee for its optional use during the Term of the Franchise.

(k) “Term of the Franchise” shall mean the initial term of the Franchise.

2)) GRANT OF FRANCHISE AND RENEWAL OF FRANCHISE

(a) Initial Term - Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, Franchisor grants to
Franchisee a Franchise for an initial term of ten (10) years, commencing on the date of
this Agreement, to utilize the System of Operation and to use the Names and Marks of
Franchisor in the conduct of a Spanish immersion intercultural early childhood learning
center providing educational programs to children from six (6) weeks to five (5) years of
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age through a Spanish immersion curriculum specified by Franchisor and that provides
natural organic meals made on-site for the students from Franchisor’s proprietary recipes
or recipes otherwise meeting Franchisor’s standards.

(b) Renewal - Franchisee may renew the Franchise for an additional term of ten (10)
years, subject to the satisfaction of any conditions imposed by Franchisor upon renewal,
including those set forth in Section 2(c) below.

(©) Conditions - Franchisee must satisfy such conditions for renewal as Franchisor
may impose, including that upon expiration of the Term of the Franchise, Franchisee
shall have: (a) complied with all provisions of this Agreement; (b) operated the
Franchised Business utilizing and conforming to the System of Operation; (c) utilized
exclusively the Names and Marks in the operation of the Franchised Business; (d)
upgraded the Franchised Center, including equipment, to meet Franchisor’s standards;
and (e) provided Franchisor with evidence of control of the premises for the Center for
the renewal term. Additionally, Franchisee shall:

(1) Provided Franchisor at least two hundred ten (210) days prior written
notice of its election to renew the Franchise; and

(i1) Within thirty (30) days after delivery to Franchisee of all agreements and
documents required by Franchisor for renewal: (a) executed Franchisor’s
then current form of franchise agreement offered to prospective new
franchisees and all other agreements and legal instruments and documents
then customarily employed by Franchisor in the grant of Franchises to
prospective new franchisees, including a general release; and (b) paid to
Franchisor a renewal fee of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
($7,500).

(d) Renewal Acknowledgments - Franchisee acknowledges that the right of renewal
set forth herein does not give Franchisee the right to renew any specific provisions of this
Agreement, and Franchisee recognizes that the terms of franchise agreements utilized by
Franchisor upon renewal are likely to be substantially different than the terms offered by
Franchisor as of the date hereof. Franchisee further acknowledges that the failure to meet
any conditions of renewal imposed by Franchisor, including those set forth herein, shall
be deemed an election by Franchisee not to renew the Franchise.

(e) Holdover - If Franchisee does not sign a new franchise agreement prior to
expiration of the Term of the Franchise, and Franchisee continues to accept the benefits
of this Agreement after the expiration of this Agreement, then at the option of Franchisor
this Agreement shall be deemed to: (i) have expired as of the date of its stated expiration,
with Franchisee then operating without a franchise to do so and in violation of
Franchisor’s rights; or (ii) be continuing on a month-to-month basis (the “Interim
Period”) until one party provides the other with written notice of such party’s intention to
terminate the Interim Period, in which case the Interim Period will terminate thirty (30)
days after receipt of the notice to terminate the Interim Period. Notwithstanding anything
set forth herein to the contrary: (x) all obligations of Franchisee shall remain in full force
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and effect during the Interim Period as if the Term of the Franchise had not expired; and
(y) all obligations and restrictions imposed on Franchisee upon expiration of this
Agreement shall be deemed to take effect upon termination of the Interim Period.

3) SEARCH AREA; LOCATION; CONSTRUCTION

(a) Search Area - Franchisee will have the right to operate the Franchised Center at
one (1) location only. The Franchised Center will be located at a site selected by
Franchisee and approved by Franchisor. If the site has not been approved as of the date
Franchisor executes this Agreement, the Franchised Center must be located in the
non-exclusive “Search Area” set forth in the Rider to this Agreement. Franchisee
acknowledges that Franchisor may grant others the right to seek sites within the foregoing
area, and that Franchisee acquires no exclusive or priority rights in such area. If
Franchisor has not approved a site for the Franchised Center at the time this Agreement is
executed, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement if Franchisee fails to obtain
Franchisor’s approval of a site within one hundred twenty (120) days of the date of this
Agreement.

(b) Site Selection - It shall be the responsibility of Franchisee to identify, and
ultimately acquire, an appropriate site, acceptable to Franchisor, for the operation of the
Franchised Center. As Franchisee identifies prospective sites, it shall notify Franchisor,
and Franchisor will review criteria regarding such prospective sites as Franchisor deems
appropriate. Franchisee will assist Franchisor by providing Franchisor any information
Franchisor may request regarding any prospective sites.

(1) Franchisor may recommend potential sites to Franchisee, but the
responsibility to ultimately select a site for the Franchised Center belongs
to Franchisee, and Franchisee, in consideration for any assistance
Franchisor provides with respect to the identification or approval of
potential sites, acknowledges and agrees Franchisor shall not be
responsible for Franchisee’s results in operating at any particular site that
may have been recommended, reviewed, or approved by Franchisor.

(i)  Following Franchisor’s approval of the site, Franchisee authorizes
Franchisor to amend the Rider to this Agreement, indicating the approved
location for the Franchised Center, and the Designated Territory.

(©) Governmental Approvals - Franchisee shall obtain all required municipal and
other governmental approvals and permits necessary to construct the Franchised Center
in accordance with applicable law.

(d) Location - Franchisee shall operate the Franchised Business from the Franchised
Center, the location of which shall be approved by Franchisor upon execution of this
Agreement. The Franchised Center must meet Franchisor’s requirements, including
those related to location, size of the facility, and available parking. Upon approval of the
site by Franchisor, Franchisor shall complete the Rider to this Agreement indicating the
address of the Franchised Center and the Designated Territory, and Franchisee and
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Franchisor shall execute the Rider. If Franchisee desires to operate the Franchised
Business from a location other than that indicated in the Rider, and Franchisor approves
the new location, Franchisee authorizes Franchisor to amend the Rider to change the
location to the address of the new site approved by Franchisor. Franchisee shall not use
the Franchised Center to operate any business other than the Franchised Business.
Franchisee may not operate the Franchised Business from more than one location.

(e) Design of the Franchised Center - Franchisor shall provide to Franchisee a sample
layout for the interior of a typical Casa de Corazon® early childhood learning center,
including a-& 3D rendering of a center and a set of typical preliminary plans and décor
specifications. Franchisee shall, at its own expense, employ architects, engineers, or
others as may be necessary to complete, adapt, and modify the sample plans and
specifications for the Franchised Center to fit the location. Franchisee shall submit to
Franchisor a complete set of final plans and specifications prior to commencing
construction of the Franchised Center. Franchisor shall review such plans and
specifications and approve or provide comments to Franchisee on the plans and
specifications. Franchisee shall not commence construction of the Franchised Center
until Franchisor approves in writing the final plans and specifications to be used in
constructing the Franchised Center. Franchisor shall consult with Franchisee, to the
extent that Franchisor deems necessary, on the construction and equipping of the
Franchised Center, but it shall be and remain the sole responsibility of Franchisee to
diligently design, construct, equip, and otherwise ready and open the Franchised Center
on a timely basis.

® Construction Obligations of Franchisee; Opening - Franchisee shall use a licensed
general contractor satisfactory to Franchisor to perform construction work at the
Franchised Center. Franchisor shall not be responsible for delays in the construction,
equipping, or decoration of the Franchised Center or for any loss resulting from the center
design or construction since Franchisor has no control over the landlord or developer and
the numerous construction and/or related problems which could occur and delay the
opening of the Franchised Center. Franchisor must approve in writing any and all
changes in any center plans prior to construction of the Franchised Center or the
implementation of such changes. Franchisor shall have access to the location of the
Franchised Center while work is in progress and may require such reasonable alterations
or modifications of the construction of the Franchised Center as Franchisor deems
necessary. Franchisee shall not open the Franchised Center if the Franchised Center does
not conform to the plans and specifications approved by Franchisor, including changes
thereof approved by Franchisor. Franchisee shall correct any unauthorized variance from
the approved plans and specifications promptly and open the Franchised Center within
eighteen (18) months after the date of this Agreement.

(2) Fixtures, Leasehold Improvements and Equipment - Franchisor will provide to
Franchisee specifications for leasehold improvements, fixtures and equipment for the
Franchised Center. All leasehold improvements used in the Franchised Center shall be
constructed according to the exact specifications of Franchisor in effect at the time the
improvements are made. All equipment installed in the Franchised Center must also
meet the exact specifications of Franchisor, including brand and model number, where
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designated. Franchisor may designate specific or approved suppliers from whom such
items can be purchased. If Franchisor designates a specific supplier for any items,
Franchisee must purchase the items from the specific, designated supplier. Franchisee
acknowledges that designated, specific suppliers may include Franchisor or its affiliates.

(h) Exterior and Interior Signs - All signs used in the Franchised Center must
conform to Franchisor’s sign criteria at the time the signage or display is installed as to
type, color, size, design, and location. All signs must be approved in writing by
Franchisor prior to installation. Prior to opening the Franchised Center Franchisee shall
purchase from Franchisor’s affiliate the “Internal Brand Package” which shall contain
certain indoor signage, plaguesa food board and other branded items—feruse-insidethe
FEranchised-Center. All of such items must be installed prior to opening of the Franchised
Center. Franchisee shall pay the then-current cost for the Internal Brand Package upon
receipt of an invoice from Franchisor or its affiliate.

(1) Indemnification of Franchisor - Franchisee is strictly responsible for the acts or
omissions of its contractors regarding compliance with all specifications and
requirements provided for by Franchisor, and Franchisor shall have no responsibility for
such acts or omissions. Franchisor shall not be liable for any loss or damage arising from
the design or plan of the Franchised Center. Franchisee shall indemnify Franchisor for
any loss, cost, or expense, including attorneys’ fees, that may be sustained by Franchisor
because of the acts or omissions of Franchisee’s contractors or arising out of the design
or construction of the Franchised Center.

() Alterations - During the Term of the Franchise, the landscaping, floor plan,
interior and exterior design, furnishings and equipment of the Franchised Center shall not
be altered or modified, without the prior written approval of Franchisor.

(k) Remodeling - Franchisee shall be required to periodically make reasonable capital
expenditures to remodel, modernize and re-decorate the Franchised Center so that the
premises reflect the current image intended to be portrayed by Casa de Corazon® early
childhood learning centers. All remodeling, modernization and redecoration of the
Franchised Center must be done in accordance with the standards and specifications
prescribed by Franchisor from time to time and with the prior written approval of
Franchisor. All replacements must conform to Franchisor’s then current quality
standards and specifications and must be approved by Franchisor in writing. Franchisor
may inspect, but shall not be obligated to inspect, such work at any time to determine that
the work is done in accordance with Franchisor’s approved plans and specifications. In
addition to the remodel which may be required at the time of renewal, Franchisor may
require Franchisee to remodel, modernize and re-decorate the Franchised Center at any
time during the Term of the Franchise.

) Relocation of the Franchised Center - During the Term of the Franchise,
Franchisee shall not change the site of the Franchised Center without Franchisor’s prior
written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided, however, if
Franchisor approves a change in the location of the Franchised Center, Franchisor may
also change the Designated Territory to conform to its then current standards for the grant
of similar territories.
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(m)  Franchise Advertising - Franchisor may require Franchisee to display signage in
its Franchised Center advertising Franchisor’s Casa de Corazon franchises for sale.
Franchisor shall pay for any such signage. Franchisee shall, at all times, place and
maintain such signage at the location inside its Franchised Center as Franchisor may
designate from time to time.

4.) LEASING; PROPERTY RESTRICTIONS; SALE

(a) Lease or Sublease:teaseRider Approval - Franchisee shall provide Franchisor a
copy of the lease or sublease for the premises in which the Franchised Center will be
operated prior to its execution so that Franchisor can satisfy itself that it meets
Franchisor’s requirements, including that its terms conform to those in the Lease Rider
attached to this Agreement. Franchisor shall have no other responsibility to review said
lease or sublease or to make any recommendations regarding the terms thereof.

(b) Lease Rider - Franchisee shall also provide Franchisor within five (5) days of
execution or amendment, a copy of the lease or sublease, including the Lease Rider, and
any amendments thereto. Franchisee shall ensure that the Lease Rider attached to this
Agreement i1s executed by the Franchisee and the landlord for the Franchised Center
contemporaneous with the execution of the lease or sublease for the Franchised Center.

(bc)  Declaration - If Franchisee or an affiliate will own the real property underlying the
Franchised Center, in addition to the Lease Rider, Franchisee or its affiliate, as
applicable, shall execute the Declaration of Restrictions, Notice of Option (the
“Declaration”) attached to this Agreement restricting the use of the premises for a period
of two (2) vears after the Franchised Center is no longer operated at the location and
providing notice of Franchisor’s purchase option as set forth herein. The Declaration
shall be executed by owner of the property, at the same time the lease or sublease for the
premises is executed, and shall be provided to Franchisor for recording immediately after
its execution.

(d) Assignment/New Lease; Purchase Option - Franchisor’s rights as they relate to
assumption of the lease or sublease for the Franchised Center or the execution of a new
lease are set forth in Section 19(b)(v) below. Franchisor’s rights related to its option to
purchase the assets of the Franchised Business and the premises of the Center are set
forth in Sections 19(a) and (b) below.

5.) DESIGNATED TERRITORY

(a) Designated Territory - During the term of this Agreement, and provided that
Franchisee is not in default under this Agreement or any other agreement between
Franchisor and Franchisee or any Franchisor affiliate, and except as provided below,
Franchisor will not grant to anyone else a Franchise to operate, and will not itself operate,
under the Casa de Corazon name, an early childhood learning center that is physically
located in the Designated Territory. Franchisee acknowledges that the foregoing



restrictions do not prevent Franchisor or its affiliates from any activity not specifically set
forth in such restrictions, including:

(1) Operating, or allowing others to operate, similar or identical businesses
within the Designated Territory if such businesses do not operate under
the Names and Marks or operating, or allowing others to operate, similar
or identical businesses physically located outside the Designated Territory,
whether under the Names and Marks or other trade or service marks even
if the businesses compete with the Franchised Business;

(1)  Operating, or allowing others to operate, businesses inside the Designated
Territory under the Names and Marks that are not competitive with the
Franchised Business;

(ii1))  Selling products that may be provided to Franchisee for use in its
Franchised Business to other parties, whether located in the Designated
Territory or otherwise and whether under the Names and Marks or
otherwise;

(iv)  Selling goods or services, or granting others the right to sell goods or
services, similar to or competitive with those sold by the Franchised
Business, whether using the Names and Marks or other trademarks or
service marks, through other distribution channels (including, the Internet,
catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing) both inside and
outside the Designated Territory;

(v) Acquiring businesses that are similar to the Franchised Business;

(vi)  Operating or allowing other to operate businesses located inside or outside
of the Designated Territory that sell to locations inside or outside of the
Designated Territory Franchisor’s proprietary curriculum, its recipes or
both, either under the Names and Marks or otherwise; and

(vii) The sale of Franchisor or substantially all its assets, to any third party
regardless whether such third party operates, or franchises the operation
of, businesses similar to the Franchised Business.

(b) Acknowledgments - Franchisee acknowledges: (i) that the restrictions set forth in
this Section do not prevent Franchisor or its affiliates from any activity not specifically
set forth in such restrictions; (ii) Franchisor cannot prevent another franchisee from
soliciting clients inside Franchisee’s Designated Territory; and (iii) Franchisee is not
prohibited from soliciting clients located outside of its Designated Territory.

(c) Loss of Rights. - If on the second anniversary of the date Franchisee opened its
Franchised Center, the Center does not have actual student enrollment equal to 90% of its
actual capacity on a full-time equivalency basis or if annually thereafter Franchisee does
not maintain student enrollment at the Center of at least 90% of its actual capacity on a
full-time equivalency basis, in either case as determined by the number of students
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Franchisees is licensed for, Franchisor can decrease the size of the Designated Territory.
If Franchisor exercises either of these rights it will provide Franchisee with notice of its
decision and the results of that decision. The taking of any of the actions permitted in
this Section shall not suspend or release Franchisee from any obligation that would
otherwise be owed to Franchisor or its affiliates under the terms of this Agreement or
otherwise nor shall Franchisee assert that the taking of any such actions shall act as an
actual or constructive termination of this Agreement.

6.) INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE

In consideration for the grant of the Franchise to Franchisee, Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor an initial franchise fee in the amount set forth on the Rider to this Agreement (the
“Initial Franchise Fee”). The Initial Franchise Fee shall be due and payable upon execution of
this Agreement. The Initial Franchise Fee shall be deemed to have been earned by Franchisor at
the time it is due and shall not be refundable.

7.) ROYALTIES

On or before the tenth (10th) day of each month, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a
monthly nonrefundable royalty fee (the “Royalty Fee”) equal to seven percent (7%) of the Gross
Revenues of the Franchised Business for the prior month. The Royalty Fee shall be due and
payable beginning on the tenth (10th) day of the month following the first full month after the
commencement of operation of the Franchised Business for the prior full month and any prior
partial month and continuing thereafter for each subsequent month. The Franchised Business
shall be deemed to be operating on the date certified as such by Franchisor.

8.) MARKETING AND PROMOTION

(a) Brand Fund Contribution - Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a monthly “Brand
Fund Contribution” equal to two percent (2%) of the previous month’s Gross Revenues
of the Franchised Business. The Brand Fund Contribution shall be due and payable
beginning at the same time the Royalty Fee becomes due and payable.

(b) Use of System Brand Fund - Reasenable-disbursementsDisbursements from the
Casa de Corazon Brand Fund (the “System Brand Fund”) shalimay be made-selely for the
payment of expenses incurred by Franchisor in connection with the general promotion of
the Names and Marks, including: (i) development and production of advertising and
promotional materials; (ii) the cost of formulating, developing and implementing
advertising campaigns, including Internet advertising and Internet search engine
campaigns and the cost to maintain and update Franchisor’s or its affiliates websites, web
pages, social media and social networking sites, profiles and accounts and search engine
optimization; (iii) the cost of formulating, developing and implementing promotional and
public relations programs, including advertising in trade publications; (iv) market
research; and (v) the cost of administering the System Brand Fund, including
professional fees, the cost of salaries and fringe benefits paid to personnel engaged in
administration or operation of the System Brand Fund andor paid to those performing
services that benefit, or on behalf of, the System Brand Fund, including creative services,
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and overhead related to all such persons; other administrative costs and direct expenses
the Franchisor incurs in activities related to the operation and administration of the
System Brand Fund. All interest, if any, earned by the System Brand Fund shall be used
for the payment of the foregoing expenses in connection with promotion of the Names
and Marks, before application of any principal to those expenses. Methods, media
employed, contents of advertising, and terms and conditions of advertising campaigns
and promotional programs shall be within the sole discretion of Franchisor. Franchisor
reserves the right to engage the professional services of an advertising agency owned by,
or affiliated with, Franchisor or any of its principals, to assist in developing and/or
placing advertising, and to compensate that agency. Disbursements from the System
Brand Fund shall not be made for the production or placement of advertising that is
principally for the purpose of marketing franchise licenses. Franchisor reserves the right
to dissolve the System Brand Fund but will not do so until all the monies in the System
Brand Fund have been expended or until monies have been rebated to the then-existing
franchisees operating under the Names and Marks on a pro-rata basis based upon their
contributions to the System Brand Fund during the preceding twelve (12) months.
Notwithstanding anything set forth herein to the contrary, Franchisor has no obligation to
conduct marketing and Franchisor has sole discretion to determine how, if any, monies in
the System Brand Fund will be spent. Franchisor is not required to use monies in the
System Brand Fund to benefit any individual market or franchisee.

(c) Marketing Materials - Prior to using any marketing or promotional materials,
advertisements, or other advertising not prepared by or at the direction of Franchisor,
Franchisee shall submit such items to Franchisor for its prior approval. If Franchisor
does not object to the use of such materials by Franchisee within ten (10) days after its
receipt of such materials, Franchisee shall be free to use such materials. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, Franchisee shall purchase from Franchisor or an affiliate of Franchisor all
printed tour packet materials used at the Center.

(d) Local Marketing; Minimum Advertising Requirements - At its own expense,
Franchisee shall conduct local marketing campaigns and promotional programs designed
primarily to promote the Franchised Business (“Local Marketing”). To that end: (a)
Franchisee shall spend prior to the opening of the Franchised Business at least Ten
Thousand Dollars ($10,000) to advertise the opening of the Franchised Business (the
“Minimum Opening Advertising Requirement”) on Local Marketing that has been
approved by Franchisor; and (b) Franchisee shall spend at least Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000) per year (the “Minimum Yearly Marketing Requirement”) on Local Marketing
that has been approved by Franchisor. Amounts spent by Franchisee to meet the
Minimum Opening Advertising Requirement shall not be credited against the Minimum
Yearly Marketing Requirement and shall be in addition to the amounts required to be
spent by Franchisee to meet the Minimum Opening Advertising Requirement.

Franchisee shall, upon request of Franchisor, provide Franchisor with receipts evidencing
Franchisee's expenditure of amounts to meet the Minimum Opening Advertising
Requirement or the Minimum Yearly Marketing Requirement, as requested by
Franchisor, on Local Marketing approved by Franchisor. If Franchisee fails to meet the
Minimum Opening Advertising Requirement within the timeframe set forth above, or the
Minimum Yearly Marketing Requirement in any given year, Franchisee shall, upon
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demand of Franchisor, pay to Franchisor the difference between the total amount required
to be spent to meet the Minimum Opening Advertising Requirement or the Minimum
Yearly Marketing Requirement, as applicable, and the amount(s) spent by Franchisee,
and Franchisor shall place such amount(s) in the System Brand Fund.

(e) Advertising Cooperative - At such time as Franchisor in its sole discretion may
determine, Franchisee shall join an advertising cooperative made up of other Casa de
Corazon franchisees (the “Local Cooperative”), as determined by Franchisor. In such
event, Franchisee shall be required to participate in the Local Cooperative on the terms
and conditions required by Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right to modify or
dissolve any Local Cooperative at any time.

) Website; Internet

(1) Franchisor shall provide Franchisee a webpage on Franchisor’s or its
affiliate’s website where Franchisee may advertise its Franchised
Business. This webpage shall be a template and Franchisee shall be
responsible for completing this page, including the payment of any costs
therefor. Franchisee may edit this webpage one time per month. Any and
all changes to the webpage must be approved by Franchisor prior to being
made and the webpage may contain only such information as Franchisor
may approve from time to time. Other than this webpage, Franchisee shall
not establish or maintain, or have established or maintained on its behalf,
either alone or in concert with others, any other digital or electronic
medium or method of communication, including a website, home page,
HTML document, Internet site, online directory, online business profile,
web page, review and opinion page or site, or social media or social
networking site, business networking site, hashtag, profile, avatar, account
or username relating to or making reference to Franchisor or the
Franchised Business (each, a “Social Media Presence”), unless otherwise
approved by Franchisor. Franchisee shall not offer, promote, or sell any
products or services or make use of any of Franchisor’s Names and Marks,
the Franchised Center, or the System of Operation, via any Social Media
Presence without Franchisor’s prior written approval

(11) Franchisee will comply with all directives from Franchisor with respect to
any Social Media Presence approved by Franchisor, including those
related to materials posted on any Social Media Presence, links to and
from any Social Media Presence, the use of the Names and Marks on any
Social Media Presence, provision to Franchisor of passwords and any
log-in credentials needed to access, remove, delete or modify any Social
Media Presence, and security for any Social Media Presence. In addition,
any Social Media Presence approved by Franchisor must be operated and
maintained by Franchisee in compliance with all provisions of this
Agreement, including those regarding the use of ecenfidential—and
proprietary—informationConfidential Information, as well as any and all

operating procedures, policies, standards and requirements that Franchisor
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may specify from time to time. Franchisee must also maintain any Social
Media Presence approved by Franchisor in compliance with all applicable
laws, rules, and regulations, including those applicable to copyright and
trademark, privacy, anti-defamation, and advertising and endorsements.
Franchisor reserves the right at any time, in its sole discretion, to itself, or
require Franchisee to, remove, delete or modify any Social Media
Presence, or any information, content or post thereon. Franchisor will
retain sole ownership of any Social Media Presence, as well as any
domain name related thereto and all content thereon, which includes all or
a portion of any of the Names and Marks, or any word, phrase or symbol
confusingly similar thereto or variant thereof, as part of the domain name,
username, account name, hashtag, profile or page reference (a “Franchisor
Identified Social Media Presence™).

(2) Photos, Videos and Electronic Records - Franchisor shall have the right to take
photographs, videos and electronic records of the Franchised Business, including the
Franchised Center, and associated vehicles and signage and to use such photographs,
videos and electronic records in any advertising or promotional material, in any form or
medium now existing or later developed. Franchisor may use the foregoing without
providing notice to Franchisee or receiving Franchisee’s consent, and Franchisor shall not
be obligated to make attribution or to compensate Franchisee for use of the foregoing.
Upon the request of Franchisor, Franchisee shall cooperate with Franchisor in taking and
arranging for such photographs, videos and electronic records and for obtaining the
necessary consents of or assignments from individuals depicted in or involved in such
photographs, videos and electronic records. Franchisee irrevocably assigns to Franchisor
its right, title, and interest, if any, in and to all such photographs, videos and electronic
records, together with all related intellectual property rights.

9.) METHOD OF PAYMENT/LATE PAYMENT CHARGES

(a) Electronic Funds Transfer - Franchisee shall remit Royalty Fees, Brand Fund
Contributions, and other amounts due to Franchisor or its affiliates via electronic-funds
transfer/direct debit or other similar means. Franchisee shall comply with all procedures
specified by Franchisor in this Section and in the Confidential Manual(s) with respect to
such transfers and deliver and execute such documents as may be necessary to facilitate
or accomplish payment by the method described in this Section.

(1) On or before the fifth (5th) day of each month throughout the Term of the
Franchise, beginning in the month following the first full month after the
commencement of operation of the Franchised Business, Franchisee shall
report to Franchisor on a form required by Franchisor the true and correct
Gross Revenues of the Franchised Business during the preceding month
(but in the first month, the report shall include all Gross Revenues
received by Franchisee from the date of this Agreement through the end of
the preceding month, all of which shall be deemed received in the
preceding month). Franchisee shall authorize Franchisor to initiate debit
entries and/or credit correction entries to a designated checking or savings
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account for payments of Royalty Fees, Brand Fund Contributions, and any
other amounts payable to Franchisor or its affiliates under this Agreement.
Franchisee shall make the funds available to Franchisor for withdrawal by
electronic transfer no later than 10:00 a.m. central time on the tenth (10th)
day of each month, or if that day is not a banking business day, then by
10:00 a.m. central time on the next banking business day. If Franchisee
fails to timely report Gross Revenues for any period, or Franchisee
withholds Franchisor’s access to accounting or financial systems or data to
determine Gross Revenue, Franchisor may debit Franchisee’s account for:
(a) one hundred ten percent (110%) of the Royalty Fees and Brand Fund
Contributions paid by Franchisee for the last period for which a Gross
Revenue report was provided; (b) the amount due for Royalty Fees and
Brand Fund Contributions based upon information Franchisor has
regarding the Franchised Business; or (c) one hundred ten percent (110%)
of the Royalty Fees and Brand Fund Contributions paid by Franchisee for
the same period in the prior year.

(i1) If, at any time, Franchisor determines that Franchisee has under-paid
Royalty Fees, Brand Fund Contributions, or other amounts payable to
Franchisor or its affiliates, Franchisor shall be authorized to initiate
immediately a debit to Franchisee’s account in the appropriate amount in
accordance with the foregoing procedure, plus late payment charges as
provided for in this Agreement. If the amount debited is less than the
actual amount owed due to Franchisee’s failure to report Gross Revenue
or because Franchisee does not have sufficient funds in its account to pay
the amounts owed franchisor or its affiliates, Franchisee shall pay the
remaining amount owing, plus a late payment charge thereon as set forth
in this Agreement. If Franchisor is unable for any reason to debit the full
amount permitted under this Agreement, Franchisee shall remit the
remaining amount owing within five (5) days from notice by Franchisor,
plus a late payment charge thereon as set forth in this Agreement. Any
overpayment by Franchisee shall be credited to Franchisee’s account
through a credit effective as of the first reporting date after Franchisee and
Franchisor determine that such credit is due.

(b) Minimum Account Balance - Franchisee shall at all times maintain a minimum
balance in the designated checking-ersavings account for payments of Royalty Fees,
Brand Fund Contributions, and any other amounts payable by Franchisee to Franchisor or
its affiliates in an amount specified by Franchisor.

(©) Late Payment Charges - All fees or payments of any type whatsoever owed by
Franchisee to Franchisor or its affiliates that are not received when due will be subject to
the imposition of late payment charges equal to the maximum rate permitted by law, not
to exceed one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per month.

(d) No Setoff - Franchisee shall not withhold or escrow any amounts due to
Franchisor under this Agreement, or set off any such amounts against any amounts
claimed to be due to Franchisee.
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(e) Timing of Payment - Unless specifically set forth herein to the contrary, all
amounts owed to Franchisor or its affiliate shall be due and payable to Franchisor within
ten (10) days following Franchisee’s receipt of an invoice therefor. Royalty and Brand
Fund Contributions shall be due and payable as set forth in this Agreement._Any fee or
other amount due under this Agreement on a day that is not a business day shall be due
and payable on the immediately following business day.

Franchisee’s consent, Franchisor will not, during the Term of this Agreement, modify the
Rovalty Fee, Brand Fund Contribution, Grand Opening Advertising, Renewal Fee, or
Transfer Fee as set forth herein. However, Franchisor may modify any other fees or other
amounts charged by it or its affiliates to Franchisee on thirty (30) days notice, but any
modification of the Technology Fee, New Director/Manager Training amount,
Curriculum and Assessment Training amount, Convention Fee, Website Modification
Fee or Financial Reporting Fee, may not be increased by more than ten percent (10%) of
the then-current fee or other amount, except that Franchisor may increase such fee or
other amount in any given year by greater than ten percent (10%) to adjust for prior years
when no increase, or an increase of less than ten percent (10%), was implemented,
regardless of whether the fee or other amount was actually charged or collected. The
annual adjustment cap discussed above does not limit Franchisor or any affiliate’s right
or ability to increase any other fee or amount, or to impose new fees as permitted by this

Agreement.

(2) Taxes - If any sales, excise, use or privilege tax is imposed or levied by any
government or governmental agency on account of any amounts payable under this
Agreement, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor as an additional fee, a sum equal to the
amount of such tax (but this provision shall not apply to any federal or Minnesota income
taxes imposed upon Franchisor).

10.) ASSISTANCE; TRAINING; ONGOING SUPPORT

(a) Initial Training - Franchisor shall provide, at a suitable location of its choice, an
initial training program consisting of approximately ten (10) days of training for
Franchisee and at least two of its Directors, and its Operations Manager, if any and any
other individuals required by Franchisor (the “Initial Training Program’); provided,
however, if Franchisee also acts as a Director then the Initial Training Program must be
successfully completed by only one Director, the Operations Manager and Franchisee.
The Initial Training Program will be provided without charge, but travel and living
expenses incurred by individuals attending training on Franchisee’s behalf in connection
with the Initial Training Program shall be the responsibility of Franchisee. Franchisee
and all other required attendees shall attend and satisfactorily complete the Initial
Training Program within the ninety (90) day period before the Franchised Center opens
for business to the general public. If a required attendee fails to satisfactorily complete
the Initial Training Program within such period, Franchisor may terminate the Franchise
Agreement.
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(b) New Director/Operations Manager Training - Any new Director or Operations
Manager must attend and successfully complete to Franchisor’s satisfaction Franchisor’s
New Director/Operations Manager Training Program within 90 days after they begin to
perform services on Franchisee’s behalf. This training is held at Franchisor’s offices.
The cost of this training is currently Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) for up to 5
attendees, but may be adjusted. Franchisee must pay the charges for such training prior to
the beginning of the training. Franchisee is responsible for travel and living expenses of
its attendees at this training.

(©) Curriculum and Assessment Training - Each teacher of Franchisee must complete
to Franchisor’s satisfaction curriculum and assessment training (“CA Training”) within
I-year of beginning classroom teaching. HFranchisor shall provide the initial CA
Training at no additional charge to Franchisee, as long as it is provided within 1-year of
the Center opening; provided, however, Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor
previdesfor the traming Franehisee—must—paytravel and living expenses incurred by
Franchisor’s trainer, but such reimbursement shall be capped at Two Thousand Dollars
($2,000). Any additional CA Training provided by Franchisor shall be charged by
Franchisor at its then -current feestraining rates, which as of the date hereof, is-eurrently
One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150) per hour—phas—the, and Franchisee shall reimburse
Franchisor for all travel and living expenses of Franchisor’s trainer if the training is not
held at Franchisor’s offices. This—eoest-maybe-adjusted—Franchisee is responsible for
travel and living expenses of its attendees at this training._ All amounts shall be due to
Franchisor at the time it may specify and by the method it may specify.

(d)  Additional Optional Training - Upon the request of Franchisee, at reasonable
times determined by the parties, Franchisor will provide additional training to Franchisee
on topics requested by Franchisee and agreed to by Franchisor, including training of
Franchisee’s facility manager. Such training shall be held at a location determined by
Franchisor or may be provided electronically. Franchisor shall charge such fees as it
shall establish from time to time for such training and such fees must be paid prior to the
time such training begins. Cost of this training is currently One Hundred Fifty Dollars
($150) per hour plus the travel and living expenses of Franchisor’s trainers if the training
is not held at Franchisor’s offices. This cost may be adjusted.

(e) Confidential Manual(s) - Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with electronic
access to one or more manuals for use in the Franchised Business, which manuals may
consist of brand standards, operations, and training manuals or otherwise (the
“Confidential Manual(s)”). The Confidential Manual(s) are not to be downloaded or
copied in whole or in part, shall remain the property of Franchisor and shall always be
kept in safekeeping. Franchisor, from time to time, may add to or modify some or all of
the Confidential Manual(s) to supplement or to improve the System of Operation and the
contents and methods of promotion franchised hereunder and Franchisee shall at all times
maintain the updated Confidential Manual(s).  For purposes of this Agreement, the
Confidential Manual(s) and all information contained therein are deemed to be the
Confidential Information of Franchisor and shall be subject to all such confidentiality
provisions set forth in this Agreement.
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® Conventions - Franchisor may conduct an annual or bi-annual convention for all
franchisees operating under the Names and Marks. If Franchisor chooses to hold such a
convention, Franchisee must attend such convention or send a representative approved by
Franchisor. Regardless whether Franchisee attends the convention, it shall pay to
Franchisor any convention registration fee established by Franchisor for that convention.

(2) On-Site Support; Telephonic Assistance - In addition to its other obligations
under this Agreement, Franchisor will, without additional charge, provide Franchisee
with two (2) days of on-site support and assistance at the Franchised Business, the first
day of which will be provided immediately prior to the Center opening for business to the
general public and the second day within the fourteen (14) day period after the opening of
the Franchised Business. Franchisor will also be available during normal business hours,
and without charge to Franchisee, to provide Franchisee with reasonable telephone
support on operating issues concerning the Franchised Business.

(h) Teaching Curriculum and Recipes — Prior to the opening of the Center, Franchisee
shall purchase from Franchisor introductory supplemental curriculum for use in
Franchisee’s Center’s pre-school classrooms at Franchisor’s affiliates then-current prices.
Amounts due for the introductory supplemental curriculum are payable by Franchisee
upon receipt of an invoice. Further, during the Term of the Franchise, Franchisor, or its
affiliate, shall provide to Franchisee on a monthly basis a supplemental teaching
curriculum and meal preparation guide, including proprietary recipes for meals for use by
Franchisee in the Franchised Business and an inventory list of foods needed to prepare
the recipes. Such items shall be provided by Franchisor at least seven (7) days before the
first day of the month in which Franchisee is required to use the curriculum and recipes.
All classes shall be taught by Franchisee pursuant to the curriculum specified by
Franchisor and all meals shall be prepared in accordance with the meal preparation guide,
including recipes, unless in either case prohibited by applicable law. In such event,
Franchisee shall immediately notify Franchisor and Franchisor may substitute a modified
curriculum, recipe or meal, as applicable. After the first year of operation of the
Franchised Center, Franchisee may request modifications to the recipes; provided,
however, Franchisee may not institute any such changes or make additions to the meal
preparation unless such changes have been approved by Franchisor, which approval may
be withheld in its sole and absolute discretion. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that
the supplemental curriculum provided by Franchisor or its affiliate, and recipes are
proprietary information of Franchisor and Franchisee shall have no right to use any of
such items after the Term of the Franchise. The curriculum specified by Franchisor,
including the supplemental curriculum, shall be followed by Franchisee, and all classes
taught, in Spanish.

(1) Forms - Franchisor shall provide to Franchisee various forms Franchisee may use
in the operation of the Franchised Business, including a form of enrollment form, parent
contract, classroom routines, daily schedules, and a form of parent handbook. Franchisee
may not provide child care services to a student unless and until the student’s parent or
guardian signs a parent contract, the form of which must be approved by Franchisor.
Franchisee shall use all such forms, templates and other materials specified by Franchisor
in the operation of the Franchised Business.
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Franchisor makes no representation or warranty as to the enforceability of any contracts
or other forms provided to Franchisee for use in its Franchised Business, or whether any
such forms meet the legal requirements of the jurisdiction in which Franchisee does
business. Franchisee acknowledges that it is Franchisee’s responsibility to modify such
forms, templates and any other materials provided by Franchisor to meet all laws and
regulations applicable to the Franchised Business and to use no such item that does not
comply with applicable law. Franchisor may from time to time update the forms,
templates and other materials provided to Franchisee. Upon provision of updated forms,
templates or other materials, to Franchisee, Franchisee must immediately discontinue use
of any prior version and only use the new version on a going forward basis.

) Food Board - Franchisor shall provide to Franchisee a food board Franchisee
shall use in the operation of the Franchised Center in the manner specified by Franchisor.
Franchisee shall display the food board in a location approved by Franchisor.

(k) Level of Performance; Delegation - Franchisor is not obligated to perform any
services to Franchisee’s particular level of satisfaction, but as a function of Franchisor’s
experience, knowledge and judgment. In addition, Franchisor shall have the right to
subcontract or delegate any of its duties and responsibilities under this Agreement;
provided, however, Franchisor shall be responsible for the performance of such duties,
notwithstanding such subcontract or delegation, to the same extent as if Franchisor had
not subcontracted or delegated such duties, unless such subcontract or delegation is in
connection with an assignment pursuant to Section 18(a) below.

) Technology Assistance/Fee - Franchisor will provide Franchisee with certain
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specified by Franchisor the then-current “Technology Fee” charged for these services,
which fee may change upon 30 days’ notice to Franchisee. Franchisor may modify or
terminate these technology services at any time. These are not the only technology or
technology services Franchisee will need to operate its Center and Franchisee is
responsible for obtaining such technology and services.

(m)  Site Selection/Market Analysis Services - Franchisor’s designee will provide
Franchisee, at no additional cost, with certain market analysis and site selection services,
such services to be as determined by Franchisor in its sole discretion. If Franchisee
chooses to purchase additional services beyond those provided without additional charge,
Franchisee shall pay for those services. These are not all of the site identification or
acquisition services Franchisee may need to locate and acquire a site and Franchisee is
responsible for obtaining such services.

(n) Notice of Deficiencies - If Franchisee believes Franchisor has failed to adequately
provide any services required to be provided to Franchisee or its employees in regard to
the training, support or any other matter affecting the establishment of the Franchised
Business, Franchisee shall so notify Franchisor in writing within thirty (30) days
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following opening of the Franchised Center. Absent the timely provision of such notice
to Franchisor, Franchisee shall be deemed to conclusively acknowledge that all
pre-opening and opening services required to be performed by Franchisor were sufficient
and satisfactory in Franchisee’s judgment.

11.) OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS

(a) Commencement of Operation - Franchisee may not commence operation of the
Franchised Business until Franchisee has satisfied all conditions set forth in this
Agreement required to be satisfied by Franchisee prior to opening the Franchised
Business, including successful completion by Franchisee, its Operations Manager, if any,
and its Director(s), of the Initial Training Program, and Franchisor has provided
Franchisee with written certification of the completion of all such conditions.

(b) Full Time Basis; Involvement - Although Franchisee may have a Director
responsible for the general operation of the Franchised Center, Franchisee (or the
majority owner of Franchisee if Franchisee is not an individual) must be involved on a
full-time basis in the operation of the Franchised Business. If Franchisee is not going to
be involved on a full-time basis in the operation of the Franchised Business, Franchisee
must employ an Operations Manager who will be responsible for overseeing the
operations of the Franchised Business. Franchisee, its Director(s), and its Operations
Manager, if any, shall each have successfully completed Franchisor’s Initial Training
Program. Notwithstanding the foregoing: (i) Franchisee shall at all times be held
responsible for the day-to-day operation and management of the Franchised Business;
and (i1) if the Franchised Center is required to be licensed as a child care facility or its
equivalent by applicable law, Franchisee shall be the license holder. If Franchisee is not
an individual and if applicable law requires the license holder to be an individual, the
license holder shall be the majority owner of Franchisee. If Franchisee employs a
Director or Operations Manager, such individuals must be Spanish/English bilingual as
well as meet any other minimum requirements required by Franchisor.

(©) Training - Franchisee shall provide to each of its staff members an initial training
program meeting Franchisor’s requirements. Franchisee shall also provide such annual
trainings to such individuals as are required by Franchisor. The content of these trainings
shall also meet Franchisor’s requirements. Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor, upon
Franchisor’s request, a certification that all of such individuals have successfully
completed the initial training program as well as any annual programs. No such
individual shall perform services on behalf of Franchisee until such individual has
successfully completed the initial training program as well as any applicable annual
program and is licensed as required by applicable law.

(d) Maintenance of High Quality Service - Franchisee shall utilize its best efforts,
skill and diligence to ensure that Franchisee and Franchisee’s employees and agents
establish and maintain high quality service to all doing business with the Franchised
Business. At all times, Franchisee shall conduct its business in a manner that will
preserve and enhance the goodwill associated with the Names and Marks.
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Franchisee and the accountant who will be providing the Franchised Center with
accounting services must complete financial training within 30 days after opening.
Franchisor will provide this training on-line.

If Franchisor requires additional training to attempt to maintain competitiveness in the
industry or Franchisee fails to provide services that meet Franchisor’s standards,
specifications or procedures, or the accountant providing Franchisee with accounting
services changes, Franchisor shall have the right to assign such person or persons that it
deems necessary to provide additional training to Franchisee. Cost of this training is
currently One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150) per hour plus the travel and living expenses
of Franchisor’s trainers if the training is not held at Franchisor’s offices. This cost may
be adjusted.

Franchisee shall at all times offer such services through the Franchised Business as are
required by Franchisor. Franchisee may not, however, use the Franchised Center to
operate any business, or offer any services, that have not been approved by Franchisor.

(e) Compliance with Specifications and Procedures - Franchisee acknowledges that
the Confidential Manual(s) are designed to protect Franchisor’s standards and systems,
and the Names and Marks, and not to control the day-to-day operation of the business.
Franchisee shall comply with all rules, regulations, and directives specified by
Franchisor, as well as all mandatory standards, specifications and procedures contained in
the Confidential Manual(s), as amended from time to time, and shall adopt and adhere to
the policies of Franchisor. Franchisor specifically reserves the right to modify or change
such rules, regulations and directives.

63} Internet Usage - Franchisee must subscribe, at Franchisee’s expense, to an
Internet service provider or other electronic communication provider or service and
obtain and use, at Franchisee’s expense, and in the manner and form and meeting such
minimum standards as Franchisor may approve or require, computer equipment,
operating software, communication services, and other electronic and computer systems,
and the like, for communicating, reporting and other operations of the Franchised
Business. Franchisor shall have full and unrestricted independent access to all of
Franchisee’s computer systems andother technology systems, including all information
included in them. Franchisor can collect and use this information in any manner it
chooses without compensation to Franchisee. There are no contractual limitations on
Franchisor’s right to access any of these systems or the information in them, and
Franchisor may use all information in any manner , in its sole discretion. Franchisee
shall provide Franchisor with any passwords or login ability to access all-sueh computer
systems, including any software, any other technology systems of Franchisee, and any
Social Media Presence. Franchisor may require that any and all communications between
Franchisee and Franchisor be made through the Internet or such other electronic medium
as Franchisor may designate, and Franchisee may be required to access the Internet or
other electronic information on a regular basis to obtain full benefit of the System of
Operation. To that end, Franchisee shall maintain a working email address to
communicate with Franchisor. Franchisor is not liable for any damage to Franchisee
including lost profits, which occur as a result of any outage or delay related to electronic
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transmission of information, whether by the Internet or otherwise, or as a result of
Franchisee’s failure to access the information. Franchisor may, in its sole discretion,
make use of any information furnished by it to Franchisee in the conduct of its business.

(2) Casa App: Upgrades - Franchisee must use the Casa App as Franchisor may
specify from time to time, including using all of its functionalities required by Franchisor.

: ' ities—Notwithstanding anything set forth in this Agreement to the
contrary, Franchisor may require Franchisee to upgrade any technology used by
Franchisee in the Franchised Business, including the Casa App, at any time and without
regard to any expenditure limitations. Additionally, there shall be no limit on
Franchisor’s right to require Franchisee to replace its computer system, to replace or
upgrade hardware or software used by Franchisee in the Franchised Business or to require
Franchisee to purchase additional hardware or software that Franchisor may select for use

in the Franchised Business.

(h) Provision of Information - Franchisee also acknowledges and agrees that any and
all information provided to Franchisee by Franchisor under this Agreement may be
provided in such manner and by such media as Franchisor may determine, including,
without limitation, by electronic and/or computer means. Franchisee also specifically
agrees Franchisor may communicate with Franchisee by fax, email, or other electronic
communications.

(1) Equipment Maintenance - Franchisee shall maintain all equipment used in the
Franchised Business in excellent working condition. As such items become obsolete or
mechanically impaired to the extent they require replacement, Franchisee shall replace
such items with either the same or substantially similar types and kinds of equipment as
are being installed in other, similar businesses franchised by Franchisor, or opened by
Franchisor or its affiliates, at the time replacement becomes necessary. All equipment
used in the Franchised Business shall meet the specifications of Franchisor and shall be
approved by Franchisor prior to installation thereof.

() Taxes - Franchisee shall promptly pay when due all taxes levied or assessed by
reason of its operation and performance under this Agreement. Franchisee further shall
secure and pay premiums on a workers’ compensation policy covering all of its
employees and, if applicable, shall pay all state unemployment taxes, state sales taxes and
all other taxes and expenses of operating the Franchised Business. In the event of any
bona fide dispute as to the liability for any taxes assessed against Franchisee, Franchisee
may contest the validity or amount of the tax in accordance with procedures of the taxing
authority. In no event, however, shall Franchisee permit a tax sale or seizure by levy of
execution or similar writ or warrant to occur against the Franchised Business, or any part
thereof.

(k) Personnel - All Franchisee’s personnel involved in the Franchised Business shall
wear apparel meeting Franchisor’s standards. Franchisee shall hire all personnel of the
Franchised Business, and be exclusively responsible for the terms of their relationships
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with Franchisee, including compensation. Furthermore, subject to applicable law,
Franchisee shall require each Director, as a condition to their employment, to enter into a
noncompetition and confidentiality agreement restricting the disclosure of confidential
information and competition with Franchisee and Franchisor to the same extent as
Franchisee is restricted under this Agreement. If there is a violation of that agreement,
Franchisee shall take all action necessary to enforce that agreement, subject to applicable
law. If Franchisee fails to enforce that agreement for a reason other than that it is
prohibited to enforce it under applicable law, it shall be liable to Franchisor for any
damages, costs and losses suffered by Franchisor, including any attorneys’ fees
Franchisor may incur if it elects to attempt to enforce that agreement on Franchisee’s
behalf. In such event, Franchisee shall execute all documents reasonably requested by
Franchisor in connection with such enforcement attempt. Franchisee shall provide
Franchisor an executed copy of each such agreement immediately upon execution by
Franchisee and a Director.

) Franchisee Control - Franchisee acknowledges that it is responsible for the
day-to-day operation of its Franchised Business, including hiring, setting the conditions
of employment, supervising, discipline and termination of all personnel, purchases (or
leases) and maintenance of equipment and supplies, preparing Franchisee’s own
marketing plans and funding and implementing those marketing plans, maintenance of
employment records, and daily maintenance, safety, security and the achievement of
compliance with the System of Operation. Franchisor’s ability to approve certain
matters, to inspect the Franchised Center and its operations and to enforce its rights,
exists only to the extent necessary to protect its interest in the System of Operation and
the Names and Marks. Neither the retention nor the exercise of these rights is for the
purpose of establishing any control, or the duty to take control, over those matters that are
clearly reserved to Franchisee. Franchisee’s employees are not Franchisor’s agents or
employees and Franchisor is not a joint employer of these individuals. Franchisee is
solely responsible for performing all administrative functions at the Franchised Center,
including payroll and providing workers’ compensation insurance. Franchisee
acknowledges that it is not economically dependent on Franchisor, and that Franchisor
does not provide facilities, equipment or house or transport Franchisee’s employees or
provide to Franchisee’s employees tools or materials required for Franchisee’s employees
to perform services for Franchisee.

(m)  Programs; Events - Franchisee must participate in, comply with all terms and
conditions of, and pay all charges related to, all programs Franchisor may require
Franchisee to participate in from time to time. The terms and conditions of any such
programs, as well as the programs themselves, may be modified or terminated at any time
by Franchisor in its sole and absolute discretion. Franchisee shall hold all events or other
activities required by Franchisor to be held at the Franchised Center or in connection with
the Franchised Business.

(n) Compliance with Laws - Franchisee shall comply with all laws applicable to its
Franchised Business including all laws applicable to a child care facility and a restaurant
as well as all zoning laws. For the avoidance of any doubt, Franchisee shall ensure that:
(1) the operation of its Franchised Center complies will all applicable laws including
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those related to the provision of educational materials and food to the students; and (ii)
all employees of the Franchised Center are licensed to perform the services they are
performing on behalf of Franchisee, including compliance with any child care licensure
requirements.

(0) Quality Assessment; Accreditation - No later than the fifth anniversary date after
the date of this Agreement, Franchisee shall apply for accreditation with the National
Association for the Education of Young Children or such other child care education
organization specified by Franchisor (an “Accreditation Organization”). No later than the
sixth anniversary date after the date of this Agreement, Franchisee shall have obtained the
accreditation specified by Franchisor for its Franchised Center by the Accreditation
Organization. No later than the third anniversary date after the date of this Agreement
Franchisee shall have applied for accreditation with a state quality assessment
organization meeting Franchisor’s standards. Further, no later than the fourth anniversary
date after the date of this Agreement, Franchisee shall have obtained from such
organization a quality assessment approval or rating meeting Franchisor’s standards.

(p) Client Satisfaction/Surveys - Franchisee shall participate in all client satisfaction
programs Franchisor requires, including any client surveys and shall provide Franchisor
with such assistance and information as reasonably required by Franchisor in connection
with such programs and surveys. If Franchisor receives a client complaint, or Franchisee
fails to respond to a complaint within the time Franchisor specifies, Franchisor may
resolve the complaint or respond for Franchisee.

(@0  Modifications. Franchise recognizes that modifications that Franchisor may make
to the System of Operation may necessitate that Franchisee make capital expenditures
during the Term of the Franchise in amounts that Franchisor cannot forecast. Nothing in
this Agreement limits the frequency or cost of future changes to the System of Operation
that Franchisor may require. Franchisee understands and agrees that Franchisor has no
ability to identify with specificity the nature of these future general improvements or their
expected cost and accepts the risk that future general improvements may be imposed that
will require significant capital expenditures in an amount that is unknown on the date
hereof and that cannot be fully amortized over the period of time then remaining in the
Term of the Franchise.

12.) NAMES AND MARKS

(a) Display of Names and Marks - Franchisee shall operate under, and prominently
display, the Names and Marks in the operation of the Franchised Business in the manner
specified by Franchisor, and pursuant to the standards made available to Franchisee by
Franchisor. Franchisee shall use no commercial trade names, service marks, or other
commercial symbols, including associated logos, that do not satisfy the criteria
established by Franchisor. If this Agreement is assigned to a corporation, partnership, or
limited liability company, Franchisee may not use all or part of the Names and Marks as
part of the name of the corporation, partnership, or limited liability company, and
Franchisee must obtain Franchisor’s prior written approval of the name of the
corporation, partnership, or limited liability company prior to incorporation, formation or
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organization, as applicable. Franchisee may not use all or part of any of the Names and
Marks, or any similar name, word, symbol or variant thereof, in a domain name, account
name, profile or URL, except as specifically approved by Franchisor.

(1) If Franchisor deems it advisable, Franchisee shall file for and maintain a
“Certificate of Trade Name” in the county, or other appropriate
jurisdiction, in which the Franchised Business is located.

(i1) Franchisee shall not use any of the Names and Marks in combination with
other words, letters, prefixes, suffixes, logos or designs, other than in the
manner authorized by Franchisor.

(b) Change of Names and Marks - From time to time, Franchisor may elect to
discontinue the use of certain Names and Marks and to commence use of new Names and
Marks. Franchisee shall pay all expenses incurred in connection with discontinuing the
use of existing Names and Marks in the Franchised Business and commencing the use of
new Names and Marks therein.

(©) Ownership of Marks and Goodwill - Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor
owns the Names and Marks. Franchisee’s right to use the Names and Marks is derived
solely from this Agreement and all such usage and any goodwill established thereby shall
inure to the exclusive benefit of Franchisor. Franchisee waives any right to challenge
Franchisor’s entitlement or ownership of the Names and Marks.

(d) Cessation of Use - Franchisee agrees that, upon the termination or expiration of
the Term of the Franchise for any reason whatsoever, Franchisee shall forthwith
discontinue the use of the Names and Marks, and thereafter shall no longer use, or have
the right to use, the Names and Marks.

(e) Notification of Infringement - Franchisee shall immediately notify Franchisor of
any infringement of or challenge to Franchisee’s use of present and future Names and
Marks and shall not communicate with any other person in connection with any such
infringement, challenge or claim. Franchisor shall have sole discretion to take such
action as it deems appropriate, including the exclusive control of any litigation or any
Trademark Office or other administrative proceeding arising out of any such
infringement, challenge or claim relating to any of the Names and Marks.

13.) EQUIPMENT/SUPPLIES/SERVICES

(a) Equipment; Supplies and Approved Suppliers - All equipment, vehicles, supplies,
gifts for families and students of the Franchised Center, furnishings, design and décor of
the Center, signage, client surveys, food, food stuffs, beverages, meals, curriculum,
music, landscaping, computer hardware and software, technology applications, security
and fire alarm systems, insurance, advertising and marketing materials, must meet
Franchisor’s specifications as they may be provided to Franchisee from time to time,
unless otherwise consented to by Franchisor. From time to time, Franchisor shall provide
Franchisee a list of approved suppliers of various items and services, including
construction management, architecture and build-out services, technology consulting,
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market analysis and site selection services, other services used or offered by the Center,
equipment, food, food stuffs, beverages, supplies, software, hardware, insurance, and
other items used in the operation of the Franchised Business. The approved source of
supply for any individual item may be Franchisor, an affiliate of Franchisor, or an
independent third party. To that end, Franchisor, an affiliate or an unrelated third party
may be the sole source of supply for an item.

(1) Unless otherwise specified by Franchisor, Franchisee shall not be
restricted from using sources of supply other than those previously
approved by Franchisor, if the other sources supply items or services of
substantially the same quality and specifications as those supplied by the
approved suppliers.

(11) Franchisor reserves the right to require Franchisee to obtain the written
approval of Franchisor prior to the use of any supplier not previously
approved by Franchisor and, as a precondition to the granting of such
approval, may require the proposed supplier to submit to Franchisor
samples of products it proposes to provide to Franchisee for use in the
Franchised Business and any other information Franchisor requires. In
such event, Franchisor shall have thirty (30) days from its receipt of all
such information to approve such supplier. Any supplier not approved in
such time period shall be deemed disapproved. Franchisor does not
maintain any written criteria for approval of a supplier.

(ii1))  Franchisee acknowledges that, as of the date hereof, Franchisor has only
approved one supplier of reusable food storage bags, eloth—diapers;
curriculum, child assessment tools, certain software, and for market
analysis and site selection services, and that Franchisor is unlikely to
approve another supplier for such items. Franchisee acknowledges that, as
of the date hereof, Franchisor’s affiliate is the sole supplier for cloth
diapers and any item bearing any of the Names and Marks, including the
supplemental curriculum (introductory and ongoing), desktop applications,
the Casa App and its functionalities, the Internal Brand Package and all
items contained in the Package.

(b) Services/Pricing - Franchisee shall not offer or sell any products or services that
have not been approved by Franchisor. Franchisee shall set its own pricing and rates for
the products and services it offers in the Franchised Business; provided, however,
Franchisee shall adhere to any minimum or maximum prices prescribed by Franchisor for
services or products offered by Franchisee.

(c) Liability - Franchisor shall not be liable to Franchisee for damages caused by the
failure of Franchisor or an approved supplier to make available for purchase any item or
service, unless the failure is the result of factors within Franchisor’s reasonable control.
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14.) INFORMATION, REPORTS, INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS

(a) Books and Records; Reports; Fee - Franchisee shall maintain its books and
records in the manner reasonably required by Franchisor. Franchisee shall provide
Franchisor with such operational, financial and sales information relating to the business
of Franchisee as from time to time may be reasonably required by Franchisor, which shall
include, but is not limited to, enrollment reports and revenue certifications, all in the
forms as required by Franchisor. To that end, Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor such
monthly and/or annual financial reports as Franchisor may specify. The financial and
sales information shall be delivered to Franchisor, at the time, in the form and by the
means of communication authorized by Franchisor. Franchisor may use such financial
information in any manner and for any purpose it, in its sole and absolute judgment,
deems appropriate. Franchisee, and if Franchisee is a limited liability company,
corporation or partnership, the owners of Franchisee, shall also submit to Franchisor,
upon request, copies of their annual federal, state, and city, if any, income and sales tax
returns, if any. If Franchisee or any owner fails to provide Franchisor with the
information, records or reports in such form and at such times as are required by
Franchisor from time-to-time, Franchisor may charge Franchisee a “Financial Reporting
Failure Fee” in the amount of Fifty Dollars ($50) per failure. Such Fee shall be due and
payable by Franchisee on demand of Franchisor. The foregoing shall be in addition to
any other rights of Franchisor hereunder.

(b) Audit Rights - Franchisor shall have the right to audit or cause to be audited the
sales reports and financial statements delivered to Franchisor, and the financial books,
records and sales and income tax returns of Franchisee, and if Franchisee is a limited
liability company, corporation or partnership, the owners of Franchisee. If any audit
discloses that Franchisee has failed to pay to Franchisor any Royalty Fees or Brand Fund
Contributions owed Franchisor based upon an understatement of Gross Revenues,
Franchisee, within ten (10) days of receipt of the audit report, shall pay to Franchisor the
Royalty Fees, Brand Fund Contributions and other amounts due Franchisor, plus late
payment charges from the due date at the maximum rate permitted by law, not to exceed
one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per month. In addition, if an understatement for any
period equals two percent (2%) or more of the Gross Revenues of the Franchised
Business for any period, Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for the cost of the audit,
including the charges of any independent accountant and the travel expenses, room and
board, and compensation of persons employed by Franchisor to make the audit.

(©) Inspection Rights - Franchisee shall permit Franchisor and its representatives,
whenever Franchisor reasonably may deem necessary, during normal business hours, to
enter, remain on and inspect the Franchised Center. Franchisor and its representatives
may also, without notice to Franchisee, interview or otherwise communicate with parents
of children to whom Franchisee has provided services.

(d) Ownership of Information - All information Franchisor obtains from Franchisee
or about or related to the Franchised Business (collectively, the “Information”), and all
revenues Franchisor derives from such Information, shall be Franchisor’s property.

Franchisee may use information that it acquires from third parties in operating the
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Franchised Business, such as client data, at any time during the Term of the Franchise to
the extent lawful and at its sole risk and responsibility, but only in connection with
operating the Franchised Business for the purposes hereunder. The Information (except
for information Franchisee provides to Franchisor with respect to it and its affiliates)
shall beecomebe deemed the eenfidential—informationConfidential Information of
Franchisor hereunder, which Franchisor may use for any reason it deems necessary or
appropriate. Franchisee and Franchisor shall comply with all applicable laws pertaining
to the privacy and security of personal information, including, without limitation, local,
regional and national requirements applicable to the Franchised Business. Further,
Franchisee recognizes and agrees that between Franchisee and Franchisor, Franchisor
owns all rights to and all interest in and to any data, whether client data, click-stream
data, user data or otherwise, hits or other information collected via any electronic
medium or method of communication, including a website, home page, HTML
document, Internet site, online directory, web page, or social media or social networking
site, or application, whether web-based or otherwise, related to the System or the Names
and Marks. Such information is deemed by Franchisor to be and shall constitutes #s
confidentialinformationConfidential Information hereunder.

(e) Owners - At the time this Agreement is executed by Franchisee, Franchisee shall
also complete the Statement of Ownership and Management attached hereto, and, if
Franchisee is a corporation, partnership or limited liability company, each owner of any
business entity that is the Franchisee, and their spouse, if any, as of the date hereof, as
well as any future owners of Franchisee, and their spouses, must sign Franchisor’s
then-current Guaranty at the time such individual becomes an owner of Franchisee.
Franchisee shall immediately notify Franchisor of any change in any of the information in
the Statement of Ownership and Management last submitted to Franchisor. Further, upon
request of Franchisor, Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with an updated Statement of
Ownership and Management.

15.) INSURANCE

(a) Type of Coverage - At all times during the Term of the Franchise, Franchisee
shall maintain in force, at its sole expense, commercial general liability insurance against
claims for bodily and personal injury, death and property damage caused by, or incurred
in conjunction with, the operation of, or conduct of business by, Franchisee; general
casualty insurance (including the perils of fire, broad form extended coverage, vandalism
and malicious mischief) on the premises of the Franchised Center and its equipment;
business motor vehicle liability insurance; child accident insurance; workers’
compensation insurance; employee dishonesty and employment practices, and such other
types of insurance and all in such amounts as may be specified by Franchisor from time
to time.

(1) The insurance coverage shall be maintained under one (1) or more policies
of insurance containing the amounts and types of coverage from time to
time prescribed by Franchisor and insured by insurance companies rated A
or better by A. M. Best Company.
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(i1)  All public liability and motor vehicle liability insurance policies shall
name Franchisor as an additional insured and shall provide that Franchisor
receive ten (10) days’ prior written notice of termination, expiration,
reduction or cancellation of any such policy.

(ii1))  Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor, annually, a copy of the certificate of
or other evidence of the renewal or extension of each such insurance
policy.

(b) Failure to Obtain - If Franchisee at any time fails or refuses to maintain any
insurance coverage required by Franchisor, or fails to furnish satisfactory evidence
thereof, Franchisor, at its option and in addition to its other rights and remedies
hereunder, may obtain such insurance coverage on behalf of Franchisee, and any costs of
premiums incurred by Franchisor in connection therewith shall be paid by Franchisee on
demand.

16.) CONFIDENTIALITY AND IMPROVEMENTS BY FRANCHISEE

(a) Confidentiality.

(1) Definition of Confidential Information. “Confidential Information” means

: all information, processes, methods, techniques, procedures and
knowledge, including know-how (which includes information that is
secret and substantial), Manuals and trade secrets (whether or not
judicially recognized as a trade secret), developed or to be developed by
Franchisor or any of its affiliates relating directly or indirectly to the
development or operation of Spanish immersion intercultural early
childhood learning centers operated under the Names and Marks. Without
limiting the foregoing, Confidential Information includes, but is not
limited to:

A. methods, techniques, equipment, specifications, standards,
policies, procedures and information relating to the development,
operation, and franchising of Spanish immersion intercultural early
childhood learning centers operated under the Names and Marks,
including the information in the Confidential Manual(s);

B. the identity of suppliers, vendors, financing sources or other parties
who provide goods or services to the Franchisor’s franchise system, and
specifications for materials, equipment, fixtures, furniture, vehicles,
supplies, and other items for centers operated under the Names and Marks;

C. operating results and financial performance of the Franchised
Center and other centers operated under the Names and Marks in the
Franchisor’s franchise system;

D. Client and student information (including all client and student
information that Franchisee collects or that is collected through the
Franchised Center);
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E. any and all marketing, promotional or training materials used in
the operation of, or relating to, centers operated under the Names and
Marks in Franchisor’s franchise system or to the franchise system

generally;

o o it 1 bening in the & ineF.  the
System of Operation; including any curriculum and recipes-provided-by
FEranehisor, and the concepts and methods of promotion franchised
hereunder;by Franchisor; and

G. Any other information or materials referred to in this Agreement as
confidential or proprietary.

Confidential Information does not include: (1) information that is part of the public domain or

becomes part of the public domain through no fault of Franchisee or its personnel; (ii)

information disclosed to Franchisee by a third party having legitimate and unrestricted

possession of such information; or (iii) information that Franchisee can demonstrate by clear

and convincing evidence was within its legitimate and unrestricted possession when the

parties began discussing the sale of the franchise contemplated hereby.

I~
—
—

N—

Ownership. Franchisee acknowledges and agree that Franchisor and its
affiliates own all right, title and interest in and to the Confidential
Information, which is proprietary and a valuable asset of Franchisor and
its affiliates, and all such Confidential Information is derived from
Franchisor pursuant to this Agreement;-and-thatsuch-information-willbe
treated-inconfidence. Franchisor will disclose to Franchisee such parts
of the Confidential Information as it determines (in its sole judgment) is
required for the operation of the Franchised Center during training and in
guidance and assistance furnished to Franchisee during the Term of the
Franchise, in the Confidential Manual(s), orally, or otherwise. Franchisee
and each of its owners acknowledge and agree that neither Franchisee, nor
its owners, nor any other party, will acquire any interest in or right to use
the Confidential Information, other than Franchisee’s right to utilize
certain Confidential Information in the operation of the Franchised Center,
and that the use or duplication of the Confidential Information in any other
business would constitute an unfair method of competition with
Franchisor, its affiliates and any franchisees.

Use of Confidential Information. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees

®

never-tothat the Confidential Information is disclosed to it solely on the
condition that Franchisee and its owners will:

A. Maintain the absolute secrecy and confidentiality of such
Confidential Information, not use the Confidential Information, directly or
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indirectly, in any other business or capacity, or engage in or abet the
misappropriation (as the term “misappropriation” is defined in the
Minnesota Uniform Trade Secrets Act), or the disclosure, divulgence, or

distribution of-all-er-anypart-efthe Systemof Operation-and-the-coneepts
and-methods-of prometing franchises hereunder—, all or any part of the

Confidential Information, or make unauthorized copies of any portion of
the Confidential Information;

B. Not disclose the Confidential Information in judicial or
administrative proceedings if Franchisee is legally compelled to disclose
such information, unless Franchisee notifies Franchisor prior to disclosure
and has used its best efforts to obtain, and has afforded Franchisor the
opportunity to obtain, an appropriate protective order or other assurance
satisfactory to Franchisor of confidential treatment for the information
required to be so disclosed;

C. Adopt, implement and maintain all procedures prescribed from
time to time by Franchisor to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of, or
access to, the Confidential Information, including requiring employees
who will have access to such information to execute confidentiality
agreements in a form reasonably acceptable to Franchisor and provide
Franchisor, at its request, executed originals of each such agreement; and

D. Not use any Confidential Information, any of the Names and
Marks or any of the information contained in the Confidential Manuals or
any part of the System of Operation, for the purpose of machine learning,
augmented human intelligence development, training any artificial
intelligence (“AI””) model, algorithm improvement, or similar data
aggregation activities without Franchisor express written consent. Such
uses shall not be deemed related to the performance of this Agreement and
are expressly prohibited. Franchisee must not, without Franchisor’s prior
written consent, input any such items, in whole or in part, into any
generative Al platform, or disclose any of such items to any provider or
source of generative Al services. Franchisee must opt out of allowing any
provider or source of generative Al to utilize any of these items for
training of any Al model or for other purposes.

(b) Improvements - If Franchisee, during the Term of the Franchise, conceives or
develops any improvements or additions to the System of Operation, new trade names,
trade and service marks and other commercial symbols related to the Franchised
Business, or any advertising, promotion or marketing ideas related to the Franchised
Business, or has any suggestions, comments, or other Feedback with respect to the

System of Operation (collectively, ¢“Improvements’), Franchisee shall fully disclose the

Improvements to Franchisor without disclosure of the Improvements to others and shall
obtain Franchisor’s written approval prior to the use of such Improvements. Any such
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Improvement approved by Franchisor may be used by Franchisor and all other
franchisees of Franchisor without any liability or obligation to Franchisee for royalties or
stmtlar-feesother compensation. Franchisee shall assign to Franchisor, and hereby does
assign to Franchisor, without charge, all rights to such Improvements, together with the
goodwill associated with the Improvements, including the right to grant sublicenses to
any such Improvements. Franchisor, at its discretion, may make application for and own
copyrights, trade names, trademarks and service marks relating to any such
Improvements. Franchisor also may consider such Improvements as the property and
trade secrets of Franchisor. Franchisor shall authorize Franchisee to utilize any
Improvement authorized generally for use by other franchisees.

17.) RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

(a) Covenants - Franchisee acknowledges Franchisor must be protected against the
potential for unfair competition by Franchisee’s use of Franchisor’s training, assistance
and trade secrets in direct competition with Franchisor. Franchisee therefore agrees that
it shall not:

(1) During the Term of the Franchise, either directly or indirectly: (a) operate,
own, manage, or be employed by or consult with, any Competitive
Business, other than one operated under a valid franchise agreement with
Franchisor, or any business or other venture offering or selling franchises
or licenses for a Competitive Business;(b) divert or attempt to divert any
client or potential client to any competitor of Franchisor, or a competitor
of a franchisee or of an affiliate of Franchisor; or (c¢) otherwise interfere
with the business activities of Franchisor or any affiliate or any other
franchisee of Franchisor.

(1)  For a period of two (2) years following the expiration, termination or
assignment of this Agreement, either directly or indirectly: (a) operate,
own, manage, be employed by or consult with: (1) any Competitive
Business, other than one operated under a valid franchise agreement with
Franchisor, that is located or doing business in the Restricted Area; or (2)
any business or other venture located in or doing business in the
Restricted Area that is offering or selling franchises or licenses for the
operation of a Competitive Business, or any business or other venture
located outside of the Restricted Area that is offering or selling franchises
for Competitive Businesses located in, or to be located in, the Restricted
Area; or (b) otherwise interfere with the business activities of Franchisor
or any affiliate or any other franchisee of Franchisor, including diversion
or attempt to divert any client or potential client to any competitor of
Franchisor, or a competitor of a franchisee or of an affiliate of Franchisor.

(iii)) In the event of the violation of Section 17(a)(ii) above by Franchisee
following expiration, termination or assignment of this Agreement, the
period of time Franchisee shall be required to abide by the breached
obligation shall be extended to a period of two (2) years after Franchisee is
no longer in breach of such obligation.
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(b) Franchisee Acknowledgments - Franchisee agrees that the restrictions contained
in this Section 17 are reasonable and necessary to protect the interests of Franchisor and
other franchisees of Franchisor. Franchisee further acknowledges that because of the
narrow scope of the limitations, the foregoing restrictions do not unduly restrict
Franchisee’s ability to engage in gainful employment. If Franchisee violates these
restrictions, then in addition to damages incurred by Franchisor for which Franchisee
shall be liable, Franchisor shall be entitled to injunctive relief to prevent the continuation
of such breach.

18.))  ASSIGNMENT

(a) By Franchisor - This Agreement is fully assignable by Franchisor, and shall inure
to the benefit of any assignee or other legal successor in interest of Franchisor.

(b) General Prohibition on Franchisee Assignment - No Franchisee, partner (if
Franchisee assigns this Agreement to a partnership), shareholder (if Franchisee assigns
this Agreement to a corporation), or member (if Franchisee assigns this Agreement to a
limited liability company), without the prior written consent of Franchisor, by operation
of law or otherwise, shall sell, assign, transfer, convey, give away, lease, have redeemed
or encumber to any person, trust, firm, corporation, partnership or company, its interest in
this Agreement or its interest in the Franchise granted hereby or its interest in any
proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or limited liability company which, directly or
indirectly, owns any interest in the Franchise, e+its interest in the Franchised Business or
the assets of the Franchised Business, or the property upon which the Franchised Center
is located, whether owned by Franchisee or an affiliate. Any purported assignment not
having the necessary consent shall be null and void and shall constitute a material default
hereunder.

(©) Conditions to Franchisee Assignment - Franchisor shall not unreasonably
withhold its consent to any assignment provided the following conditions and
requirements shall first be satisfied:

(1) If Franchisee desires to assign or transfer all of its rights under this
Agreement to a partnership, corporation, or limited liability company
controlled by Franchisee:

(a) the transferee shall be newly organized, and its charter shall
provide that its activities are confined exclusively to operating the
Franchised Business;

(b) Franchisee shall be and shall remain the owner of all of the issued
and outstanding voting stock or membership interests of the transferee
corporation or limited liability company or, in the case of a partnership, of
the voting control of the transferee partnership;

(©) Franchisee shall be and shall remain the principal executive officer
of the transferee;
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(ii)
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(d) the transferee shall enter into a written agreement with Franchisee
and Franchisor, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, assuming all of
Franchisee’s obligations hereunder;

(e) all the partners, shareholders, or members of the transferee shall
enter into a written agreement in a form satisfactory to Franchisor jointly
and severally guaranteeing the full payment and performance of the
transferee’s obligations to Franchisor and agreeing to be personally bound
by all covenants and restrictions imposed upon the transferee under this
Agreement;

® each stock or membership certificate of the transferee corporation
or limited liability company, or the partnership agreement of the transferee
partnership, shall have conspicuously endorsed upon it a statement that it
is held subject to, and that further assignment or transfer of any interest
therein is subject to, all restrictions imposed upon assignments by this
Agreement;

(2) no new voting interest in the transferee shall be issued to any
person or entity without obtaining Franchisor’s prior written consent; and

(h) all accrued money obligations of Franchisee to Franchisor and its
subsidiaries, affiliates and assigns shall be satisfied prior to assignment or
transfer.

If an assignment (other than an assignment as set forth in Section 18(c)(i)
above), alone or together with other previous, simultaneous or proposed
transfers, would have the effect of transferring control of the Franchise
created hereby or the Franchised Business:

(a) the transferee shall meet Franchisor’s then current standards for the
issuance of a franchise, including satisfying any licensure requirements
imposed by applicable law, be of good moral character and reputation and
shall have a good credit rating, financial capabilities and competent
business qualifications reasonably acceptable to Franchisor. Franchisee
shall provide Franchisor with the information it may reasonably require to
make a determination concerning each proposed transferee;

(b) the transferee, including all shareholders, members and partners of
the transferee, shall jointly and severally execute a new franchise
agreement with Franchisor, on the terms then offered by Franchisor to new
franchisees, except that all pre-opening obligations of the parties, other
than the transferee’s obligation to complete the Initial Training Program to
Franchisor’s satisfaction, shall be waived, including the obligation of the
transferee to pay a new initial franchise fee;

(c) if the transferee is a corporation, limited liability company or
partnership, each stock or membership certificate, or the partnership
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agreement, shall have conspicuously endorsed upon it a statement that it is
held subject to, and further assignment or transfer of any interest therein is
subject to, all restrictions imposed upon assignments by this Agreement;

(d) if the transferee is a corporation, partnership, or limited liability
company, the transferee will be newly organized and its charter shall
provide that its activities are confined exclusively to operating the
Franchised Business, and no new voting interest in the transferee shall be
issued to any person or entity without obtaining Franchisor’s prior written
consent;

(e) Franchisee shall have fully paid and satisfied all of Franchisee’s
obligations to Franchisor and its affiliates, and Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor a transfer fee equal to the then current franchise fee being
charged by Franchisor in connection with the sale of a new franchise;
provided, however, if Franchisor is not then selling franchises the fee shall
be equal to the franchise fee paid hereunder;

® Franchisee shall have executed an agreement in form satisfactory
to Franchisor in which it agrees to: (i) release any claims it has against
Franchisor and its affiliates; (ii) subordinate any claims it may have
against the transferee to any amounts owed by the transferee to Franchisor;
(ii1) comply with the post-term obligations set forth herein, including the
non-competition and confidentiality provisions; and (iv) indemnify
Franchisor against all claims brought against Franchisor by the transferee
arising out of the transfer for a period of three (3) years following the
transfer;

(2) if the transferee is a corporation, limited liability company or
partnership, all the shareholders, members, or partners of the transferee
shall enter into a written agreement, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor,
jointly and severally guaranteeing the full payment and performance of the
transferee’s obligations to Franchisor and agreeing to be personally bound
by all covenants and restrictions imposed upon the transferee under the
terms of this Agreement; and

(h) if the assignment or transfer is caused by the death or incapacity of
Franchisee (or in the case of a partnership, corporation or limited liability
company, by the death or incapacity of one controlling more than
forty-nine percent (49%) of the voting interest of Franchisee), the
provisions of this Section 18(c)(il) must be met with regard to the heir or
personal representative of Franchisee succeeding to Franchisee’s interest
hereunder; provided, however, if the heir or personal representative
assigns, transfers or sells its interest in the Franchise within sixty (60) days
after the death or incapacity of Franchisee, the person to whom the interest
is assigned, transferred or sold, and not Franchisee’s heir or personal
representative, must comply with the provisions of this Section 18(c)(ii) as
transferee.

33



(d) Disclosure - Franchisee consents to Franchisor releasing to any proposed
transferee any information concerning the Franchised Business which Franchisee has
reported to Franchisor.

(e) No Single or Partial Transfer - Notwithstanding anything set forth herein to the
contrary, Franchisee may not transfer a portion of its rights or obligations hereunder or a
portion of the Franchised Business, if such transfer would result in the division of the
Franchised Business.

19.) RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL/PURCHASE OPTION

(a) Right of First Refusal - If, at any time during the term hereof, Franchisee receives
a bona fide offer to purchase or lease the Franchised Business, including the
Franchised Center or the property upon which the Franchised Center is located
whether owned by Franchisee or an affiliate, or any owner of Franchisee receives
an offer to purchase any interest in Franchisee, either directly or indirectly, which
offer Franchisee, an affiliate or such owner is willing to accept, Franchisee shall
communicate in writing to Franchisor the full terms of the offer and the name of
the offeror. Franchisor may elect to purchase or lease the business, the property
or the interest, as applicable, on the terms set forth in the offer. If Franchisor
elects to exercise such option, it shall give Franchisee written notice of the
election within thirty (30) days after Franchisor receives Franchisee’s
communication of the offer. If Franchisor fails to give written notice of election
within thirty (30) days, Franchisee or the owner, as the case may be, may sell or
lease to the offeror on the terms offered, subject to the provisions relating to
assignment. The sale or lease must, however, be completed within sixty (60) days
of the termination of the thirty (30) day period during which Franchisor may give
written notice of election to purchase or lease; otherwise, an additional notice
must be given to Franchisor and an additional option period must expire prior to
any such transfer. If Franchisor elects to exercise its rights hereunder, it shall
have the right to substitute equivalent cash for any noncash consideration
included in the bona fide offer and Franchisor and Franchisee, an affiliate or
Franchisee’s owner, as the case maybe, will use their best efforts to complete the
transaction within sixty (60) days from the date of Franchisor’s notice of election
to exercise its rights hereunder. The failure of Franchisor to exercise its rights
under this Section 19 (a) shall not affect Franchisor’s rights to approve or
disapprove an assignment as set forth in Section 18 above.

(b) Purchase Option

(1) Option to Purchase/Lease - Not earlier than ninety (90) days prior to, but
in no event later than thirty (30) days following, the expiration or
termination of this Agreement for any reason (the “Option Period”),
Franchisor may, at its sole option, give notice to Franchisee that it intends
to purchase from Franchisee or any of its affiliates any or all of the assets
relating to or used in the Franchised Business, including the site
ofproperty upon which the Franchised Center is located (and any
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(iii)
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improvements to such real property), and all materials, furniture,
equipment, inventories, and supplies relating to or used in the Franchised
Business, including the Franchised Center (collectively, the “Center
Assets”). Center Assets shall not include, however, any goodwill of the
Franchised Business, including any goodwill of the Franchised Center, the
value of any sublease or lease under which Franchisee leases the premises
for the Franchised Center or any Center Assets which Franchisor, in its
sole opinion, deems to be unusable or obsolete. The site of the Franchised
Center, including the real property and improvements to the real property
(collective, the “Real Property”) shall be included in the Center Assets
only if such Real Property is owned by Franchisee or any of its affiliates at
the time of the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Franchisee
agrees to provide Franchisor with any information Franchisor reasonably
requires, and to allow Franchisor to inspect the Franchised Center and the
assets of the Franchised Business, to determine whether to exercise its
option under this Section 19.

Purchase Price - The purchase price for the Center Assets shall be equal to
the sum of (i) the average fair market value as determined by three
qualified independent appraisers, one selected by Franchisor, the second
selected by Franchisee, and the third selected by the other two appraisers
(net of all liens and/or encumbrances which the Center Assets shall be
conveyed subject to), of the Real Property included in the Center Assets, if
any, plus (ii) the lesser of Franchisee’s or its affiliate’s depreciated cost or
fair market value of all of the personal property included in the Center
Assets (with fair market value of personal property determined in the same
manner as in (i) above). For purposes of the determination by such
appraisers of the fair market value of the Real Property included in the
Center Assets, such fair market value shall be the amount of cash which
would be realized by Franchisee or its affiliate if such Real Property were
sold by a willing seller to a willing buyer to be used as a Casa de Corazon
center as contemplated in this Agreement. Any determination of the fair
market value of the Center Assets shall not include any goodwill. Within
seven (7) days after the determination of the purchase price, Franchisor
may elect upon written notice to Franchisee to not complete the purchase.
However, failure by Franchisor not to complete the purchase shall not
affect any other rights of Franchisor under this Agreement and shall not
relieve Franchisee from any of its obligations under this Agreement.

Deductions from Purchase Price - Franchisor shall have the right to deduct
from the purchase price: (i) any amounts owing, as of the date of the
closing, from Franchisee and/or its affiliates to Franchisor and any of its
affiliates under or in connection with this Agreement or any other
agreements to which Franchisor or any of its affiliates and Franchisee or
any of its affiliates are parties; (i) any sums expended by Franchisor to
cure any defaults by Franchisee or any affiliate under any agreements
affecting the Center Assets or any sums expended by Franchisor to obtain
the release of any liens or other encumbrances affecting the Center Assets.
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(vi)
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Closing - The closing of any such purchase shall take place at a time and
location to be selected by Franchisor; provided, however, that such closing
shall not occur any later than ninety (90) days after the purchase price is
determined pursuant to Section 19(b)(ii) above. If for any reason the
closing is scheduled for a date after the expiration or termination of this
Agreement, Franchisor shall have the right to manage the Business until
such closing occurs. At such closing. Franchisee or its affiliates shall
convey all Center Assets which Franchisor elects to purchase with all
warranties of good and marketable title, free and clear of all liens and
other encumbrances, except those of which Franchisor notifies Franchisee
or its affiliates in writing prior to closing that Franchisor is willing to
assume. Franchisee shall execute, and shall cause its affiliates to execute,
all documents reasonably required by Franchisor, in such form as is
approved by Franchisor, in order to consummate such transaction.

Operation of Center - If Franchisor notifies Franchisee of Franchisor’s
intent to exercise the purchase option set forth above in this Section, then
Franchisor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to manage the
Franchised Center for the period commencing with the expiration or
termination of this Agreement until the transaction contemplated by this
Section has been consummated. Franchisor shall be entitled to a
management fee equal to 5% of Franchisee’s Gross Revenues for the
period during which Franchisor operates the Franchised Center, plus
reimbursement of Franchisors out-of-pocket expenses. The parties intend
that claims resulting from Franchisor’s management of the Franchised
Center shall be subject to indemnification by Franchisee as provided in
this Agreement. If Franchisor exercises this right, Franchisee must
execute any agreements required by Franchisor to further document this
management arrangement. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that it, its
affiliates, and its owners may not sell, lease, or otherwise dispose of any of
the Center Assets until the earlier of: (i) the expiration of the Option
Period (unless Franchisor gives notice of its intent to exercise the option
within the Option Period); (ii) its receipt from Franchisor of a written
notice that Franchisor does not intend to exercise its option; or (iii) the
expiration of the option due to Franchisor’s failure to comply with the
deadlines set in this Section. If Franchisor provides written notice that it
will not be exercising its option to purchase certain Center Assets,
Franchisee, its affiliates, and its owners may sell, lease, or otherwise
dispose of such assets in accordance with and subject to the provisions of
this Agreement.

Assumption of Lease/Sublease - Franchisor shall also have the separate
right, upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, to assume the
existing lease or sublease, as applicable, for the Franchised Center for the
remaining term of the lease or sublease, upon the terms and conditions
contained in the lease or sublease and Lease Rider as previously approved
by Franchisor. If the lessor under the lease or sublease is Franchisee or an
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affiliate of Franchisee, and the remaining term of the lease or sublease is
less than ten (10) years, Franchisor may at its option require Franchisee or
its affiliate as the case may be to modify the term of the lease or sublease,
to be ten (10) years from assumption or such other term as Franchisor
specifies. If the site of the Franchised Center is owned by Franchisee or
an affiliate, Franchisor shall have the right and option to require
Franchisee or its affiliate, as applicable, to promptly enter into a lease with
Franchisor or its designee for the Franchised Center, which lease shall be
on commercially reasonable terms, including then-current market rates,
and shall be for a term of ten (10) years, unless the parties to the proposed
lease agree otherwise. The foregoing right of Franchisor to require a new
lease shall apply even if there is a lease or sublease for the Franchised
Center between an affiliate of Franchisee and Franchisee. Franchisor shall
have the right to assign its rights to a third party or to sublease the
premises subject to the lease or sublease without the prior written consent
of the lessor.

(vii)  Assignment of Rights by Franchisor; Survival - Without limiting any other
rights contained in this Agreement, Franchisor shall have the right to
assign or delegate some or all its rights under this Section 19(b) to any
other party. For the avoidance of any doubt, this Section 19(b) shall
survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

20.) PRE-TERMINATION OPTIONS OF FRANCHISOR

(a) Rights in Addition to Termination - Prior to the termination of this Agreement, if
Franchisee fails to pay any amounts owed to Franchisor or its affiliates or fails to comply
with any term of this Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisor and
Franchisee or an affiliate of Franchisor and Franchisee, then in addition to any right
Franchisor may have to terminate this Agreement or to bring a claim for damages,
Franchisor shall have the option to:

(1) Remove any listing of the Franchised Business from any Franchisor
Identified Social Media Presence;

(i)  Prohibit Franchisee from attending any meetings or seminars held or
sponsored by Franchisor or taking place on the premises of Franchisor;

(ii1))  Suspend the provision of any or all of the services provided by Franchisor
to Franchisee hereunder; and

(iv)  Require Franchisee to participate in a peer group made up of other
franchisees for such time period as Franchisor may require.

(b) Continuation of Franchisor Options - Franchisor’s actions, as outlined in this
Section 20, may continue until Franchisee has brought its accounts current, cured any
default, and complied with Franchisor’s requirements, and Franchisor has acknowledged
the same in writing. The taking of any of the actions permitted in this Section shall not

Casa-de Corazon®2024 37



suspend or release Franchisee from any obligation that would otherwise be owed to
Franchisor or its affiliates under the terms of this Agreement or otherwise nor shall
Franchisee assert that the taking of any such actions shall act as an actual or constructive
termination of this Agreement.

21.) TERMINATION

(a) By Franchisor - In addition to Franchisor’s other termination rights in this
Agreement, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon receipt
by Franchisee of notice of termination, if Franchisee:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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Loses a license required by applicable law to operate the Franchised
Center, which shall include the loss of a license by any owner of the
Franchisee or another center owned by Franchisee or an affiliate losses a
license;

EessesDefaults under Franchisee’s lease or sublease for the premises of
the Franchised Center, defaults under any loan, financing or other
document related, directly or indirectly, to Franchisee, the Franchised
Business or the Franchised Center, including the premises of the
Franchised Center, or otherwise losses the right to occupy the Franchised
Center’s premises;

Voluntarily abandons the franchise relationship;

Is convicted in a court of competent jurisdiction of an offense directly
related to the business conducted pursuant to this Agreement, including
any offense that indicates unsuitability for childcare;

Fails to cure a default under this Agreement which materially impairs the
goodwill associated with the Names and Marks after Franchisee has
received written notice to cure at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance
of the notice of termination;

Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or an admission of its
inability to pay its obligations as they become due;

Files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or any pleading seeking any
reorganization, arrangement, composition, adjustment, liquidation,
dissolution or similar relief under any law, admits or fails to contest the
material allegations of any such pleading filed against it, or is adjudicated
a bankrupt or insolvent;

Fails to comply with any federal, state, or local law or regulation
applicable to the operation of the Franchised Business, including those
laws or regulations governing education, child care, health, safety and/or
sanitation;
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(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Makes an unauthorized assignment or transfer of this Agreement, the
Franchised Business, including the Franchised Center or the Franchise;

Submits to Franchisor two (2) or more sales reports, financial statements,
other information or supporting records in any period of twelve (12)
consecutive months, which understates by two percent (2%) or more the
Gross Revenues of the Franchised Business, or otherwise materially
distorts any other material information;

Consistently fails to submit when due sales reports or financial statements
to Franchisor or Franchisee withholds Franchisor’s access to accounting or
financial systems or data, revokes any authorization provided to
Franchisor to debit Franchisee’s bank account, or initiates any stop
payment against Franchisor or its affiliates;

Fails to pay when due Royalty Fees, Brand Fund Contributions,
Technology Fees, or other paymentsamounts due to Franchisor and such
failure continues for ten (10) days after notice to Franchisee;

Consistently fails to remit when due payments to suppliers or other
creditors of the Franchised Business, and such failure continues for ten
(10) days after notice to Franchisee;

Has made material misrepresentations on its application for the Franchise;

Is in breach of any other agreement with Franchisor or any of its affiliates
and such breach continues for thirty (30) days after notice to Franchisee;
or

Otherwise materially breaches this Agreement or fails to comply with any
provision of this Agreement or any specification, standard or operating
procedure prescribed by Franchisor and does not correct such failure
within thirty (30) days after notice to Franchisee.

(b) Compliance with Applicable Law - The foregoing notwithstanding, to the extent

that the provisions of this Agreement provide for periods of notice less than those
required by applicable law, or provide for termination, cancellation, nonrenewal or the
like other than in accordance with applicable law, such provisions shall, to the extent
such are not in accordance with applicable law, be superseded by said law, and
Franchisor shall comply with applicable law in connection with each of these matters.

(c) Actions Upon Expiration, Termination or Assignment - Franchisee agrees, upon

expiration; or termination of this Agreement or assignment of the Franchise:

(1)
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To immediately return to Franchisor all copies of all Confidential
Information, including the Confidential Manual(s) that-have-beentoaned

to—it—by—Franehisor—and any other material marked as property of
Franchisor-e+thatis-deemed-asconfidential-hereunder;
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Casa-de-Corazon®2024

To immediately pay to Franchisor such Royalty Fees, Brand Fund
Contributions, and other charges as have or will thereafter become due
hereunder and are then unpaid including amounts due for printed
materials, forms, advertising material, supplies, products and services
supplied by Franchisor, and-upon the request of Franchisor; to comply
with its obligations under this Agreement related to Franchisor’s purchase
option and right to assume the lease or sublease for the Franchised Center
or enter into a new lease, and to comply, or cause its affiliate to comply,
with all provisions of the Declaration for the time period set forth therein;

To immediately take such action as may be required to properly cancel all
assumed name or equivalent registrations relating to the use of the Names
and Marks, and notify the telephone company, any domain name registrar,
any internet service provider, and all listing agencies of the termination or
expiration of Franchisee’s right to use any domain names, profiles,
accounts, user names, telephone numbers and classified and other
directory listings associated with any Franchisor Identified Social Media
Presence, or that include any portion of the Names and Marks, and
authorize the telephone company, domain name registrars, internet service
providers, and listing agencies to transfer to Franchisor all such telephone
numbers, registrations, profiles, accounts, and directory listings, along
with access thereto. Franchisee acknowledges that, as between Franchisor
and Franchisee, Franchisor has the sole right to and interest in all
telephone numbers, directory listings, domain names profiles, user names,
and accounts associated with the Names and Marks, or any word, phrase
or symbol confusingly similar to any of the Names and Marks, including
any Franchisor Identified Social Media Presence, as well as any content
thereon. Franchisee authorizes Franchisor, and appoints Franchisor its
attorney-in-fact, to direct the telephone company, domain name registrars,
internet service providers, and all listing agencies to transfer telephone
numbers, domain names, accounts and listings to Franchisor, as well as
provide access to Franchisor to any such account or registration;

To not indicate directly or indirectly, in any manner, that it is or ever was
affiliated with Franchisor in any capacity, identify itself or any business as
a member of the Franchisor’s system, or as otherwise associated with
Franchisor, or use, in any manner or for any purpose, any of the System of
Operation, concepts and methods of promotion, or Names and Marks, or
any other indicia of a business operated under the Names and Marks;

To immediately cause all signs using the Names and Marks to be
removed. If Franchisee fails to remove such signage, Franchisor shall be
entitled to remove and destroy the signage, without prior notice to
Franchisee, and Franchisee shall be obligated to reimburse Franchisor for
all costs associated with such removal and destruction; and
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(vi)  To immediately comply with all provisions of this Agreement which
expressly or by their nature survive the expiration;_or termination of this
Agreement or assignment of the Franchise, as set forth in this Agreement.

(d) Survival of Provisions - All obligations of Franchisor and Franchisee that
expressly or by their nature survive the expiration, termination or assignment of the
Franchise, including the non-competition, confidentiality, purchase option and
indemnification provisions herein, shall continue in full force and effect subsequent to
and notwithstanding the foregoing until they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire.

(e) Communication with Third Parties - After Franchisor provides Franchisee with
notice of any default hereunder, Franchisor can notify any third parties, including any
lenders, of the default and communicate with such third parties regarding Franchisee, the
Franchised Business, including the Franchised Center and its operations.

63) Franchisee Termination Right - Franchisee may terminate this Agreement and the
Franchise granted hereunder effective ten (10) days after delivery to Franchisor of notice
of termination, if Franchisee is in compliance with this Agreement and Franchisor
materially breaches this Agreement and fails to cure the breach within thirty (30) days
after written notice of the breach is delivered to Franchisor.

22.) ENFORCEMENT

(a) Injunctive Relief; Attorneys’ Fees - Either party may apply for injunctive or other
equitable relief to: (i) enforce its right to terminate this Agreement for the causes in
Section 21; and (ii) prevent or remedy a breach of this Agreement if such breach could
materially impair the goodwill of such party’s business, including to enforce the
obligations of a party to be performed following the termination of this Agreement and
enforcement of the non-competition and confidentiality provisions of this Agreement.
Each party shall be entitled to the entry of temporary restraining orders and temporary
and permanent injunctions enforcing its aforementioned rights. If Franchisor secures any
such injunction, or any other relief against Franchisee, or is successful in defending a
claim brought against it by Franchisee, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor an amount equal
to the aggregate of Franchisor’s costs of obtaining such relief and defending such claim,
including, reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court
costs, other litigation expenses and travel and living expenses.

(b) Mediation - Except with respect to matters for which a party believes it necessary
to seek injunctive or equitable relief, Franchisee and Franchisor shall be required to enter
into mediation of all disputes involving this Agreement, or any other aspect of the
relationship between them, for a minimum of four (4) hours, prior to the initiation of any
action or proceeding against the other.

(1) Upon written notice by either party to the other of the initiating party’s
desire to mediate, the party receiving the notice shall select an independent
entity that regularly provides mediation services to franchisors and
franchisees to serve as mediator in the proceeding. If the party receiving
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the notice of intent to mediate does not provide the name of such an
organization within ten (10) business days from the date the notice of
intention to mediate is received, then the other party may forego mediation
of the issue(s) and commence legal action or, at its option, make the
selection of the organization to provide mediation services. If one party
selects an organization that is unwilling to serve as mediator or does not
meet the requirements of this Section 22(b)(i), then the other party may
select the organization. Once the organization is designated and agrees to
accept appointment as mediator, the organization shall be directed to
schedule a mediation proceeding at a time mutually convenient to
Franchisor and Franchisee. The mediation shall be held within thirty (30)
days following receipt by the mediation organization of notification that
its services are requested. If the parties cannot agree on a date for
mediation, then the mediation organization shall select a date it believes is
reasonable for the parties, given all of the alleged conflicts in dates. The
actual mediator shall either be a retired judge, or a person who has had at
least ten (10) years of experience as either franchisee or franchisor (or as
an officer of such an entity), or in franchise law.

(i1) The parties shall equally share the cost of the mediator. The mediator
shall select the location for the mediation, giving due consideration to the
location that will minimize the total expenses of the mediation; provided,
however, that unless agreed to by both Franchisor and Franchisee, the
mediation shall be held in a metropolitan area having a population of at
least two hundred fifty thousand (250,000) persons that is not located
within two hundred (200) miles of the Franchised Center or the principal
office of Franchisor.

(ii1))  Except with respect to matters for which a party is permitted to seek
injunctive or equitable relief, if either party initiates litigation without
complying with their obligation to mediate in accordance with this Section
22(b) (unless the other party has failed to respond on a timely basis or has
indicated it will not engage in mediation in accordance with the provisions
of this Section 22(b)), then upon petition of any party named as a
defendant in such litigation, the court shall dismiss the action without
prejudice, and award attorneys’ fees and costs to the party seeking
dismissal in an amount equal to such party’s attorneys’ fees and costs
incurred in seeking dismissal. If the court refuses for any reason to
dismiss the action, then regardless of the outcome of such action, or of any
award given by the court in such action, the party initiating the action shall
be responsible for all attorneys’ fees and costs incurred throughout the
action by the other party as damages for failing to comply with the
provisions of this Section 22(b).

(©) Continued Performance - Unless this Agreement is terminated in accordance with
the provisions of Section 21, during the pendency of any litigation, Franchisee and
Franchisor shall each perform their obligations under this Agreement.
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(d) Waiver of Certain Damages - Franchisor and Franchisee (and Franchisee’s
owners and guarantors) hereby waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any right to,
or claim for, any punitive, consequential, special or exemplary damages against the other
and any affiliates, owners, employees or agents of the other and agree that in the event of
a dispute between or among any of them, each shall be limited to the recovery of any
actual damages sustained by it and any equitable relief to which it might be entitled.

(e) Venue - Franchisor and Franchisee (and Franchisee’s owners and guarantors)
each agree that if litigation is commenced, the sole forum for resolving disputes under
this Agreement or any aspect of the relationship between the parties shall be the state and
federal courts of Minnesota. Such actions shall be exclusively venued in the state or
federal courts located in Hennepin County, Minnesota, and the parties waive any
objections they may have to either the jurisdiction or the venue in such courts and hereby
consent to personal jurisdiction and venue in such courts. The only exception to the
foregoing shall be: (1) if the courts of Minnesota would have no jurisdiction over a
named party in the litigation, and such party’s involvement in the litigation is integral to
the underlying claims and not principally for the purpose of circumventing the intent of
the parties to name Minnesota as the exclusive venue for any actions, then the action may
be venued in any court having jurisdiction over all the parties and a significant nexus to
the parties; and (2) to the extent that either party believes it is necessary to seek injunctive
relief against the other, the party seeking relief may initiate that action in the county in
which the other party has its principal office (which in the case of an action against
Franchisee, shall be the county in which Franchisee is domiciled, or the county in which
the Franchised Center is located).

3] WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL - TO THE EXTENT EITHER PARTY MAY
PROCEED BY JUDICIAL PROCESS, EACH OF THE PARTIES WAIVES ITS RIGHT
TO A JURY TRIAL WITH RESPECT TO THE ENFORCEMENT OR
INTERPRETATION OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND ALLEGATIONS OF STATE OR
FEDERAL STATUTORY VIOLATIONS, FRAUD, MISREPRESENTATION, OR
OTHER CAUSES OF ACTION, IN CONNECTION WITH ANY LEGAL ACTION.

(2) Waiver of Collateral Estoppel - The parties agree they should each be able to
settle, mediate, litigate, or compromise disputes in which they are involved with third
parties, without having the disposition of such disputes directly affect the contract or
relationship between Franchisor and Franchisee. Franchisor and Franchisee therefore
each agree that a decision of an arbitrator or court of law in a dispute to which one of
them is not a party shall not in any manner prevent the person that was a party to such
action from making similar arguments, or taking similar positions, in any subsequent
action between Franchisor and Franchisee. The parties therefore waive the right to assert
that principles of collateral estoppel prevent either of them from raising any claim or
defense in an action between them as a result of such party having lost a similar claim or
defense in another action.

(h) Waiver of Class Action Rights - Franchisee waives its right to bring, join or
participate in, and is barred from bringing, joining or participating in, any class action
suit. The parties agree that any proceeding shall be conducted on an individual, not a
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class-wide, basis and that any proceeding between Franchisor and Franchisee (or any
owner or guarantor of Franchisee) may not be consolidated with another proceeding
between Franchisor and any other entity or person. Franchisee further agrees that the
foregoing shall not limit the ability of Franchisee to obtain a remedy for any particular
claim that it may assert against Franchisor.

23.) INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS/INDEMNIFICATION

(a) Independent Contractor - Franchisee is a franchisee of Franchisor. Franchisee
shall be conspicuously identified at the premises of the Franchised Business, and in all
dealings with clients, prospective clients, and others, as a franchisee. Franchisee shall
not represent or imply to any person that this Agreement authorizes Franchisee to act as
agent for Franchisor. Neither Franchisor nor Franchisee shall be obligated by any
agreement, representation or warranty made by the other, nor shall Franchisor be
obligated for damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of the
operation of the Franchised Business, or caused by Franchisee’s negligence, willful
action or failure to act.

(b) Evidence of Relationship — Franchisee and-its-emploeyees-shall at all times hold
themselvesitself out to the public as an independent contractor byof Franchisor.
Franchisee shall, without limitation: (i) clearly identifangidentify itself in all dealings
with third parties as a franchised, independently owned and operated entity, including on
all public records, checks, stationery, enrollment forms, receipts, marketing materials,
envelopes, letterhead, business cards, employment applications or other employment
documents, invoices and other communications, electronic or otherwise; (ii)
displayingdisplay a sign in the reception area of the Franchised Center so as to be clearly
visible to the general public indicating that the Franchised Center is independently owned
and operated as a franchised business; and (iii) maintainingmaintain a notice on the
employee bulletin board clearly visible to employees at the Franchised Center, identifying
the correct name of their employer and clearly stating that neither Franchisor nor any of
its affiliates is the employer and if required by Franchisor, obtaining from each of its
employees an acknowledgment acknowledging that their employer is Franchisee and not
Franchisor._Neither Franchisee, nor any of its owners, employees or other personnel, are
officers, directors, managers, members, shareholders, other owners or employees of
Franchisor, its affiliates or the “Casa de Corazon” brand. Franchisee its owners,
employees and all others associated with Franchisee shall never hold themselves out
otherwise.

(c) Franchisee Indemnification - Franchisee agrees to indemnify Franchisor against,
and to reimburse Franchisor for, all obligations and damages for which Franchisor is
liable and for all costs reasonably incurred by Franchisor in the defense of any such claim
brought against it, or in any such action in which it is named as a party, arising out of any
act or omission of Franchisee, or as a result of any activities occurring at, by or through
the Franchised Business, including the Franchised Center, or otherwise. Such
indemnification shall include, reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of investigation or proof
of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses and travel and living expenses (collectively,
“Costs”). Franchisor shall have the right to defend any such claim against it.
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(d) Franchisor Indemnification - Franchisor agrees to indemnify Franchisee against,
and to reimburse Franchisee for, any obligation or liability for damages payable to
persons other than Franchisee or its owners caused by the negligent or willful action of
Franchisor, and for Costs reasonably incurred by Franchisee in the defense of any claim
brought against it as a result of the foregoing or in any such action in which it is named as
a party. Franchisor shall have the right to participate in and to control any litigation or
proceeding which might result in liability of or expense to Franchisee subject to
indemnification by Franchisor.

24.) FRANCHISEE REPRESENTATIONS

To induce Franchisor to accept Franchisee’s application for a Franchise and to execute
this Agreement, Franchisee hereby represents and warrants to Franchisor as follows:

(a) Standards for Service - Franchisee recognizes and acknowledges the importance
of maintaining Franchisor’s standards for service, and further recognizes and
acknowledges the importance of following the System of Operation;

(b) Disclosure Document - Franchisee has received a copy of Franchisor’s Franchise
Disclosure Document, together with copies of all contracts relating to the sale of the
Franchise, at least fourteen (14) days prior to the execution of this Agreement and at least
fourteen (14) days prior to its payment of any money to Franchisor. Franchisee has read
and understands all such documents;

(©) Business Risks - Franchisee has the entire control and direction of the Franchised
Business, subject only to the conditions and covenants established by this Agreement.
Franchisee further acknowledges that the business to be operated under this Agreement
involves business risks, and that Franchisee’s success shall be largely determined by its
own skill and efforts as an independent business person. Franchisee further
acknowledges that if it fails at any tasks that are vital to the operation of the Franchised
Business, the Franchised Business will fail and Franchisee shall be solely responsible for
any such failure.

(d) Franchisee Advisors - Franchisee has been advised to consult with its own
advisors with respect to the legal, financial and other aspects of this Agreement, and that
Franchisee has had the opportunity to consult with such advisors and also has had the
opportunity to independently investigate the opportunity offered under this Agreement;
and

(e) Independent Investigation - Franchisee has entered into this Agreement after
making an independent investigation of Franchisor’s operations and not upon any
representation as to profits which Franchisee might be expected to realize, nor has anyone
made any other representation to induce Franchisee to accept the Franchise granted
hereunder and to execute this Agreement, which is not expressly set forth herein.
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25.) MISCELLANEOUS

(a) Governing Law - Except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark
Act of 1946 (Lanham Act; 15 U.S.C. § 1050 et seq.), as amended, this Agreement shall
be governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota. The parties agree, however, that if the
Franchisee is not a resident of Minnesota, or if the Franchisee is a corporation, limited
liability company or partnership and is not organized or incorporated under Minnesota
law, and in either case, the Franchised Center is not located in Minnesota, then the parties
hereby waive the provisions of the Minnesota Franchise Act and the regulations
promulgated thereunder. If the Minnesota Franchise Act does not apply to the Franchise
relationship created hereby, but there is a statute in the state in which the Franchised
Center is situated that specifically governs relationships between franchisees and
franchisors and that law would otherwise apply, then that particular law shall apply in
lieu of the foregoing.

(b) Binding Effect - This Agreement is binding upon the parties hereto, their
respective heirs, assigns and successors in interest.

(©) Entire Agreement - The introduction, Rider and Statement of Ownership and
Management hereto are a part of this Agreement, which constitutes the entire agreement
of the parties, and at the time of this Agreement, there are no other oral or written
understandings or agreements between Franchisor and Franchisee relating to the subject
matter of this Agreement, other than any Guaranties; provided, however, nothing in this
or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations Franchisor made in
the Franchise Disclosure Document furnished to Franchisee.

(d) Headings; Franchisee References; Liability - The Section headings are for
convenience only and do not define, limit or construe the contents thereof. The term
“Franchisee” as used herein is applicable to one (1) or more persons, a corporation,
limited liability company, or a partnership, as the case may be, and the singular usage
includes the plural and the masculine and feminine usages include the other. If there is
more than one signatory as “Franchisee”, all of Franchisee’s obligations hereunder and
under any other agreement with Franchisor or its affiliates shall be joint and several in
each and every respect and fully enforceable against each signatory. References in this
Agreement to the termination of this Agreement, or the termination of the “Term of the
Franchise”, shall be deemed to include the expiration of this Agreement without renewal.

(e) Construction - Franchisor and Franchisee agree that if any provision of this
Agreement is capable of two (2) constructions, one of which would render the provision
illegal or otherwise voidable or unenforceable and the other of which would render the
provision valid and enforceable, the provision shall have the meaning which renders it
valid and enforceable. The language of each provision of this Agreement shall be
construed simply according to its fair meaning and not strictly against Franchisor or
Franchisee.

® Invalid Provisions - It is the desire and intent of Franchisor and Franchisee that
the provisions of this Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent possible under the laws
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and public policies applied in each jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought.
Accordingly, if any provision of this Agreement is adjudicated to be invalid or
unenforceable, such adjudication is to apply only with respect to the operation of such
provision in the particular jurisdiction in which such adjudication is made. All
provisions of this Agreement are severable and this Agreement shall be interpreted and
enforced as if all completely invalid and unenforceable provisions were not contained
herein, and partially valid and enforceable provisions shall be enforced to the extent valid
and enforceable. Franchisor and Franchisee shall substitute a valid and enforceable
provision for any specification, standard, operating procedure, rule or other obligation of
Franchisee or Franchisor which is determined to be invalid or unenforceable and is not
waived by the other.

(2) Waiver - Franchisor and Franchisee, by written instrument signed by both parties,
may unilaterally waive any obligation of or restriction upon the other under this
Agreement. No acceptance by Franchisor of any payment by Franchisee and no failure,
refusal or neglect of Franchisor or Franchisee to exercise any right under this Agreement
or to insist upon full compliance by the other with its obligations hereunder or with any
specification, standard or operating procedure shall constitute a waiver of any provision
of this Agreement or any specification, standard or operating procedure; provided,
however, if a party fails to notify the other in writing of an alleged misrepresentation,
violation of law, deficiency, or breach of this Agreement within one (1) year from the
date such party has knowledge of, believes, determines or is of the opinion that there has
been a misrepresentation, violation of law, deficiency or breach by the other party, then
the alleged misrepresentation, violation of law, deficiency or breach will be considered
waived, but such waiver of any prior deficiency or breach of any provision of this
Agreement shall not affect the obligation of the party to comply with the obligation or
provision in the future; provided, however, that: (i) this waiver will not apply to
Franchisee’s underreporting of Gross Revenues, or under payment of any fees Franchisee
owes Franchisor that are tied to the amount of Gross Revenues; and (ii) the foregoing
shall not otherwise extend or lengthen any statute of limitations provided by applicable
law.

(h) Remedies Cumulative - All remedies provided to Franchisor under this
Agreement are cumulative. No exercise or enforcement by Franchisor or Franchisee of
any right or remedy hereunder shall preclude the exercise or enforcement by Franchisor
or Franchisee of any other right or remedy hereunder or which Franchisor or Franchisee
is entitled by law to enforce.

(1) Modifications - No modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless such
modification is in writing and signed by Franchisee and Franchisor; provided, however,
Franchisor may unilaterally modify or otherwise change the Confidential Manual(s).

) Notices - All written notices permitted or required to be delivered by the
provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed so delivered: (i) when delivered by hand;
(i) three (3) days after placed in the United States mail by registered or certified mail,
return receipt requested, postage prepaid; or (iii) one (1) business day after placed in the
hands of an overnight courier, for next day delivery, and in the case of delivery under
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clauses (ii) or (iii), addressed to the party to be notified at its most current principal
business address of which the notifying party has been notified.

(k) Patriot Act Representations - Franchisee represents and warrants that to its actual
and constructive knowledge: (i) neither it (including its directors, officers and
managers), nor any of its affiliates, or any funding source for the Franchised Business, are
identified on the list at the United States Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control; (i)
neither it nor any of its affiliates is directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the
government of any country that is subject to an embargo imposed by the United States
government; (iii) neither it nor any of its affiliates is acting on behalf of the government
of, or is involved in business arrangements or other transactions with, any country that is
subject to such an embargo; (iv) neither it nor any of its affiliates are on the U.S.
Department of Commerce Denied Persons, Entities and Unverified Lists, the U.S.
Department of State’s Debarred Lists, or on the U.S. Department of Treasury’s Lists of
Specialty Designated Nationals, Specialty Designated Narcotics Traffickers or Specialty
Designated Terrorists, as such lists may be amended from time to time (collectively, the
Lists); (v) neither it nor any of its affiliates, during the term of this Agreement, will be on
any of the Lists; and (vi) during the term of this Agreement, neither it nor any of its
affiliates will sell products, goods or services to, or otherwise enter into a business
arrangement with, any person or entity on any of the Lists. Franchisee agrees to notify
Franchisor in writing immediately upon the occurrence of any act or event that would
render any of these representations incorrect.

) Variances - Because complete and detailed uniformity under many varying
conditions may not be possible or practical, Franchisor specifically reserves the right and
privilege, at its sole discretion and as it may deem in the best interests of all concerned in
any specific instance, to vary standards for any franchise owner based upon the
peculiarities of a particular site or circumstance, density of population, business potential,
population of trade area, existing business practices or any other condition which
Franchisor deems to be of importance to the successful operation of such franchise
owner’s business. Franchisee shall not complain on account of any variation from
standard specifications and practices granted to any other franchise owner and shall not
be entitled to require Franchisor to grant to Franchisee a like or similar variation thereof.

(m)  Exercise of Business Judgment - Except as otherwise expressly stated in this
Agreement, any consent or approval required to be obtained from Franchisor, or decision
to be made by Franchisor, may be granted or made by Franchisor in its sole and exclusive
business judgment, which may take into account Franchisor’s assessment of, among other
things, the long-term interests of Franchisor, the System of Operation and the Names and
Marks, without regard to its effect on any individual franchisee or location. Franchisor’s
judgment shall prevail even in cases where other alternatives may be reasonable, so long
as Franchisor is intending to benefit or is acting in a way that could benefit the System of
Operation, enhance the value of the Names and Marks, increase client satisfaction, or
minimize possible consumer, brand or location confusion. If Franchisor’s activities or
decisions are supported by its business judgment, no court or judge or trier of fact, or any
other person reviewing those activities or decisions may substitute his, her or its
judgment for Franchisor’s judgment, in recognition of the fact that the long-term goals of
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a franchise system, and the long-term interests of both Franchisor and its franchisees
taken together, require that Franchisor have the latitude to exercise its business judgment
in administering, managing and overseeing the System of Operation.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first
set forth above.

If corporation, limited liability company, or

partnership: FRANCHISOR:
FRANCHISEE.: CASA FRANCHISING, LLC
[INSERT FRANCHISEE NAME]

By:
Title:
Date:

By:
Name:
Title:

If individual:
FRANCHISEE:

Name:

[THIS AGREEMENT CONTINUES WITH A RIDER-AND-STATEMENT-OE-OWNERSHIP
AND-MANAGEMENTATTACHMENTS; WHICH AREIS A PART OF
THIS AGREEMENT.]
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RIDER TO CASA DE CORAZON FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS RIDER is a part of the Franchise Agreement dated the day of
, 20, by and between CASA FRANCHISING, LLC (“Franchisor”) and

(“Franchisee”).

1.) The Search Area the Franchised Center shall be located in is:

2.) The Designated Territory for the Franchised Business shall be:

3) The address of the site from which the Franchised Center shall be operated is: ___

4.) The Initial Franchise Fee is: $

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties have executed this Rider as of the date indicated
above.

If corporation, limited liability company, or

partnership: FRANCHISOR:
FRANCHISEE: CASA FRANCHISING, LLC
[INSERT FRANCHISEE NAME]
By:
By:
Title:
Name: Date:
Title:
If individual:
FRANCHISEE:
Name:




GUARANTY

IN CONSIDERATION of the [INSERT ONE/DELETE REMAINING ONE] [grant by
Casa Franchising, LLC (“Franchisor”) of a Casa de Corazon franchise to the party named as
Franchisee in the Franchise Agreement (the “Franchisee’) to which this Guaranty is attached (the
“Franchise Agreement”)] OR [consent by Casa Franchising, LLC (“Franchisor”) to the
assignment of the Franchise Agreement to which this Guaranty is attached (the “Franchise
Agreement”) to the assignee and party named as the Franchisee in the Franchise Agreement
(“Franchisee”)], and for other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the undersigned hereby guarantee to Franchisor and to Franchisor’s successors
and assigns: (a) the payment of all amounts to be paid to Franchisor or its affiliates by the
Franchisee, whether such amounts are provided for in the Franchise Agreement or under any
other agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor or an affiliate of Franchisor; and (b) the
performance by Franchisee of all its obligations under all such agreements, and under all
manuals and operating procedures of Franchisor’s business system. The undersigned further
specifically agree to [be/remain] individually bound by all covenants, obligations and
commitments of Franchisee contained in the Franchise Agreement and such other agreements [to
the same extent as if each of the undersigned had individually been named as Franchisee in the
Franchise Agreement and such other agreements, and the undersigned had individually executed
the Franchise Agreement and such other agreements].

The undersigned understand and agree that any modification of the Franchise Agreement
or any other agreement, including any addendum or addenda thereto, or waiver by Franchisor of
the performance by Franchisee of its obligations thereunder, or the giving by Franchisor of any
extension of time for the performance of any of the obligations of Franchisee thereunder, or any
other forbearance on the part of Franchisor or any failure by Franchisor to enforce any of its
rights under the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement, including any addendum or
addenda thereto, shall not in any way release the undersigned from liability hereunder or
terminate, affect or diminish the validity of this Guaranty, except to the same extent, but only to
such extent, that the liability or obligation of Franchisee is so released, terminated, affected or
diminished. Notice to the undersigned of any such modification, waiver, extension or
forbearance under the terms thereof being hereby waived. The undersigned further understand
and agree that no bankruptcy or reorganization of Franchisee shall release or otherwise affect the
obligations of the undersigned to pay all fees provided for in all agreements between Franchisee
and Franchisor or its affiliates, or otherwise owing to Franchisor or its affiliates, and to perform
all the provisions of such agreements, as well as all manuals and operating procedures of
Franchisor’s business system, nor does the same release the undersigned from being individually
bound to perform all covenants, obligations, and commitments of Franchisee contained in the
Franchise Agreement or any other agreement to the same extent as if each of the undersigned had
individually executed the Franchise Agreement and such other agreements.

This Guaranty shall be enforceable upon ten (10) days’ written notice by Franchisor to
any of the undersigned of any default by Franchisee of any of its covenants under the terms of the
Franchise Agreement and addendum or addenda thereto.

The undersigned hereby waive any and all notice of default on the part of Franchisee;
waive exhausting of recourse against Franchisee; and consent to any assignment of the Franchise



Agreement and any other agreement, in whole or in part, that Franchisor or its assignees may
make.

This Guaranty shall be a continuing Guaranty and may not be revoked without the prior
written consent of Franchisor. This Guaranty shall apply to all agreements referenced in this
Guaranty, to the renewal of all such agreements, and to any successor agreements thereto. The
obligations of the undersigned hereunder in each and every respect are joint and several with one
another as well as any other guarantors of Franchisee, whether such guaranties are entered into
prior to or after the date hereof.

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:




STATEMENT OF OWNERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

The undersigned (“Franchisee”) represents and warrants to Casa Franchising, LLC
(“Franchisor”) that as of the date set forth below all of the information below is true and

complete:

Franchisee:
State of Formation/Residency:

Form of Franchisee: ] Corporation

(select one) [] Limited liability company
[] Partnership
[ ] Individual

Franchise Director(s):

Ownership (Each owner and their spouse, if any, must sign a Guaranty)

NAME OF OWNER NO. OF SHARES/UNITS OWNERSHIP
OWNED PERCENTAGE
%
%
%
%

Management (List each individual holding a position as board-member or officer)

NAME OF INDIVIDUAL ROLE/TITLE

Franchisee acknowledges that this Statement of Ownership and Management applies to
the Casa De Corazon Franchise Agreement. Franchisee shall immediately notify Franchisor
upon any change in the information contained in this Statement of Ownership and Management,
and upon request of Franchisor, complete an updated or new Statement of Ownership and
Management and Guaranty executed by all owners of Franchisee.
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Date:

Date:

If corporation, limited liability company, or

partnership:

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Name:

Title:

If

FRANCHISEE:

individual:

Name:




FRANCHISE ASSIGNMENT, SALE AND TRANSFER
TO ENTITY OWNED BY ORIGINAL FRANCHISEE

A. Assignment and Sale

Pursuant to Section 18(c)(i) of the Casa de Corazon Franchise Agreement dated
, by and between the undersigned and Casa Franchising, LLC (the
“Agreement”), I/we hereby transfer, subject to approval by Casa Franchising, LLC (the
“Company”), all my/our rights, in the Agreement, effective , to
the transferee named below. I/we understand that this transfer does not relieve me/us of my/our
obligations under the Agreement. To induce the Company to approve this assignment:

(01) D/we agree to subordinate any payment due to me/us from the Transferee (as
defined below) to any other obligation the Transferee may have to the Company. If the
Company notifies me/us of our default by the Transferee of its obligations to the
Company under the Agreement, I/we will not accept any further amounts that may be
owed to me/us by the Transferee until the Company has confirmed, in writing, that such
defaults have been cured.

(02) I/we release the Company and its officers, directors, and agents, from all actions
and claims I/we may have against them arising out of their sale to me/us of the Franchise,
or in connection with my/our operation of the Franchise, including, but not limited to,
any claims arising under the Agreement.

Name of New Franchisee (“Transferee”)

Address of Transferee

City, State and Zip Code

Signature of Original Franchisee (‘“Transferor”)

Date
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B. Acceptance of Transfer by New Franchisee

The undersigned entity hereby accepts transfer of the Agreement and agrees to be bound by all of
the provisions of the Agreement and to assume all of the obligations required of Franchisee
named herein.

(name of new Franchisee)

By: Dated:
Signature, Title

C. Approval of Transfer

It is hereby agreed that the transferee named above is approved and accepted as Franchisee for
the Franchised Business described in the Agreement and is authorized to exercise all rights and
obligations of Franchisee named in the Agreement including the right to renew the Agreement
upon expiration thereof, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

CASA FRANCHISING, LLC

Dated: By:

Its:
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GENERAL RELEASE
[USED IN EVENT OF TRANSFER]

In consideration of the agreement of Casa Franchising, LLC (“Franchisor”) to consent to the
assignment by (“Franchisee”) of its Franchise
Agreement dated between Franchisee and Franchisor (the “Agreement”),
Franchisee hereby releases and forever discharges Franchisor, and all affiliates of Franchisor,
and their respective directors, officers, shareholders, employees and agents, in their corporate
and individual capacities, and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and
assigns, from any and all claims Franchisee may have against such parties, from the beginning of
time to the date hereof, known or unknown, whether in law or in equity, including, but not
limited to, any claims arising out of the offer or sale of any franchise to Franchisee, and any
matters arising under the Agreement.

NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THIS RELEASE DOES NOT RELEASE ANY
CLAIMS THE UNDERSIGNED MAY HAVE THAT MAY NOT BE RELEASED
PURSUANT TO THE FRANCHISE LAWS WHERE THE UNDERSIGNED IS A RESIDENT
OR WHERE THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS IS LOCATED, TO THE EXTENT REQUIRED
BY APPLICABLE LAW.

This general release does not apply with respect to claims arising under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, and the rules adopted thereunder.

Date




LEASE RIDER

THIS LEASE RIDER is attached to and made a part of the Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) dated
, 20 (the “Lease Execution Date”) by and between
(“Landlord) and (“Tenant™) for certain
space (the “Premises”) described in the [Lease/Sublease] as being located at
(the “Lease”). All capitalized terms
shall have the same meanings as in the Lease unless defined otherwise in this Lease Rider. If
any of the terms of this Lease Rider conflict with any of the terms of the Lease, the provisions of
this Lease Rider shall prevail.

(1) Certain Rights of Franchisor -

(a) Landlord acknowledges that Tenant is a franchisee of Casa Franchising, LLC
(“Franchisor”), and that the Casa de Corazon® early childhood learning center to be
located at the Premises is to be operated under the “Casa de Corazon” franchise system,
pursuant to a franchise agreement (“Franchise Agreement”) between Tenant and
Franchisor.

(b) Tenant and Landlord acknowledge that the Premises will be operated only as a
Casa de Corazon® early childhood learning center, and that:

(1) Upon expiration without renewal or termination of the Franchise
Agreement for any reason whatsoever, the Landlord will grant Franchisor
an option, for thirty (30) days thereafter, to replace Franchisee as lessee
and at any time thereafter to assign its interest to Franchisor, an affiliate or
another franchisee of Franchisor who would then become the lessee with
the approval of lessor, which approval may not be unreasonably withheld;

(2) Landlord agrees to furnish to Franchisor copies of any and all
correspondence and notices sent to Tenant pertaining to the Lease and the
Premises at the same time that such correspondence and notices are sent to
Tenant. To that end, Landlord shall furnish to Franchisor,
contemporaneously with that to Franchisee, written notice of any default
in the Lease and the action required to cure such default. In the event of a
monetary default, Landlord shall allow Franchisor thirty (30) days after
receipt of such notice to escrow the funds necessary to cure such default if
Franchisee fails to do so. In the event of a non-monetary default, Landlord
shall allow Franchisor thirty (30) days after Franchisor’s receipt of such
written notice to provide Landlord with a letter of undertaking to cure such
default if Franchisee fails to do so. If Franchisee fails to cure either type
of default, and Franchisor has escrowed the required funds, or provided
the necessary undertaking, as the case may be, Landlord shall take any
action necessary to remove Franchisee from the Premises and retake
possession of the Premises. Landlord shall then allow Franchisor to cure
the default and take possession of the Premises as lessee under the same
Lease, and at any time thereafter to assign Franchisor’s interest in such
Lease to another franchisee of Franchisor;



3) Landlord shall accept Franchisor, it affiliate, or Franchisor’s franchisee as
a substitute under the existing terms of the Lease upon notice from
Franchisor that it is exercising its option to replace Franchisee as lessee;
and

(4) Landlord acknowledges that, in all cases, Franchisee is solely responsible
for all obligations, payments and liabilities accruing under the Lease
unless and until Franchisor exercises its option to become substitute lessee
and actually takes possession of the Premises.

(2) Rights of Franchisor to Purchase Premises - As set forth in the Franchise Agreement, the
Franchisor has the right under certain circumstances to acquire any or all of the assets relating to
or used in the Franchised Business, including the site of the Franchised Center and any
improvements to such real property. In such case, the following provisions shall apply:

(a) The closing of any such purchase shall take place at a time and location to
be selected by Franchisor; provided, however, that such closing shall not occur any later
than ninety (90) days after the purchase price is determined pursuant to Section 19(b)(i1)
in the Franchise Agreement. If for any reason the closing is scheduled for a date after the
expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisor shall have the right to
manage the Franchised Business until such closing occurs.

(b) If Franchisor notifies Franchisee of Franchisor’s intent to exercise the
purchase option, then Franchisor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to manage
the Franchised Center for the period commencing with the expiration or termination of
the Franchise Agreement until the transaction contemplated by Section 19(b)(v) has been
consummated.

The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply if the Landlord and the Franchisee are not
affiliated in any way whatsoever.

(3) Restrrctron on Use of Premlses In regard to the use of the Premlses durrng the I:aﬂdlrerel

Fraﬂehﬁerfor the operatlon of the Center and fora perlod of two ( 2) years after the Center 1S NO

longer operated at the Property, the Property may not be used for the operation of a business or
other venture that provides child care services to children five (5) years of age or younger. The
provisions of this paragraph shall not apply duringif the term-ofthe-Lease-and-shall-continue-for

a-period-of two-years—after the Lease-has-expired-or-terminatedLandlord and the Franchisee are

not affiliated in any way whatsoever.

(4) Assumption of Lease — Franchisor shall also have the separate right, upon termination or
expiration without renewal of the Franchise Agreement, to assume the Lease for the Premises for
the remaining term of the Lease, upon the terms and conditions contained in the Lease as
previously approved by Franchisor. The foregoing right of Franchisor to require a new lease
shall apply even if there is a lease or sublease for the Premises between an affiliate of Franchisee
and Franchisee. Franchisor shall have the right to assign its rights to a third party or to sublease
the Premises subject to the lease or sublease without the prior written consent of the lessor.



(%) Third Party Beneficiary — Landlord and Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor is an
intended third-party beneficiary to the Lease, and as such, the Lease may not be amended or
cancelled so as to affect any of the provisions of this Lease Rider, or the intent of the same,
without the prior written approval of Franchisor.

(6) Right to Enter Premises — Franchisor shall have the right to enter the Premises to make
any modification or alteration necessary to protect the Casa de Corazon franchise system and
marks or to cure any default under the Franchise Agreement or under the Lease, without being
guilty of trespass or any other crime or tort. Landlord shall not be responsible for any expenses or
damages arising from any such action by Franchisor. Tenant hereby releases, acquits and
discharges Franchisor and Landlord, their respective subsidiaries, affiliates, successors and
assigns and the officers, directors, shareholders, partners, employees, agents and representatives
of each of them, from any and all claims, demands, accounts, actions and causes of action,
known or unknown, vested or contingent, which any of them may have, ever had, now has, or
may hereafter have by reason of any event, transaction or circumstance arising out of or relating
to the exercise of Franchisor’s rights pursuant to this Lease Rider.

(7) Notices — All notices sent pursuant to this Lease Rider shall be sent in the manner set
forth in the Lease, and delivery of such notices shall be effective as of the times provided for in
the Lease. For purposes of notice under the Lease, Franchisor’s mailing address shall be 6301
Wayzata Blvd. St. Louis Park, MN 55416, which address may be changed by written notice to
Landlord in the manner provided in the Lease.

(8) Successors and Assigns — This Lease Rider shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the undersigned, their legal representatives, successors and assigns. Nothing contained
herein shall, however, authorize or entitle the Franchisee to assign any of its rights or privileges
under the Franchise Agreement, which rights of the Franchisee are only as set forth in the
Franchise Agreement.

9) Entire Agreement — Insofar as the matters relating to the Landlord and the Premises are
concerned, this Lease Rider sets forth the complete agreement with the Landlord and the
Franchisor.

(10)  Counterparts — This Lease Rider may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original and together which shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

[Signature page to follow]



LANDLORD:

BY:

TITLE:

DATE:

FRANCHISOR:

CASA FRANCHISING, LLC

BY:

TITLE:

DATE:

TENANT:

BY:

TITLE:

DATE:




When recorded, return to:

Larkin Hoffman Daly & Lindgren, Ltd
8300 Norman Center Drive

Suite 1000

Minneapolis, MN 55437-1060

DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIONS,
NOTICE OF OPTION

THIS DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIONS, NOTICE OF OPTION ("Declaration") is

made and entered into this day of , 20 by:
located at
(“Declarant”).
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Declarant is the fee simple owner of the property
located in County at .. and more particularly

described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”);

WHEREAS, (“Franchisee”) is entering into that certain Franchise
Agreement (the "Franchise Agreement') of even date herewith with Casa Franchising, LLC,
a Minnesota limited liability company (the "Company") pursuant to which the Company is
granting a license to the Franchisee to operate a Casa de Corazon intercultural early childhood
learning center at the Property (the "Center") pursuant to the terms of the Franchise

Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement requires, among other matters, that (i) during
the term of the Franchise Agreement, the Property may only be used for the operation of the
Center; (i1) for a period of two (2) years after the Center is no longer operated at the Property,
the Property may not be used for the operation of a business or other venture that provides
child care services, to children five (5) years of age or younger; and (iii) the Company has the
right to purchase the Center assets and/or the Property;

WHEREAS, Declarant and Franchisee are affiliated entities;

WHEREAS, Declarant and Franchisee are entering into a Lease Agreement of even
date herewith for the development and operation of the Center at the Property (the “Lease
Agreement”): and

®



WHEREAS, the Company requires Declarant to execute this Declaration as a
condition to Company’s execution of the Franchise Agreement, and Declarant is willing to
execute this Declaration and bind and restrict the Property as set forth herein, as Declarant
and Franchisee are affiliated parties who will each benefit from the operation of the
Center at the Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, Declarant does hereby declare and impose upon the
Property the following:

1. RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporated
herein by this reference.

2. NOTICE OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. Notice is hereby given of the
execution of the Franchise Agreement and of all the terms and conditions therein which affect
the Property. Copies of the Franchise Agreement may be obtained from the Company at the

following address:

6301 Wayzata Blvd.
St. Louis Park, MN 55416

3. RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF PROPERTY. The Property is hereby subjected
to all restrictions contained in the Franchise Agreement, including without limitation, the

following:

(a) During the term of the Franchise Agreement, the Property may only
be used for the operation of the Center; and

(b) For a period of two (2) vears after the Center is no longer operated at
the Property, the Property may not be used for the operation of a business or other
venture that provides child care services to children five (5) vears of age or

younger.

4. NOTICE OF OPTION TO PURCHASE. Under the Franchise Agreement,
the Company has the right, under certain circumstances, to purchase the Center assets and
the Property. Notice is hereby given of said right.

5. AMENDMENT. This Declaration may not be amended or modified in any
way whatsoever without the written joinder thereto of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Declarant has executed this Declaration as of the date and
year first above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered
in the presence of:

Casa-de Corazon™ 2024



(Signature of Witness)

Name:
Its:
(Print Name of Witness)
(Signature of Witness)
(Print Name of Witness)
As to the “Declarant”
STATE OF
COUNTY OF
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of ,
202 by ,as of .
a , on behalf of the

Signature of Notary Public

Print, type or stamp commissioned name of
Notary personally known OR
Produced Identification

Type of Identification Produced:
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ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Casa de Corazon Franchise Agreement,

the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all Casa de Corazon
franchises offered and sold in the state of Minnesota.

This Minnesota Addendum is only applicable if Franchisee is a resident of Minnesota or its

center will be located in Minnesota.

L.

The Minnesota Department of Commerce has imposed a financial assurance requirement due to
our financial condition. Therefore, we have obtained a surety bond in accordance with Minnesota
Rules 2860.1900. A copy of the surety bond is on file with the Minnesota Department of
Commerce.

Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor
from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or
requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment
notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate
or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or
(2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the
jurisdiction.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with
Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified cases)
(1) that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’
notice for non-renewal of the Franchise Agreement and (2) that consent to the transfer of the
franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

To the extent required by the Minnesota Franchise Act, the franchisor will protect the
franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other
commercial symbols related to the trademarks or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs or
expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the trademarks, provided
the franchisee is using the names in marks in accordance with the Franchise Agreement.

Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a
general release.

The Limitations of Claims section is hereby revised to comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section
80C.17, Subd. 5.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by the Franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,
or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by the Franchisor, franchise seller, or other
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.

To the extent this Addendum shall be deemed to be inconsistent with any terms or conditions of

the Franchise Agreement or Exhibits or Attachments thereto, the terms of this Addendum shall govern.




Each of the undersigned hereby acknowledges having read and understood this Addendum and
consents to be bound by all of its terms.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date first set

forth below.

Franchisor: Franchisee:
CASA FRANCHISING, LLC

By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
4879-4316-2265 v 11

4900-5766-4267, v. 6




EXHIBIT G

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT;STATEMENT-OF
OVWNERSHIP AND-MANAGEMENT-GUARANTY
AND-STAHASPECHICADDENDA AND
RELATED DOCUMENTS
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CASA DE CORAZON
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made as of the “Effective
Date” set forth on the Rider attached hereto (the “Rider”), by and between CASA
FRANCHISING, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (“Franchisor”), and the
“Developer” set forth on the Rider (“Developer”)

INTRODUCTION

Franchisor and its affiliates have developed certain policies, procedures and techniques
for the operation of Spanish immersion intercultural early childhood learning centers under the
Casa de Corazon service mark that provide educational programs to children from six weeks to
five years of age. These centers are identified by their Spanish immersion curriculum in all
classes as well as their natural organic meals made on-site for the students from Franchisor’s
proprietary recipes. Developer has applied to Franchisor for development rights to develop and
operate two (2) or more Franchised Businesses (as defined below) within the Development
Territory (as defined below), and the application has been approved by Franchisor in reliance on
all the representations made in the application.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promise of the parties hereto, and
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1 DEFINITIONS

(a) “Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or
other business entity of which Developer or one or more of Developer’s majority owners
owns at least fifty percent (50%) of the total authorized ownership interests, as long as
Developer or such owner(s) have the right to control the management of the corporation,
limited liability company, partnership, or other business entity, and in each case approved
by Franchisor.

(b) “Competitive Business” shall mean any business that provides educational
services, including child care services, to children of any age between the ages of six
weeks and 5 years or any business that is developing such businesses.

(©) “Confidential Information” means the methods, techniques, formats, marketing
and promotional techniques and procedures, specifications, information, recipes,
operations manuals, systems, and knowledge of and experience in the operation,
development and franchising of Franchised Businesses that Franchisor communicates to
Developer or that Developer otherwise acquires in operating the Development Business
or Franchised Business described herein. Confidential Information does not include
information, processes or techniques that are generally known to the public, other than
through disclosure (whether deliberate or inadvertent) by Developer.

(d) “Development Business” shall mean the business to be operated under this
Agreement to develop Franchised Businesses in the Development Territory.

Casa de Corazon® 20242025
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(e) “Franchised Business” shall mean the business franchised under a franchise
agreement with Franchisor that will operate an early childhood learning center utilizing
the System of Operation and the Names and Marks.

® “Names and Marks” shall mean the commercial trade names, trademarks, service
marks, domain names, and other commercial symbols, including associated logos, now or
hereafter selected, used, or promoted by Franchisor and licensed to Developer or its
Affiliates under a franchise agreement for use in connection with the System of
Operation and the operation of Franchised Businesses.

(2) “System of Operation” shall mean the business plans and methods developed by
Franchisor and its affiliates to be used in connection with a Spanish immersion
intercultural early childhood learning center providing educational programs to children
from six weeks to five years of age through a Spanish immersion curriculum meeting
Franchisor’s standards that provides natural organic meals made on-site for the students
from the Franchisor’s proprietary recipes or recipes otherwise meeting Franchisor’s
standards. The “System of Operation” includes standards, specifications, methods,
procedures, techniques, and management systems, all of which may be changed,
improved and further developed from time to time by Franchisor, but specifically
excludes any employee policies or procedures that Franchisor may make available to
Developer (or its Affiliate) for its optional use.

2 GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

(a) Development Rights. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and
provided that Developer is in full compliance with this Agreement, Franchisor grants
Developer the right to develop the number of Franchised Business(es) set forth on and
pursuant to the development schedule included on the Rider attached hereto (the
“Development Schedule”), within the geographic area described on the Rider attached
hereto (the “Development Territory”). Time is of the essence for the development of
each Franchised Business in accordance with the Development Schedule.

(b) Exclusions to Development Schedule. Developer acknowledges and agrees that
the following shall not be added or count towards the calculation to determine whether
Developer has satisfied any cumulative number of Franchised Businesses required to be
opened as provided in the Development Schedule:

(1) any business that operates under any marks or names other than Casa de
Corazon;

(2) any Casa de Corazon early childhood learning center developed outside of
the Development Territory; or

3) any Franchised Business Developer (and/or its Affiliate) owns that is
located inside of the Development Territory that is closed within six (6) months of
the date it opens (regardless of the reason for such closure). Developer (and/or its
Affiliate) may not close any Franchised Business without Franchisor’s prior
written consent.

Casa de Corazon® 20242025
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(©) Development Territory. Provided Developer and its Affiliates are in full
compliance with this Agreement (including with respect to the cumulative number of
Franchised Businesses opened and in operation as required by the Development
Schedule) and all other agreements between Developer (or any of its Affiliates) and
Franchisor (or any of Franchisor’s affiliates), including any franchise agreement between
any of the foregoing parties, then, during the Term only, except as otherwise provided in
this Agreement, neither Franchisor nor any of its affiliates will operate, or authorize any
other party to operate, a Spanish immersion intercultural early childhood learning center
under the Casa de Corazon mark, that is physically located within the Development
Territory. Developer acknowledges that the foregoing restrictions do not prevent
Franchisor or its affiliates from any activity not specifically set forth in the foregoing
restrictions, including:

(1) Operating, or allowing others to operate, similar or identical businesses
located outside the Development Territory, whether under the Names and Marks
or other trade or service marks, even if the businesses compete with Developer’s
or its Affiliate’s Franchised Business(es);

(2) Operating, or allowing others to operate, businesses inside the
Development Territory under the Names and Marks or other trade or service
marks that do not provide the same or substantially similar services to those
provided under a franchise agreement with Franchisor;

3) Selling products to third parties even if such products are sold or provided
to Developer or its Affiliates for use in Developer’s or its Affiliate’s Franchised
Business(es), whether located in the Development Territory or otherwise and
whether under the Names and Marks or other trade or service marks;

4) Selling goods or services, or granting others the right to sell goods or
services, similar to or competitive with those sold by Developer’s or its Affiliate’s
Franchised Business(es), whether using the Names and Marks or other trade or
service marks, through other distribution channels (including the Internet, catalog
sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing) both inside and outside the
Development Territory;

(5) Acquiring businesses that are similar to Developer’s or its Affiliate’s
Franchised Business(es); or

(6) The sale of Franchisor or substantially all of its assets to, or merger of
Franchisor with, any third party regardless of whether such third party operates, or
franchises the operation of, businesses similar to Developer’s or its Affiliate’s
Franchised Business(es).

After the Term, Franchisor and its affiliates may engage, and allow others to engage, in
any activities Franchisor or its affiliates desire within and outside the Development
Territory without any restrictions whatsoever, subject only to Developer’s (or any
Affiliate’s) rights under franchise agreements with Franchisor then in effect.

Casa de Corazon® 20242025
Development Agreement 3



(d) Development Fee. In consideration for the grant of the development rights to
Developer, Developer shall pay to Franchisor the “Development Fee” set forth on
Schedule A. The Development Fee shall be due and payable upon execution of this
Agreement. The Development Fee shall be deemed to have been earned by Franchisor at
the time it is due, and shall not be refundable, except that Franchisor will credit a pro rata
portion of the Development Fee paid under this Agreement towards the initial franchise
fee due under each franchise agreement Developer or its Affiliate signs with Franchisor
pursuant to this Agreement. Any remaining Development Fees paid under this
Agreement upon termination or expiration of this Agreement shall be retained by
Franchisor.

(e) No Rights to System of Operation or Names and Marks. This Agreement does
not grant Developer or its Affiliates the right to use the System of Operation or the
Names and Marks, such rights being exclusively governed by the applicable franchise
agreement entered into by Developer or its Affiliate and Franchisor.

3 DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS

(a) Development Obligations. Developer (and/or its Affiliate) shall develop, open
for business, and continuously operate the agreed-upon cumulative number of Franchised
Business(es) within the Development Territory by the dates set forth on the Development
Schedule. Developer or its Affiliate will develop, open, and operate each Franchised
Business under a separate franchise agreement (and related documents) with Franchisor.
The franchise agreement (and related documents) that Developer or its Affiliate will sign
for each Franchised Business will be Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise
agreement and related documents, including, without limitation, personal guarantees
(collectively, the “Franchise Documents™) in effect and being used by Franchisor for the
granting of new franchises, any or all of the terms and conditions of which may differ
substantially from the terms and conditions contained in the form of franchise agreement
currently used by Franchisor as of the Effective Date. On the date this Agreement is
executed by Developer, Developer shall also execute a franchise agreement for its first
Franchised Business.

(b) Franchise Approval. Developer acknowledges and agrees that franchise
agreements are granted by Franchisor only after submission and approval of a formal
application for a Casa de Corazon franchise based on Franchisor’s then-current
requirements for franchisees and provided that Developer (and/or its Affiliate) supplies
all information requested by Franchisor and pays all required fees. Franchisor may, in its
sole discretion, choose to grant or deny applications for franchise agreements. Developer
shall comply in all respects with Franchisor’s franchise application policies and
procedures in force at such time as Developer (and/or its Affiliate) may apply for a
franchise agreement. Developer understands and agrees that any activities undertaken in
reliance on this Agreement or the potential grant of a franchise hereunder prior to signing
a franchise agreement with Franchisor are at Developer’s own risk and expense.

(c) Franchise Documents. Within twenty (20) days after Franchisor approves
Developer’s (or its Affiliate’s) application for a Franchised Business and the issuance of
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Franchisor’s then-current Franchise Disclosure Document and other Franchise
Documents, Developer (and/or its Affiliates), and their respective owners to the extent
required, must sign all Franchise Documents requested by Franchisor for the Franchised
Business proposed to be developed. If Developer (and/or its Affiliate), or any of their
respective owners, do not do so, then Franchisor may withdraw its approval of such
application for a Franchised Business. After Developer (and/or its Affiliate) sign the
Franchise Documents for a particular Franchised Business, the terms and conditions of
those Franchise Documents will control the further development and operation of that
Franchised Business.

(d) Site Approval. Developer (and/or its Affiliate) shall be solely responsible for
locating appropriate sites for the construction of each Franchised Business and taking all
other actions necessary to finance, build, and construct such Franchised Business(es).
Developer understands and agrees that all proposed sites are subject to Franchisor’s prior
approval in its sole discretion.

(e) Opening. Developer (and/or its Affiliate) shall open each Franchised Business by
the date set forth in the applicable Franchise Documents, subject to satisfaction of all
condition precedents to opening in the Franchise Documents.

® Confidential Information. Developer, on behalf of itself and Affiliates,
acknowledges and agrees that it shall not acquire any interest in the Confidential
Information, other than the right to use it in developing Franchised Businesses pursuant
to this Agreement, and that the use or duplication of the Confidential Information in any
other business or other venture constitutes an unfair method of competition. Developer,
on behalf of itself and its Affiliates, acknowledges and agrees that the Confidential
Information is proprietary and is a trade secret of Franchisor and is disclosed to
Developer solely on the condition that Developer: (i) will not use the Confidential
Information in any other business or other venture; (ii) will maintain the absolute
confidentiality of the Confidential Information during and after the Term; (iii) will not
make unauthorized copies of any portion of the Confidential Information disclosed in
written form; and (iv) will adopt and implement all procedures Franchisor directs to
prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information. The restrictions
on Developer’s disclosure and use of the Confidential Information will not apply to
disclosure of Confidential Information in judicial or administrative proceedings to the
extent Developer is legally compelled to disclose this information, if Developer provides
Franchisor the opportunity to obtain an appropriate protective order or other assurance of
confidential treatment for the information required to be so disclosed.

4 ASSIGNMENT

(a) By Franchisor. This Agreement is fully assignable by Franchisor without the
consent of Developer or any of its Affiliates, and shall inure to the benefit of any assignee
or other legal successor in interest of Franchisor.

(b) General Prohibition on Developer Assignment. Developer (and each of its
owners) acknowledges that Franchisor granted Developer the rights under this Agreement
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because of Developer’s (and its owners’) individual and collective character, skill,
business acumen, financial capability, and ability to develop, open, and operate
Franchised Businesses according to Franchisor’s standards. These rights are personal to
Developer’s and its owners. Therefore, Developer may not, and Developer may not
permit any of its owners to, transfer, assign, or otherwise encumber this Agreement, or
any portion of this Agreement or part of any Development Territory, or any of ownership
interests in Developer (whether directly or indirectly).

(©) Statement of Ownership and Management. At the time this Agreement is
executed by Developer, Developer shall also complete the Statement of Ownership and
Management attached hereto, and, if Developer is a corporation, partnership, or limited
liability company, each owner of Developer as of the date hereof, as well as any future
owners of Developer, must sign Franchisor’s then-current Guaranty at the time such
individual becomes an owner of Developer. Developer shall immediately notify
Franchisor of any change in any of the information in the Statement of Ownership and
Management last submitted to Franchisor. Further, upon request of Franchisor,
Developer shall provide Franchisor with an updated Statement of Ownership and
Management.

TERM

Unless otherwise terminated, this Agreement’s term begins on the Effective Date and

ends on the earlier of: (a) the date the last Franchised Business under the Development Schedule
opens for business; or (b) the latest date for opening Franchised Businesses under the
Development Schedule (the “Term”).

6

RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

(a) Covenants. Developer acknowledges Franchisor must be protected against the
potential for unfair competition by Developer’s use of Franchisor’s training, assistance
and trade secrets in direct competition with Franchisor. Developer therefore agrees that it
shall not:

(1) During the Term, either directly or indirectly: (i) operate, own, manage, or
be employed by or consult with, any Competitive Business; (ii) offering or selling
franchises or licenses for a Competitive Business; (iii) divert or attempt to divert
any client or potential client to any competitor of Franchisor, or a competitor of a
franchisee or of an affiliate of Franchisor; or (iv) otherwise interfere with the
business activities of Franchisor or any affiliate or any other franchisee of
Franchisor.

(2) For a period of two (2) years after the Term, either directly or indirectly:

(1) operate, own, manage, be employed by or consult with: (A) any Competitive
Business located in, or to be located in, the Development Territory, other than one
operated under a valid franchise agreement with Franchisor; or (B) any business
or other venture located in or doing business in the Development Territory that is
offering or selling franchises or licenses for the operation of Competitive
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Businesses where located, or any business or other venture located outside of the
Development Territory that is offering or selling franchises for Competitive
Businesses located in, or to be located in, the Development Territory; or (ii)
otherwise interfere with the business activities of Franchisor or any affiliate or
any other franchisee of Franchisor, including diversion or attempt to divert any
client or potential client to any competitor of Franchisor, or a competitor of a
franchisee or of an affiliate of Franchisor.

3) In the event of the violation of Section 6(a)(2) above by Developer
following the Term, the period of time Developer shall be required to abide by the
breached obligation shall be extended to a period of two (2) years after Developer
is no longer in breach of such obligation.

(b) Reasonableness. Developer agrees that the restrictions contained in this Section
6 are reasonable and necessary to protect the interests of Franchisor and other franchisees
of Franchisor. Developer acknowledges that because of the narrow scope of the
limitations, the foregoing restrictions do not unduly restrict Developer’s ability to engage
in gainful employment. If Developer violates these restrictions, then in addition to
damages incurred by Franchisor for which Developer shall be liable, Franchisor shall be
entitled to injunctive relief to prevent the continuation of such breach.

7 TERMINATION

Franchisor may terminate this Agreement and Developer’s right to develop additional
Franchised Business(es) within the Development Territory, and Franchisor shall retain any
Development Fees paid by Franchisee, at any time, effective upon delivery of written notice of
termination, if:

(a) Developer fails to satisfy either its development obligations under the
Development Schedule or any other obligation under this Agreement, which defaults
Developer shall have no right to cure;

(b) Developer is convicted in a court of competent jurisdiction of an offense directly
related to the Franchised Businesses;

(©) Developer makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or an admission of its
inability to pay its obligations as they become due, or Developer files a voluntary petition
in bankruptcy or any pleading seeking any reorganization, arrangement, composition,
adjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief under any law, admits or fails to
contest the material allegations of any such pleading filed against it, or is adjudicated
bankrupt or insolvent;

(d) Developer (or its Affiliate) makes an unauthorized assignment or transfer of this
Agreement, the Development Territory, any Franchised Business, or any ownership
interest in Developer (or its Affiliate);

(e) Developer has made material misrepresentations on its application for the
development rights hereunder or in connection with any application for a Franchised
Business; or
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63) Otherwise breaches this Agreement, any other agreement between Franchisor and
Developer (and/or Affiliate) or any specification, standard, or operating procedure
prescribed by Franchisor and does not correct such failure within the time, if any, set
forth in the applicable agreement.

Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason: (a) Developer’s
development rights and rights to develop, open, and operate Franchised Businesses shall
automatically terminate and expire; (b) Developer’s (and/or its Affiliate’s) rights to use the
System of Operation and Names and Marks shall be limited to those Franchised Businesses
currently open or operating pursuant to effective franchise agreements which Franchisor
executed and delivered prior to such expiration or termination of this Agreement; (c) Developer
shall immediately cease using Confidential Information and return to Franchisor all documents in
Developer’s possession that contain Confidential Information; and (d) Developer shall comply
with all other applicable provisions of this Agreement, including the non-compete provisions.

8 DEVELOPER REPRESENTATIONS

To induce Franchisor to execute this Agreement, Developer hereby represents and
warrants to Franchisor as follows:

(a) Standards for Service. Developer recognizes and acknowledges the importance
of maintaining Franchisor’s standards for service, and further recognizes and
acknowledges the importance of following the System of Operation in connection with
each Franchised Business;

(b) Disclosure Document. Developer has received a copy of Franchisor’s Franchise
Disclosure Document, together with copies of all contracts relating to the sale of the
franchise, at least fourteen (14) days prior to the execution of this Agreement and at least
fourteen (14) days prior to its payment of any money to Franchisor. Developer has read
and understands all such documents;

(©) Business Risks. Developer on its own behalf, and on behalf of its Affiliates,
acknowledges that: (1) Developer has the entire control and direction of the Development
Business; (2) the Development Business involves business risks, and that Developer’s
success shall be largely determined by its own skill and efforts as an independent
business person; and (3) if Developer fails at any tasks that are vital to the operation of
the Development Business, the Development Business will fail and Developer shall be
solely responsible for any such failure; and

(d) Developer Advisors; Independent Investigation. Developer has been advised
to consult with its own advisors with respect to the legal, financial, and other aspects of
this Agreement, and that Developer has had the opportunity to consult with such advisors
and also has had the opportunity to independently investigate the opportunity offered
under this Agreement. Developer has entered into this Agreement after making an
independent investigation of Franchisor’s operations.
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9 MISCELLANEOUS

(a) Compliance with Laws. Developer (and/or its Affiliates) shall comply with all
laws applicable to the Development Business.

(b) Business Judgment. Except as otherwise expressly stated in this agreement, any
consent or approval required to be obtained from Franchisor, or decision to be made by
Franchisor, may be granted or made by Franchisor in its sole and exclusive business
judgment, which may take into account Franchisor’s assessment of, among other things,
the long-term interests of Franchisor, the System of Operation, and the Names and
Marks, without regard to its effect on any individual developer, franchisee, or Franchised
Business. Franchisor’s judgment shall prevail even in cases where other alternatives may
be reasonable, so long as Franchisor is intending to benefit or is acting in a way that
could benefit the System of Operation, enhance the value of the Names and Marks,
increase customer satisfaction, or minimize possible consumer, brand, or location
confusion. If Franchisor’s activities or decisions are supported by its business judgment,
no court, arbitrator, or judge or trier of fact, or any other person reviewing those activities
or decisions may substitute his, her, or its judgment for Franchisor’s judgment, in
recognition of the fact that the long-term goals of a franchise system, and the long-term
interests of both Franchisor and its Developers and franchisees taken together, require
that Franchisor have the latitude to exercise its business judgment in administering,
managing and overseeing the System of Operation.

(c) Governing Law. Except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark
Act of 1946 (Lanham Act; 15 U.S.C. § 1050 et seq.), as amended, this Agreement shall
be governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota. The parties agree, however, that if
Developer is not a resident of Minnesota, or if the Development Business is not located
in Minnesota, then they hereby waive the provisions of the Minnesota Franchise Act,
Minn. Stat. Ch. 80C, and the regulations promulgated thereunder. If there is a statute in
the state in which the Developer or the Development Territory is situated that specifically
governs relationships between franchisees and franchisors and that law would otherwise
apply, then that particular law shall apply.

(d) Dispute Resolution. Franchisor and Developer agree that all actions arising
under this Agreement, other than an action for injunctive relief, shall be submitted to
mediation, as described in the most recent franchise agreement executed by Franchisor
and Developer (and/or its Affiliate), or if no such franchise agreement has been executed,
then as provided in the form of franchise agreement disclosed to Developer in the most
recent Franchise Disclosure Document furnished to Developer.

(e) Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding upon the parties hereto, their
respective heirs, assigns, and successors in interest.

® Headings; Developer References; Liability. The section headings are for
convenience only and do not define, limit, or construe the contents thereof. The term
“Developer” as used herein is applicable to one (1) or more persons, a corporation,
limited liability company, or a partnership, as the case may be, and the singular usage
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includes the plural and the masculine and feminine usages include the other. If there is
more than one signatory as “Developer”, all of Developer’s obligations hereunder and
under any other agreement with Franchisor or its affiliates shall be joint and several in
each and every respect and fully enforceable against each signatory.

(2) Construction. Franchisor and Developer agree that if any provision of this
Agreement is capable of two (2) constructions, one of which would render the provision
illegal or otherwise voidable or unenforceable and the other of which would render the
provision valid and enforceable, the provision shall have the meaning which renders it
valid and enforceable. The language of each provision of this Agreement shall be
construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly against Franchisor or Developer.

(h) Invalid Provisions. It is the desire and intent of Franchisor and Developer that
the provisions of this Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent possible under the laws
and public policies applied in each jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought.
Accordingly, if any provision of this Agreement is adjudicated to be invalid or
unenforceable, such adjudication is to apply only with respect to the operation of such
provision in the particular jurisdiction in which such adjudication is made. All
provisions of this Agreement are severable and this Agreement shall be interpreted and
enforced as if all completely invalid and unenforceable provisions were not contained
herein, and partially valid and enforceable provisions shall be enforced to the extent valid
and enforceable. Franchisor and Developer shall substitute a valid and enforceable
provision for any specification, standard, operating procedure, rule, or other obligation of
Developer or Franchisor which is determined to be invalid or unenforceable and is not
waived by the other.

(1) Waiver. Franchisor’s waiver of any breach by Developer, or delay or failure to
enforce any provision of this Agreement, will not be deemed to be a waiver of any other
or subsequent breach or be deemed an estoppel to enforce Franchisor’s rights respecting
that or any other breach.

() Modifications. No modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless such
modification is in writing and signed by Developer and Franchisor.

(k) Notices. All written notices permitted or required to be delivered by the
provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed so delivered: (i) when delivered by hand;
(i1) three (3) days after placed in the United States mail by registered or certified mail,
return receipt requested, postage prepaid; or (iii) one (1) business day after placed in the
hands of an overnight courier, for next day delivery, and in the case of delivery under
clauses (ii) or (iii), addressed to the party to be notified at its most current principal
business address of which the notifying party has been notified.

) Variances. This Agreement is solely between Franchisor and Developer for the
development of Franchised Businesses. Developer is aware and fully understands that
Franchisor may grant franchise and development agreements to other third parties on
terms and conditions which may differ from the terms and conditions set forth in any
franchise or development agreement between Franchisor and Developer or its Affiliate
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and, as such, nothing contained herein or elsewhere grants to Developer or its Affiliates
or is any assurance to the Developer or its Affiliates that the terms and conditions
contained in any such franchise or development agreement shall be the same or as
beneficial as in any other franchise or development agreement granted by Franchisor.

(m)  Entire Agreement. The introduction and Rider attached hereto are a part of this
Agreement, which constitutes the entire agreement of the parties, and at the time of this
Agreement, there are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between
Franchisor and Developer relating to the development rights, other than any Franchise
Documents for any Franchised Business; provided, however, nothing in this or in any
related agreement is intended to disclaim any representations Franchisor made in the
Franchise Disclosure Document furnished to Developer. This Agreement may be
executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but
all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement may
be executed and delivered via facsimile, email, or electronic signature, record, process,
confirmation, or transmission attached to or logically associated with this Agreement and
executed and adopted with the intent to sign.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Development Agreement as of

the Effective Date.
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IF CORPORATION, LLC, OR PARTNERSHIP
FRANCHISOR: DEVELOPER:

| CASA FRANCHISING, LLC

By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:
IF INDIVIDUAL.:
DEVELOPER:
Name:
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CASA DE CORAZON
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

RIDER

Part 1 (Developer)

Effective Date:
Developer:

Form of Developer:
(SELECT ONE)

Address of Developer:

[ ] Corporation formed in the state of

[] Limited liability company formed in the state of
[ ] Partnership formed in the state of

[]Individual residing in the state of

[THIS RIDER CONTINUES WITH PART 2]
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CASA DE CORAZON
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

RIDER
Part 2 (Development Schedule)
Development Territory:
Development Schedule: Developer agrees to open (__ ) Franchised

Businesses within the Development Territory, according to the
following Development Schedule:

Date

Cumulative Number of Franchised Businesses to be
Opened and Operating by Applicable Anniversary

Ist Anniversary of
Effective Date

Atleast  Casa de Corazon early childhood learning centers
currently in operation in the Development Territory.

2nd Anniversary of
Effective Date

Atleast  Casa de Corazon early childhood learning centers
currently in operation in the Development Territory.

3rd Anniversary of

Atleast  Casa de Corazon early childhood learning centers

Effective Date currently in operation in the Development Territory.
4th Anniversary of Atleast  Casa de Corazon early childhood learning centers
Effective Date currently in operation in the Development Territory.
Sth Anniversary of Atleast  Casa de Corazon early childhood learning centers
Effective Date currently in operation in the Development Territory.

Total Number to be Developed:

Development Fee:

$ 10,000 per Franchised
Business to be developed

[THIS RIDER CONTINUES WITH PART 3]
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CASA DE CORAZON
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

RIDER

Part 3 (Signature Page)

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have executed this Rider (Parts 1 to 3) as of the
Effective Date.
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DEVELOPER
DIV ITITOT LTI

Jame
NaracT
IF CORPORATION, LLC, OR PARTNERSHIP
FRANCHISOR: DEVELOPER:

CASA FRANCHISING, LLC

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
IF INDIVIDUAL.:
DEVELOPER:
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Name:
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CASA DE CORAZON
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

STATEMENT OF OWNERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

The undersigned Developer (“Developer”) represents and warrants to CASA
FRANCHISING, LLC (“Franchisor”) that as of the date set forth below all of the information
below is true and complete:

Ownership (EACH OWNER MUST SIGN A GUARANTY)

NAME OF OWNER NO. OF SHARES/UNITS OWNED OWNERSHIP PERCENTAGE

%

%

%

%

Management (LIST EACH INDIVIDUAL HOLDING A POSITION AS BOARD-MEMBER OR OFFICER)

NAME OF INDIVIDUAL ROLE/TITLE

Developer acknowledges that this Statement of Ownership and Management applies to
the Casa de Corazon Development Agreement. Developer shall immediately notify Franchisor
upon any change in the information contained in this Statement of Ownership and Management,
and upon request of Franchisor, complete an updated or new Statement of Ownership and
Management and Guaranty executed by all owners of Developer.

DEVELOPER:

Date: By:
Name:

Title:
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GUARANTY

IN CONSIDERATION of the grant by CASA FRANCHISING, LLC (“Franchisor”) of Casa de
Corazon development rights to the party named as Developer (“Developer”) in the Development
Agreement to which this Guaranty is attached (the “Development Agreement”), and for other good and
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned hereby guarantee
(jointly and severally with one another and all other guarantors of Developer, whether such guaranties
are entered into prior to or after the date hereof) to Franchisor and to Franchisor’s successors and
assigns: (a) the payment of all costs and fees required to be paid to Franchisor or its affiliates by
Developer under the Development Agreement, and (b) the performance by Developer of all its
obligations under the Development Agreement. The undersigned further specifically agree to be
individually bound by all covenants, obligations, and commitments of Developer contained in the
Development Agreement to the same extent as if each of the undersigned had individually been named as
Developer in the Development Agreement, and the undersigned had individually executed the
Development Agreement.

The undersigned understand and agree that any modification of the Development Agreement,
including any addendum or addenda thereto, or waiver by Franchisor of the performance by Developer of
its obligations thereunder, or the giving by Franchisor of any extension of time for the performance of
any of the obligations of Developer thereunder, or any other forbearance on the part of Franchisor or any
failure by Franchisor to enforce any of its rights under the Development Agreement, including any
addendum or addenda thereto, shall not in any way release the undersigned from liability hereunder or
terminate, affect or diminish the validity of this Guaranty, except to the same extent, but only to such
extent, that the liability or obligation of Developer is so released, terminated, affected, or diminished.
Notice to the undersigned of any such modification, waiver, extension, or forbearance under the terms
thereof being hereby waived.

The undersigned further understand and agree that no bankruptcy or reorganization of Developer
shall release or otherwise affect the obligations of the undersigned to pay all costs and fees provided for
in the Development Agreement, or otherwise owing to Franchisor or its affiliates, and to perform all the
provisions of the Development Agreement, nor does the same release the undersigned from being
individually bound to perform all covenants, obligations, and commitments of Developer contained in the
Development Agreement to the same extent as if each of the undersigned had individually executed the
Development Agreement. This Guaranty shall be enforceable upon ten (10) days’ written notice by
Franchisor to any of the undersigned of any default by Developer of any of its covenants under the terms
of the Development Agreement and addendum or addenda thereto. The undersigned hereby waive any
and all notice of default on the part of Developer; waive exhausting of recourse against Developer; and
consent to any assignment of the Development Agreement, in whole or in part, that Franchisor or its
assignees may make. This Guaranty shall be a continuing Guaranty and may not be revoked without the
prior written consent of Franchisor. This Guaranty shall apply to all agreements referenced in this
Guaranty, to the renewal of all such agreements, and to any successor agreements thereto.

Date:

Name:

Date:

Name:
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ADDENDUM TO
CASA DE CORAZON DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR THE
STATE OF MINNESOTA

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Casa de Corazon Development
Agreement, the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all Casa de
Corazon franchises offered and sold in the State of Minnesota or if the Casa de Corazon business will be
located in the State of Minnesota.

This Minnesota Addendum is only applicable if Developer is a resident of Minnesota or if
Developer’s business will be located in Minnesota.

1. The Minnesota Department of Commerce has imposed a financial assurance requirement
due to our financial condition. Therefore, we have obtained a surety bond in accordance with Minnesota
Rules 2860.1900. A copy of the surety bond is on file with the Minnesota Department of Commerce.

2. Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21, and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit
Franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial,
or requiring Developer to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties, or judgment notes. In
addition, nothing in the Development Agreement can abrogate or reduce (a) any of Developer’s rights as
provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C; or (b) Developer’s rights to any procedure, forum, or
remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

3. With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, Franchisor will comply with
Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified cases) (a) that
Developer be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for
non-renewal of the Development Agreement; and (b) that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not
be unreasonably withheld.

4. Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits Franchisor from requiring Developer to assent
to a general release.

5. Developer cannot consent to Franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. Franchisor may seek
injunctive relief. Development Agreement, Section 7(i), is revised to comply with Minnesota Statutes,
Section 80C.17, subd. 5.

6. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of
Franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

7. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, are met
independently without reference to this Addendum.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Addendum to the Development
Agreement as of the Effective Date.
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EXHIBIT H

ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF FUNDS
AUTHORIZATION



ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF FUNDS AUTHORIZATION

The undersigned hereby—has(“Franchisee”) acknowledges that on or about , 202
Franchisee and Casa Franchising, LLC (“Franchisor”) entered into a Franchise Agreement with—Casa

Franehistre—EEC-(the-"Franchise-Agreement”)—and—authorizes CasaFranchisteEEC - Casa™or-any-otits
affiliated-entitiesto for the operation of a Casa de Corazon early childhood learning center franchise.

To enable the Franchisor to receive automatic payments pursuant to the Agreement, Franchisee authorizes

(“Authorization”) Franchisor to withdraw funds from and otherwise initiate ene-time;—weekly—and/or-monthly
ACH-debit and-eredit-entries againstto Franchisee’s bank account, indicated below, and the depository named

below ( “Depos1torv”) to deb1t the same to such accounte#th%ndem&gﬂed—w&h—yewﬁwaﬁm&e%eﬁame&m—fef

Depository Name:
Branch:
City State and Zip:

Transit/ ABA#:

Bank Account Name:
Bank Account Number:
Tax ID for Account:

This Authorization is to remain in full force and effect until the underlying obligations of the Agreement have
been satisfied in full or expressly released in writing by Franchisor. Franchisee expressly agrees that this
Authorization will apply to—Casa—er any affiliate—pursuant—teand all depositories and bank accounts that
Franchlsee opens durmg the anehfseterm of the Agreement efand any e%her—agfeemem—be%ween—the




AccountName— Bankrenewal terms. Without limiting the above, Franchisee acknowledges

and agrees that if Franchisee closes any bank account, Franchisee will:

immediately notify Franchisor in writing;

open or otherwise establish another bank account meeting Franchisor’s requirements;

execute and deliver to Franchisor all documents necessary for Franchisor to begin and continue
making withdrawals from such bank account/depository by ACH debiting or other electronic means.

—
N

K

Franchisee expressly acknowledges and agrees that this Authorization will be the only written authorization
needed from Franchisee in order to initiate debit entries/ACH debit originations to Franchisee’s bank account(s)
established with any depository in the future.

Name of Franchisee:

Signature:
Print Name:

CustomerStreetAddress—————— Branch

Title:
Date:

H-1
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EXHIBIT 1

FRANCHISEE QUESTIONNAIRE



FORM OF FRANCHISE QUESTIONNAIRE

The purpose of this Certification is to determine whether any statements or promises were made to you that we
have not authorized and that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading. Please review each of the following
questions and statements carefully and provide honest and complete responses to each.

L.

Have you received and personally reviewed our Franchise Agreement and any attachments to it?

Yes No

Have you received and personally reviewed our Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD”)?

Yes No

Did you sign a receipt for the FDD indicating the date you received it?

Yes No
Have you discussed the benefits and risks of purchasing a Casa de Corazon center (the “Center”)
with an attorney, accountant or other professional advisor?

Yes No

If not, do you wish to have more time to do so?

Yes No

Do you understand that the success or failure of your Center will depend in large part upon your
skills and abilities, competition from others and other economic and business factors?

Yes No

Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise
concerning the revenues, profits or operating costs of a Casa de Corazon franchise other than as
provided in the FDD?

Yes No

Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise
regarding the amount of money you may earn in operating a Casa de Corazon franchise other than
as provided in the FDD?

Yes No

Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise
concerning the likelihood of success that you should or might expect to achieve from operating a
Casa de Corazon franchise?

Yes No

Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement, promise or
agreement concerning the training or support service or other assistance that we will furnish to you
that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the FDD?

I-1



10.

11.

Yes No

Have you paid any money to us concerning the purchase of your Casa de Corazon franchise prior
to today?

Yes No

If you have answered “Yes” to any one of questions 6-10, please provide a full explanation of each
“Yes” answer in the following blank lines. (Attach additional pages, if necessary, and refer to them
below.)

12.

I signed the Franchise Agreement and Addendum (if any) on , 20, and
acknowledge that no Agreement or Addendum is effective until signed and dated by you.

Your responses to these questions are important to us and we will rely on them.

By signing below, you are representing that you have responded truthfully to the above questions.

FRANCHISEE APPLICANT:

Dated:

I-2



EXHIBIT J

CASA LOAN DOCUMENTS



PROMISSORY NOTE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, a [limited liability
company/corporation]| (the “Maker”), promises to pay to the order of CASA ERANCHISINGDE
CORAZON, EEEINC., a Minnesota limited-liabiity-eompanycorporation, or its assigns (the “Holder”),
the principal sum of ) (as adjusted below, the “Principal Balance”), together with interest
on the unpaid Principal Balance outstanding from time to time, which interest shall begin accruing on the
date hereof, until this Note is fully paid. The outstanding Principal Balance shall accrue interest initially
at per annum, and shall be adjusted on of each calendar year prior to the
Maturity Date (as defined below) to the prime rate of interest published in the Wall Street Journal on the
last business day prior to such date.

The proceeds of the Note shall be used by Maker solely for funding the development of a Casa
de Corazon Spanish immersion dayeareintercultural early childhood learning center to be located at
, and for the operations of such center.

The Principal Balance will be paid by the Maker in 71 equal monthly installments commencing

on , and continuing on the first (1st) day of each month thereafter until the final
installment is due on (such final payment date, the “Maturity Date”).

Interest that accrues on the Principal Balance of the Note in advance of the initial payment date
above shall increase the Principal Balance. Accrued and unpaid interest on the Principal Balance of the
Note will be paid on a monthly basis contemporaneously with monthly installments of the Principal
Balance. On of each calendar year prior to the Maturity Date, in connection with an
adjustment to the interest rate described above, the aggregate amount of interest to be accrued for such
year will be calculated and equally amortized over the twelve month term of such year until the interest
rate is adjusted on of the following year or the Principal Balance is paid in full. Holder
shall notify Maker of each annual adjustment to the interest rate, and the amortized interest to be paid
with each installment of the Principal Balance for such year.

All payments hereunder will be paid via wire transfer of immediately available funds pursuant to
the wiring instructions provided by Holder, or via cash or certified check at , or at such
other place directed by the Holder, in each case as designated in writing by Holder to Maker from time to
time.

This Note is secured by that certain Security Agreement, of even date herewith, by and between
the Maker and Holder (the “Security Agreement”), and that certain Mortgage executed by Maker in favor
of Holder (the “Mortgage”), and is guaranteed by that certain Personal Guaranty, of even date herewith,
executed by in favor of Holder (the “Guaranty”). All of the indebtedness evidenced
hereby or arising hereunder, and any security interests and liens granted herein or in the Security
Agreement or Mortgage, are junior and subordinate (in right of payment, collateral security, and
enforcement) to the indebtedness, security interests, and liens owed or granted by the Maker, or any
successor thereto, to the U.S. Small Business Administration, as of the date hereof (collectively, the
“SBA Obligations”).

The Maker may prepay any amounts due hereunder without penalty. All payments hereunder
shall be applied first to payment of any costs of collection incurred by the Holder, then to payment of
accrued interest, and lastly to reduction of the Principal Balance. Partial prepayments of amounts due
under this Note shall not affect in any way the Maker’s obligation to pay any future scheduled payment
hereunder until this Note is paid in full.
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The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default” hereunder:

(a) a failure to pay any amount of the Principal Balance or interest on this Note within 10
days after the date such payment is due;

(b) any default or breach by the Maker of (i) that certain Franchise Agreement dated July29;
2022 by and between Maker and HelderCasa Franchising, LLC, (ii) the Security
Agreement, (iii) the Mortgage, or (iv) any other agreement between Maker and Holder;

(c) any default or breach by of the Guaranty;
(d) any default or breach by the Maker of any SBA Obligation;
(e) the cessation of the business of the Maker;

) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets or business of the Maker or the merger,
consolidation, or dissolution of the Maker or the sale of substantially all of the stock of the
Maker or the exchange of the stock of the Maker for equity interests of another entity; or

(2) the appointment of a receiver of any or part of the property of, assignment for the benefit
of creditors by, or commencement of any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws
by or against, the Maker; provided, however, if an involuntary petition for bankruptcy is filed
against the Maker an Event of Default shall only occur if such petition is not dismissed within
sixty (60) days from the date such petition is filed.

After the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Holder may, at the Holder’s option, declare this Note to
be immediately due and payable, and this Note shall be due and payable, together with the accrued
interest thereon, without any presentment, demand, protest, or other notices of any kind.

Time is of the essence in this Note. Any waiver by the Holder of a breach of the payment
provisions hereof shall not operate as or be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of such
provisions. Maker hereby waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dishonor, notice of
protest, protest, and all other notices or demands in connection with the delivery, acceptance or
performance of, or default under, this Note. If any suit or action is instituted to collect this Note, or any
portion hereof, the Maker agrees to pay all costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
legal expenses, incurred by the Holder.

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the
State of Minnesota without regard to its conflicts-of-law principles. THE MAKER HEREBY
CONSENTS TO THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT
SITUATED IN HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA AND WAIVES ANY OBJECTION BASED ON
FORUM NON CONVENIENS WITH REGARD TO ANY ACTIONS, CLAIMS, DISPUTES OR
PROCEEDINGS RELATED TO THIS NOTE OR ANY TRANSACTIONS ARISING THEREFROM,
OR ENFORCEMENT AND/OR INTERPRETATION OF ANY OF THE FOREGOING.

Signature Page follows



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Maker has executed this Note on the date first set forth above.

MAKER:

By:

Name:
Title:

Signature Page—
Promissory Note



SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS SECURITY AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made as of effective as of , by
, a [limited liability company/corporation] (“Debtor”), in favor of CASA

FMNGH{SH\LGDE CORAZON, EEEINC., a Minnesota hmitedtiability—eompanycorporation, and its
assigns (“Secured Party”).

To secure the payment and performance of Debtor’s obligations (the “Secured Obligations™)
under that certain Promissory Note of Debtor dated of even date herewith in the aggregate principal
amount of $ and in favor of Secured Party (as amended from time to time, the “Note”),
Debtor hereby agrees as follows:

1. Security Interest and Collateral. Debtor hereby grants to Secured Party a security
interest (the “Security Interest”) in the following property (collectively referred to as the “Collateral”):

any and all furniture, fixtures, machinery, equipment, inventory, real property, cash, deposits (of
every kind), receivables, accounts, securities, vehicles, prepaid insurance, supplies, patents,
patent rights, copyrights, trademarks, trade names, royalty rights, franchise rights, chattel paper,
license rights, documents, instruments, intellectual property, commercial tort claims, general
intangibles and any and all other goods, now owned or hereafter acquired by Debtor or any of its
subsidiaries and wherever located,

together with all substitutions and replacements for and products and proceeds of any of the foregoing
property and, in the case of all tangible Collateral, together with (i) all accessories, attachments, parts,
equipment, accessions and repairs now or hereafter attached or affixed to or used in connection with any
such goods, and (ii) all warehouse receipts, bills of lading and other documents of title now or hereafter
covering such goods.

2. Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Debtor hereby represents and warrants to,
and covenants and agrees with, Secured Party as follows:

(a) The Collateral will be used primarily for business purposes. The principal
executive office of Debtor is located at the address set forth below, and Debtor keeps and will
keep all of its books and records with respect to all of its accounts at such address:

Address for Debtor:

(b) Debtor has (or will have at the time Debtor acquires rights in Collateral hereafter
acquired or arising) and will maintain absolute title to each item of Collateral free and clear of all
security interests, liens and encumbrances, except (i) the Security Interest, (ii) purchase money
security interests, (iii) security interests granted to lenders and providers of lines of credit, and
(iv) security interests granted to secure the SBA Obligations (as defined in the Note), with
respect to which Secured Party has agreed that the Security Interest granted hereunder will be
subordinate as indicated in Section 4 below (the foregoing items in clauses (i)-(iv) are
collectively referred to herein as the “Permitted Interests”), and will defend the Collateral against
all claims or demands of all persons other than Secured Party and those holding Permitted
Interests. Debtor will not sell or otherwise dispose of the Collateral or any interest therein;
provided, however, that Debtor may sell inventory in the ordinary course of its business, as long
as such proceeds of the sale are covered by the terms of this Agreement, or replace furniture and
equipment with property of similar utility and equal or greater value.




(c) To the knowledge of Debtor, all rights to payment and all instruments,
documents, chattel papers and other agreements constituting or evidencing Collateral are (or will
be when arising or issued) the valid, genuine and legally enforceable obligation, subject to no
defense, set-off or counterclaim (other than those arising in the ordinary course of business) of
each account debtor or other obligor named therein or in Debtor’s records pertaining thereto as
being obligated to pay such obligation. Debtor will not agree to modify, amend or cancel any
such obligation (other than those arising in the ordinary course of business) without Secured
Party’s prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, nor will Debtor
subordinate any such right to payment to claims of other creditors of such account debtor or other
obligor.

(d) Debtor will (i) keep all Collateral in good repair, working order and condition,
normal depreciation excepted, and will, from time to time, replace any worn, broken or defective
parts thereof if doing so is commercially reasonable; (ii) other than taxes and other governmental
charges contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings, promptly pay all taxes and other
governmental charges levied or assessed upon or against any Collateral or upon or against the
creation, perfection or continuance of the Security Interest; (iii) keep all Collateral free and clear
of all security interests, liens and encumbrances except the Permitted Interests; (iv) keep accurate
and complete records pertaining to the Collateral and Debtor’s business and financial condition;
(w#v) promptly notify Secured Party of any material loss or damage to any Collateral in excess of
$50,000 or of any material adverse change, known to Debtor, in the prospect of payment of any
sums due on or under any instrument, chattel paper or account constituting Collateral in excess
of $50,000; (wivi) keep all Collateral insured against risks of fire (including so called extended
coverage), theft, collision (in case of collateral consisting of motor vehicles) and such other risks
all instruments, documents, assignments, security agreements and other agreements and writings
which Secured Party may at any time reasonably request in order to secure, protect, perfect or
enforce the Security Interest and Secured Party’s rights under this Agreement, including without
limitation an assignment of claim with respect to any account which is a government receivable;
and (ixviii) not use or keep any Collateral, or permit it to be used or kept, for any unlawful
purpose or in violation of any federal, state or local law, statute or ordinance.

(e) If Debtor at any time fails to perform or observe any agreement contained in
paragraph (d) above, and such failure shall continue for a period of 10 calendar days after
Secured Party gives Debtor written notice thereof, Secured Party may (but need not) (i) perform
or observe such agreement on behalf of Debtor (or, at Secured Party’s option, in Secured Party’s
own name), or (ii) take any and all other actions which Secured Party may reasonably deem
necessary to cure or correct such failure (including without limitation the payment of taxes, the
satisfaction of security interests, liens or encumbrances (other than Permitted Interests), the
performance of obligations under contracts or agreements with account debtors or other obligors,
the procurement and maintenance of insurance, the execution of financing statements, the
endorsement of instruments, and the procurement of repairs, transportation or insurance). For
purposes of this Section 2(e), Debtor hereby appoints (which appointment is coupled with an
interest) Secured Party as its attorney-in-fact with the right (but not the duty) to create, prepare,
complete, execute, deliver, endorse or file, in the name and on behalf of Debtor, any and all
instruments, documents, financing statements, applications for insurance and other agreements
and writings required to be obtained, executed, delivered or endorsed by Debtor to carry out
Debtor’s duties under this Agreement until Debtor’s default(s) under this paragraph has been
cured hereunder.



3. Remedies.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Note, or any breach of default of any term

of this Agreement by Debtor, Secured Party may exercise any one or more of the following rights
or remedies if any of the Secured Obligations are not paid when due: (i) exercise and enforce

any or all rights and remedies available after default to a secured party under the Minnesota

Uniform Commercial Code, including but not limited to the right to take possession of any

Collateral and the right to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of or use any or all of the Collateral,

(i1) examine or inspect any Collateral, wherever located, and examine, inspect and copy Debtor’s

books and records pertaining to the Collateral and its business and financial condition; (iii) send

requests to account debtors or other obligors for verification of amounts owed to Debtor; (iv)

require Debtor to assemble the Collateral and make it available to Secured Party at a place to be

designated by Secured Party which is reasonably convenient to both parties; and (v) exercise or

enforce any or all other rights or remedies available to Secured Party by law or agreement against
the Collateral, against Debtor or against any other person or property. Secured Party is hereby

granted a non-exclusive, worldwide and royalty-free license to use or otherwise exploit all

trademarks, franchises, copyrights and patents of Debtor that Secured Party deems necessary or

appropriate to the disposition of any Collateral, so long as such use or exploitation shall in no

way impair the proprietary value of such trademarks, franchises, copyrights and patents. If
notice to Debtor of any intended disposition of Collateral or any other intended action is required
by law in a particular instance, such notice shall be deemed commercially reasonable if given in

writing (in the manner specified in Section 5 hereof) at least ten calendar days prior to the date of
intended disposition or other action. Any deficiency with respect to the Secured Obligations that

exists after the disposition or liquidation of the Collateral shall be a continuing liability of the

Debtor to the Secured Party and shall be immediately paid by the Debtor to the Secured Party.

For the sake of clarity, the payment of any Secured Obligations by Debtor pursuant to this

Section shall not release Debtor’s obligation to pay and fully satisfy any and all future earned

Secured Obligations hereunder.

4, Subordination. Secured Party has agreed to subordinate the Secured Obligations to the
SBA Obligations under of the Note. Accordingly, the Security Interest granted hereby shall be junior and
subordinate to any SBA Obligations as described in the Note.

5. General Provisions.

(a) This Agreement can be waived, modified, amended, terminated or discharged,
and the Security Interest can be released, only explicitly in a writing signed by Secured Party. A
waiver signed by Secured Party shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the
specific purpose given. Mere delay or failure to act shall not preclude the exercise or
enforcement of any of Secured Party’s rights or remedies.

(b) All rights and remedies of Secured Party shall be cumulative and may be
exercised singularly or concurrently, at Secured Party’s option, and the exercise or enforcement
of any one such right or remedy shall neither be a condition to nor bar the exercise or
enforcement of any other.

(c) All notices to be given to Debtor shall be deemed sufficiently given at the time
of receipt after deposit in the United States mails, registered or certified, postage prepaid, or

when personally delivered to Debtor at its address set forth in Section 2(a) above.

(d) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Debtor and
Secured Party and their respective heirs, representatives, successors and assigns and shall take
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effect when signed by Debtor and accepted by Secured Party. Secured Party may execute this
Agreement if appropriate for the purpose of filing, but the failure of Secured Party to execute this
Agreement shall not affect or impair the validity or effectiveness of this Agreement.

(e) Except to the extent otherwise required by law, this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota without regard to its conflicts-of-law principles
and, unless the context otherwise requires, all terms used herein which are defined in Articles 1
and 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code, as in effect in said state shall have the meanings therein
stated and all capitalized terms used herein which are defined in the Note shall have the
meanings stated therein. DEBTOR HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE EXCLUSIVE
JURISDICTION OF ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT SITUATED IN HENNEPIN
COUNTY, MINNESOTA AND WAIVES ANY OBJECTION BASED ON FORUM NON
CONVENIENS WITH REGARD TO ANY ACTIONS, CLAIMS, DISPUTES OR
PROCEEDINGS RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE NOTE OR ANY
TRANSACTIONS  ARISING THEREFROM, OR  ENFORCEMENT  AND/OR
INTERPRETATION OF ANY OF THE FOREGOING.

) If any provision or application of this Agreement is held unlawful or
unenforceable in any respect, such illegality or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions
or applications which can be given effect, and this Agreement shall be construed as if the
unlawful or unenforceable provision or application had never been contained herein or
prescribed hereby. All representations and warranties contained in this Agreement shall survive
the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the creation and payment of the
Secured Obligations.

(2) This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which
together shall be deemed one original.

Signature Page follows



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Debtor has executed and delivered to Secured Party this Security
Agreement as of the date first above written.

DEBTOR:

Name:
Title:

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED:

SECURED PARTY:

CASA FRANCHISINGDE CORAZON, EECINC.

By:
Name: Natalie Standridge
Its: President

Signature Page—

Security Agreement



MORTGAGE

IName and Return Address:

Parcel Identification Number (PIN)

Given By:

In favor of:

CASA FRANCHISINGDE CORAZON, EECINC.

Dated as of , 202




MORTGAGE

This Mortgage (the “Mortgage”) is made and entered into as of the day of ,
20, by a corporation (the “Grantor” or “Borrower”) in favor of CASA
ERANCHISINGDE CORAZON, EE=EINC., a Minnesota hmitedtiabiityeempanycorporation, with an
address of 6301 Wayzata Blvd., St. Louis Park, MN 55416 (“Lender”).

RECITALS

A. Grantor is the owner of certain real property. The Borrower has requested a loan from lender
pursuant to that certain Promissory Note (the “Note”) and that certain Security Agreement (the “Security
Agreement”), both dated effective as of

B. The Lender has agreed to continue to extend such loan to the Borrower on the condition that the
Grantor execute, for the benefit of the Lender, this Mortgage.

AGREEMENT

In consideration of those obligations as stated in the Recitals, the Grantor hereby agrees with the
Lender as follows:

1. Grant of Mortgage. Grantor, to secure the payment of the Note in the total principal amount of
S in accordance with its terms and all increases, additions, extensions, modifications and
renewals thereof, and all other sums which may become due from Grantor to Lender by virtue of
Mortgage, the Note, the Security Agreement, and all other documents executed in connection with this
transaction (collectively such documents are hereinafter referred to as the “Loan Documents”), including
but not limited to any and all principal, interest, late charges, loan commissions, service charges,
liquidated damages, expenses, advances due or incurred by Lender in connection with the Loan
(regardless of whether any Loan proceeds have been disbursed) and all other obligations, liabilities and
indebtedness of Grantor to Lender (collectively, the “Indebtedness”), and to secure the performance of all
covenants and agreements herein contained and in the Loan Documents by Grantor to be performed, and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by
Grantor, does hereby grant, bargain, sell, mortgage, convey, transfer, assign and warrant unto Lender, its
successors and assigns, forever, all right, title and interest which Grantor now has or may hereafter
acquire in and to that tract or parcel of land (the “Real Property”) legally described on Exhibit A, as may
be amended or restated from time to time, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, together
with all right, title and interest which Grantor now has or may hereafter acquire in and to the properties
described as follows (all of which are collectively referred to herein as the “Property”):

A. All right, title and interest of Grantor, including any after-acquired title or reversion, now
or at any time hereafter existing, in and to all highways, roads, ways, streets, avenues, alleys and other
public thoroughfares, bordering on or adjacent to the Real Property or any part thereof, together with all
right, title and interest of Grantor to the land lying within such highways, roads, ways, streets, avenues,
alleys and other public thoroughfares, whether heretofore or hereafter vacated, and all strips and gores
adjoining or within the Real Property or any part thereof;

B. All and singular the tenements, hereditaments, licenses, permits, consents, easements,
appurtenances, passages, waters, water rights (whether riparian, appropriative or otherwise, and whether
or not appurtenant), water courses, riparian rights, air rights, oil, gas, minerals, coal or other substances
underlying or relating to the Real Property, all timber to be cut, all as-extracted collateral (as defined in

2



the Minnesota Uniform Commercial Code), other rights and privileges thereof or in any way now or at
any time hereafter belonging to or in any way appertaining to the Real Property or any part thereof or to
any property or right now or at any time hereafter comprising a part of the property and rights subject to
this Mortgage; and all right, title and interest of Grantor, whether now or at any time hereafter existing,
in all reversions and remainders to the Real Property and such other property or right;

C. All buildings and improvements (the “Improvements”) of every kind and description now
or hereafter located, erected or placed on the Real Property, or any part thereof, including, but not limited
to, all structures, railroad spur tracks and sidings, plants, works and all materials intended for
construction, and repairs of such Improvements now or hereafter erected thereon, all of which materials
shall be deemed to be subject to this Mortgage immediately upon the delivery thereof to the Real
Property, and all fixtures now or hereafter owned by Grantor, and attached to or contained in and used in
connection with the Real Property, whether or not the same are or shall be attached to any building or
buildings in any manner and, without any further act, all extensions, additions, betterments, substitutions
and replacements to the foregoing;

D. All awards and other compensation, whether heretofore, now or hereafter made, to the
Grantor, its respective successors and assigns, for any taking by eminent domain, either permanent or
temporary, of all or any part of the Real Property or any part thereof and all the properties and rights
described in subsections A. through C. above or any part thereof or any easement or appurtenance
thereof, including any awards for any changes of grade of streets, which said awards and compensation
are hereby assigned to Lender; and

E. All monies or other funds or sums at any time on deposit with Lender pursuant to the
terms hereof or required by the terms of the loan agreement to be on deposit with Lender; deposits for the
benefit of Grantor (including but not limited to deposits with respect to utility services, and any deposits
or reserves hereunder or under any other Loan Documents for taxes, insurance or otherwise); all
unearned insurance premiums arising from or relating to the Real Property or any part thereof or the
properties and rights described above in subsections A. through C. above or any part thereof; and all
proceeds, products, replacements, additions, substitutions, renewals and accessions of and to the Real
Property or any part thereof or the properties and rights described above in subsections A. through C. or
any part thereof.

2. Cross-Collateralization. In addition to the Note, this Mortgage secures all obligations, debts and
liabilities, plus interest thereon, of Grantor to Lender, or any one or more of them, as well as all claims
by Lender against Grantor or any one or more of them, whether now existing or hereafter arising,
whether related or unrelated to the purpose of the Note, whether voluntary or otherwise, whether due or
not due, direct or indirect, determined or undetermined, absolute or contingent, liquidated or
unliquidated, whether Grantor may be liable individually or jointly with others, whether obligated as
guarantor, surety, accommodation party or otherwise, and whether recovery upon such amounts may be
or hereafter may become barred by any statutes of limitations, and whether the obligation to repay such
amounts may be or hereafter may become otherwise unenforceable.

3. Future Advances. In addition to the Note, this Mortgage secures all future advances made by
Lender to Grantor whether or not the advances are made pursuant to a commitment. Specifically,
without limitation, this Mortgage secures, in addition to the amounts specified in the Note, all future
amounts Lender in its discretion may loan to Grantor, together with all interest thereon.




4. Payment and Performance. This Mortgage is given to secure: (i) payment of the Indebtedness;
and (i1) performance of any and all obligations under the Loan Documents and this Mortgage. Except as
otherwise provided in this Mortgage or the other Loan Documents, Grantor shall pay to Lender all
amounts secured by this Mortgage as they become due and shall strictly perform all of Grantor’s
obligations under this Mortgage.

5. Lender’s Lien for Charges and Expenses. At all times, regardless of whether any loan proceeds
have been disbursed, this Mortgage secures (in addition to any loan proceeds disbursed from time to
time) the payment of any and all loan commissions, service charges, liquidated damages, expenses, and
advances due to or incurred by the Lender in connection with the Loan to be secured hereby.

6. SBA Obligations. All of the Indebtedness evidenced hereby or arising hereunder, and any
security interests and liens granted herein or in the Loan Documents, are junior and subordinate (in right
of payment, collateral security, and enforcement) to the indebtedness, security interests, and liens owed
or granted by the Grantor, or any successor thereto, to the U.S. Small Business Administration, as of the
date hereof, including but not limited to that certain (collectively, the “SBA

Obligations”).

7. Possession and Maintenance of the Property. Grantor agrees that Grantor’s possession and use
of the Property shall be governed by the following provisions:

A. Possession and Use. Unless an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, Grantor
may: (i) remain in possession and control of the Property; and (ii) use, operate or manage the Property.

B. Duty to Maintain. Grantor shall maintain the Property in tenantable condition and
promptly perform or require tenant to perform all repairs, replacements, and maintenance necessary to
preserve its value. Grantor shall not cause, conduct or permit any nuisance nor commit, permit, or suffer
any stripping of or affirmative acts of waste on or to the Property or any portion of the Property.

C. Removal of Improvements. Grantor shall not demolish or remove any Improvements
from the Real Property that will materially impair the Property without Lender’s prior written consent,
not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. As a condition to the removal of any
Improvements and upon agreement of Grantor, Lender may require Grantor to make arrangements
satisfactory to Lender to replace such Improvements with Improvements of at least equal value.

D. Lender’s Right to Enter. Lender and Lender’s agents and representatives may enter upon
the Real Property upon prior written notice to Grantor at a reasonable time during normal business hours
and provided such entry by Lender shall not unreasonably interfere with Grantor’s business operations to
attend to Lender’s interests and to inspect the Real Property for purposes of Grantor’s compliance with
the terms and conditions of this Mortgage.

E. Compliance with Governmental Requirements. Grantor shall promptly comply, or
require any and all tenants to comply, with all laws, ordinances, and regulations, now or hereafter in
effect, of all governmental authorities applicable to the use or occupancy of the Property, including
without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act. Grantor may contest in good faith any such law,
ordinance, or regulation and withhold compliance during any proceeding, including appropriate appeals,
so long as Grantor has notified Lender in writing prior to doing so and so long as, in Lender’s sole
opinion, Lender’s interest in the Property are not jeopardized. Lender may require Grantor to post
adequate security or a surety bond, reasonably satisfactory to Lender, to protect Lender’s interest.
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F. Duty to Protect. Grantor shall do all other acts, in addition to those acts set forth above
in this Section, which from the character and use of the Property are reasonably and commercially
necessary to protect and preserve the Property.

8. Grantor Covenants. Grantor shall:
A. Keep the Property in good condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear excepted.
B. Promptly repair, restore or rebuild any buildings or Improvements now or hereafter on

the Property which may become damaged or be destroyed by any cause whatsoever (excluding minor
inconsequential damage costing less than $50,000.00 to repair which does not materially impair the value
or utility of the Improvements), so that upon completion of the repair, restoration and rebuilding of said
buildings and Improvements there will not be any liens of any nature arising out of said repair,
restoration and rebuilding, and the Property will have a commercial value at least as great as the
commercial value of the Property prior to such damage or destruction.

C. Not directly or indirectly, without Lender’s prior written consent, create, incur, permit to
exist or assume any mortgage, pledge or other lien or claim for lien or encumbrance upon the Property or
any part thereto other than: (i) the lien and security interest of Lender as created by this Mortgage and
any other documents evidencing, securing or referring to the Note; and (ii) the SBA Obligations (the
“Permitted Encumbrances”). In the event of the creation, incurrence or existence of any such lien, claim
for lien or encumbrance, Grantor shall cause the same to be satisfied or removed, or shall bond over the
same to Lender’s satisfaction, within one hundred twenty (120) days of the creation, incurrence or
attachment thereof to the Property.

D. Not make any material alterations to any part of the Property that would materially
impair the value of the Property without the prior written consent of Lender, not to be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed.

E. Promptly notify Lender in writing, after it becomes aware of: (i) any loss or damage to
any part of the Property that exceeds $50,000.00 in any single instance; (ii) any material change in the
assessment of any part of Property by taxing authorities or in the zoning classification; (iii) the actual or
written threatened commencement of any proceedings under condemnation or eminent domain affecting
any part of the Property, including those proceedings relating to severance and consequential damage and
change in grade of streets, copies of any and all papers served in connection with any such proceedings to
be delivered to Lender upon such service; and (iv) any other action, whether contemplated (when known
to Grantor), pending or final, by any public authority or otherwise, that could materially adversely affect
the value of any part of the Property.

F. Not suffer or permit any material change in the general nature of the occupancy of the
Property without the prior written consent of Lender, not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed.

G. Not grant any easement or dedication, file or record any plat, condominium declaration
or restriction, or initiate or acquiesce in any zoning reclassification or similar changes in applicable laws,
rules and ordinances provided the value of the Property is not materially impaired without the prior
written consent of Lender, not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

H. Permit Lender to enter the Property at any reasonable time during normal business hours,
and in a manner that does not unreasonably interrupt Grantor’s use and enjoyment of the Property or the
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business operations taking place on or within the Property for the purpose of inspecting Grantor’s
compliance with the terms and provisions of this Mortgage provided Lender gives Grantor prior written
notice of the need for such inspection.

9. Environmental Covenants. Grantor agrees that Grantor’s possession and use of the Property shall
be governed by the following provisions:

A. Definitions. For purposes of this Section, the following terms shall have the meanings
hereafter ascribed to them

a. “Environmental Laws” means all federal, state and local laws including statutes,
regulations, ordinances and other governmental restrictions and requirements and common law
relating to the presence, discharge or remediation of air pollutants, water pollutants or process
wastewater or otherwise relating to the protection of human health, the environment, toxic or
hazardous substances, pesticides, herbicides, fertilizer, mold, asbestos or radon, including, but
not limited to, the Federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, the Federal Clean Air Act, the Federal
Clean Water Act, the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Toxic Substances
Control Act, the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, the Federal Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, regulations of
the Environmental Protection Agency, regulations of the Nuclear Regulatory Agency, and
regulations of any state department of natural resources or state environmental protection agency
now or at any time hereafter in effect.

b. “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any oil, flammable explosives, asbestos, urea
formaldehyde insulation, radioactive materials, hazardous wastes, toxic or contaminated
substances or similar materials, including, without limitation, any substances which are
“hazardous substances,” ‘“hazardous wastes,” ‘“hazardous materials,” “toxic substances,”
“wastes,” “regulated substances,” “industrial solid wastes,” or ‘“pollutants” under the
Environmental Laws including, but not limited to, air pollutants, water pollutants, wastewater,
pesticides, herbicides, fertilizer, mold, asbestos, radon or other health or environment threatening
substances; provided, however, that “Hazardous Materials” shall not include commercially
reasonable amounts of products used in the ordinary course of operation of the Property and
Grantor’s business which are used and stored in accordance with all applicable Environmental
Laws.

B. Representations and Warranties. In order to induce Lender to make the Loan, Grantor
represents and warrants to Lender the following:

a. To the best of Grantor’s knowledge, which Lender acknowledges consisted only
of ordering and reviewing the Environmental Report and except as disclosed in the
environmental report delivered to Lender (the “Environmental Report™), the Property is and has
been operated and maintained in material compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws.

b. Grantor has disclosed to Lender and provided Lender with true, correct and
complete copies of the results of any and all reports, tests, studies and investigations
commissioned by or on behalf of Grantor or otherwise within Grantor’s possession or control and
relating to Hazardous Materials and the Property.

c. To Grantor’s knowledge, Grantor is not a party to any litigation or administrative
proceeding and has not received written notice of any claim and, so far as is known by Grantor,
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there is no claim, litigation or administrative proceeding threatened against Grantor relating to
the Property, which in either case asserts or alleges: (i) Grantor violated any Environmental
Laws; (ii) Grantor is required to clean up or take remedial or other response action due to the
disposal, discharge or other release of any Hazardous Materials, (iii) the Property is in violation
of any Environmental Laws; or (iv) Grantor or any other person is required to contribute to the
cost of any past, present or future cleanup or remedial or other response action which arises out
of or is related to the disposal, discharge or other release of any Hazardous Materials.

d. To Grantor’s knowledge, with respect to the period during which Grantor owns
or occupies the Property and, to the Grantor’s knowledge with respect to the time before Grantor
owned or occupied the Property, except as disclosed in the Environmental Report, no person or
entity has caused or permitted materials to be generated, stored, treated, recycled or disposed of
on, under or at the Property which materials, if known to be present, would require cleanup,
removal or some other remedial action under Environmental Laws.

e. To Grantor’s knowledge, there are no conditions existing currently which would
subject Grantor to damages, penalties, fines, injunctive relief or cleanup or other costs or
expenses under any Environmental Laws or which would require cleanup, remedial action or
other response pursuant to Environmental Laws.

f. Grantor is not, to Grantor’s knowledge, subject to any judgment, decree, order or
citation related to or arising out of any Environmental Laws and to Grantor’s knowledge, has not
been named or listed as a potentially responsible party by any governmental body or agency in a
matter arising under any Environmental Laws.

g. Grantor has timely obtained and is in compliance in all material respects with all
applicable permits, licenses and approvals required under all Environmental Laws; all such
permits, licenses, and approvals are in full force and effect and any fees and/or conditions for
such permits, licenses and approvals have been paid and/or complied with.

h. To Grantor’s knowledge, no pesticides, herbicides, fertilizers or other materials
have been used on, applied to or disposed of on the Property in violation of any Environmental
Laws.

1. To Grantor’s knowledge, the use of the Property for its intended purpose will not

result in a violation of any Environmental Laws.

C. Environmental Covenants. While any part of the principal of or interest on the Note
remains unpaid, Grantor shall and shall require all tenants of the Property to:

a. Timely comply in all material respects with all applicable Environmental Laws
and all permits, licenses and approvals required under any Environmental Laws with respect to
the Property; provided, however, that such compliance shall not be required so long as Grantor
shall: (i) cause the validity or applicability thereof to be contested in good faith and with due
diligence at no expense to Lender, by appropriate legal proceedings which shall have the effect
of preventing the immediate enforcement of the same against Grantor, tenants of the Property, or
the Property; and (ii) pending the outcome of such legal proceedings, cause Lender to receive
such reasonable security as may be requested by Lender to ensure compliance with all
Environmental Laws and all potential interest and maximum penalties.
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b. Provide Lender, promptly upon receipt, copies of any correspondence, notice,
pleading, citation, indictment, complaint, order, decree or other document from any source
asserting or alleging a violation of any Environmental Law applicable to the Property by Grantor
or any other person, or asserting or alleging a circumstance or condition which may require a
financial contribution by Grantor or any tenant, lessee, licensee or occupant of the Property or a
cleanup, remedial action or other response by or on the part of Grantor under Environmental
Laws.

c. Advise Lender in writing as soon as Grantor becomes aware of any condition or
circumstance which makes any of the representations or warranties contained herein incomplete
or inaccurate in all material respects.

d. Include in all leases or other agreements for the use of all or any part of the
Property a covenant from the tenant, lessee, licensee or occupant of the Property: (i) to not
violate any Environmental Laws or permit the storage, disposal or discharge of any Hazardous
Materials on the premises; and (ii) to indemnify and hold the lessor harmless for, from and
against all losses, costs, expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) or damages of any kind
arising from a breach of such covenant.

e. Subject to Grantor’s right to contest the same as provided above, promptly
undertake and diligently pursue to completion any legally required remedial containment or
cleanup action in the event of any release or discharge or threatened release or discharge of any
Hazardous Materials on, upon, into or from the Property.

f. At all times, to maintain and retain complete and accurate records of all
applicable releases, discharges or other use, handling, storage, disposal or transport of any
Hazardous Materials on, onto, into or from the Property, including without limitation, records of
the quantity and type of any such substance disposed of on or off of the Property, as required by
Environmental Laws, and to allow Lender and its representatives to examine and copy all such
books and records.

g. If Grantor or any other person on behalf of or at the direction of Grantor
undertakes any investigation or corrective action with respect to the Property including, without
limitation, any response, removal, or other remedial action pursuant to any requirement of any
Environmental Laws, Grantor shall obtain and deliver to Lender a written report, in form and
substance reasonably acceptable to Lender, from a consultant acceptable to Lender and Grantor,
certifying that all required action has been properly taken and that, upon completion of said
action, the Property is in compliance with all Environmental Laws.

D. Environmental Indemnification. Grantor hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold

harmless Lender and each of its officers, directors, employees, agents, consultants, attorneys, invitees,
contractors and their respective successors and assigns (individually, an “Indemnified Party”, and
collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) for, from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages,
fines, penalties, costs and expenses of every kind and character, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
court costs, incurred and expended by an Indemnified Party, and occasioned by or associated with any
claims, demands, causes of action, suits and/or enforcement actions including, without limitation, any
administrative or judicial proceedings and any remedial, removal or response actions ever asserted,
threatened, instituted or requested by any person whatsoever arising out of or related to: (i) the breach of
any representation, warranty or covenant of Grantor set forth in this Section; or (ii) the failure of Grantor
or any tenant, lessee, licensee or occupant of the Property or any employee, agent, consultant or
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contractor that provides services to or at the Property to perform any material covenant or obligation
hereunder; or (iii) the ownership, construction, occupancy, operation or use of the Property; unless
caused by the bad faith or gross negligence of the Indemnified Party. The foregoing representations,
warranties, covenants and agreements of this Section shall be continuing covenants, representations and
warranties for the benefit of the Indemnified Parties including, but not limited to, any purchaser at a
foreclosure sale or trustee’s sale under this Mortgage, or any transferee of the interest of Lender. The
provisions of this Section shall be in addition to and not in limitation of the provisions of the remainder
of this Mortgage or the other Loan Documents, and any other obligations and liabilities which Grantor
may have to Lender under applicable statutes or at common law and shall survive the satisfaction or
release of this Mortgage, any foreclosure of this Mortgage, any acquisition of title to the Property by
Lender or any party claiming by, through or under Lender by deed in lieu of foreclosure or otherwise, the
term of the Mortgage and the Loan Documents, and the payment of the Note in full, and shall continue
thereafter in full force and effect.

10. Due on Sale. Lender may, at Lender’s option, declare immediately due and payable all sums
secured by this Mortgage upon the sale, assignment or transfer, without Lender’s prior written consent
(which may not be withheld, conditioned or delayed in Lender’s reasonable discretion), of all or any part
of the Real Property, or any interest in the Real Property. A “sale, assignment or transfer” means the
conveyance of the Real Property or any right, title or interest in the Real Property; whether legal,
beneficial or equitable; whether voluntary or involuntary; whether by outright sale, deed, installment sale
contract, land contract, contract for deed, or by sale, assignment, or transfer of any beneficial interest in
or to any land trust holding title to the Real Property, or by any other method of conveyance of an interest
in the Real Property. If any Grantor is a corporation, partnership or limited liability company, transfer
also includes any change in ownership of more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting stock, partnership
interests or limited liability company interests, as the case may be, of such Grantor. However, this option
shall not be exercised by Lender if such exercise is prohibited by federal law or by applicable state law.

11. Collateral Inspection/Appraisal - Cost Reimbursement. Upon such frequency as Lender may
determine and whether or not Grantor is in default, Lender shall be entitled to perform and Grantor shall
cooperate with examinations, inspections, audits and appraisals as provided herein. Grantor shall
maintain complete and accurate books and records with respect to the Property. Upon advance notice by
Lender to Grantor, Grantor shall permit access thereto by Lender and by Lender’s designated
representatives and agents for purposes of inspection, copying and/or auditing. Lender and Lender's
designated representatives and agents shall also have the right upon advance notice to examine, inspect
and/or appraise any of the Property. Subject to any limitations under applicable law, Grantor shall
reimburse Lender for any professional fees or other expenses incurred by Lender in connection with any
examinations, inspections or audits of the books and records of Grantor and/or any examinations,
inspections and/or appraisals of the Property.

12. Taxes and Liens.

A. Grantor shall pay, prior to delinquency, all taxes, ad valorem and non ad valorem real
property taxes, payroll taxes, sales and use taxes, personal property taxes, special taxes, assessments,
water charges, sewer service charges levied against or on account of the Mortgaged Property or this
Mortgage (collectively, “Taxes”), and shall pay when due all claims for work done on or for services
rendered or material furnished to the Mortgaged Property. Grantor shall maintain the Mortgaged
Property free of any liens having priority over or equal to the interest of Lender under this Mortgage,
except for those liens specifically agreed to in writing by Lender.




B. Grantor shall upon demand furnish to Lender satisfactory evidence of payment of the
Taxes and shall authorize the appropriate governmental official to deliver to Lender at any time a written
statement of the Taxes against the Property.

C. Grantor may withhold payment of any Tax or claim in connection with a good faith
dispute over the obligation to pay, so long as Lender’s interest in the Property is not jeopardized. If a
lien arises or is filed as a result of nonpayment, Grantor shall within ninety (90) days after the lien arises
or, if a lien is filed, within ninety (90) days after Grantor has notice of the filing, secure the discharge of
the lien, or if requested by Lender, deposit with Lender cash or a sufficient corporate surety bond or
other security satisfactory to Lender in an amount sufficient to discharge the lien plus any costs and
attorneys’ fees, or other charges that could accrue as a result of a foreclosure or sale under the lien. In
any contest, Grantor shall, at Grantor’s sole cost and expense, defend itself and Lender and shall satisfy
any adverse judgment before enforcement against the Property. Grantor shall name Lender as an
additional obligee under any surety bond furnished in the contest proceedings.

D. Grantor shall notify Lender at least fifteen (15) days before any work (other than minor
alterations for which Lender’s consent is not required herein) is commenced, any services are furnished,
or any materials are supplied to the Property, if any construction or mechanic’s lien, materialmen’s lien,
or other lien could be asserted on account of the work, services, or materials. Grantor will upon request
of Lender deposit with Lender such amounts as deemed necessary by Lender to sufficiently complete the
work in a good and workmanlike and lien free manner, which amounts will be disbursed by Lender in
accordance with an escrow agreement or disbursing agreement to be entered into by Lender and Grantor
prior to the commencement of such work.

13. Real Estate Tax Escrow. Upon the request of Lender and at such times as an Event of Default has
occurred and is continuing, Grantor will without further demand, deposit monthly with Lender, a sum
equal to all Taxes next due on the Property (all as estimated by the Lender), divided by the number of
months to elapse before one month prior to the date when such Taxes will become delinquent. Such
deposits and escrow or reserve accounts: (i) shall not accrue interest; and (ii) shall be used, subject to the
provisions of this Section, for the payment of Taxes on the Property next due and payable when they
become due. Payments shall be made in the fiscal year designated by Grantor, provided sufficient funds
are available and such Taxes are not delinquent. If the sums so deposited are insufficient to pay any such
amounts for any period when the same shall become due and payable, the Grantor shall on demand
deposit such additional funds as may be necessary to pay such amounts in full. If the sums so deposited
exceed the amount required to pay such amounts for any year, the excess shall be credited to a
subsequent deposit or deposits required hereunder.

14. Property Damage and Insurance.

A. Grantor shall purchase, at its own expense, and keep in force at all times during the
Loan, an “all-risk” commercial property insurance covering the improvements constructed, installed or
located on the Property (but excluding any tenant property), in form and substance acceptable to Lender,
in an amount equal to 100% of the then “full replacement cost” of the Property.

B. Grantor shall purchase, at its own expense, and keep in force at all times during the
Loan, commercial general liability insurance for the property in form and substance, and in such
amount(s), acceptable to Lender.

C. Grantor shall purchase, at its own expense, and keep in force at all times during the
Loan, any other form of insurance reasonably required by Lender.
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D. Unless Grantor provides Lender with evidence of the insurance coverage required
hereunder at least twenty (20) days before the expiration of any existing policy or policies, with evidence
of premium paid, Lender may purchase insurance at Grantor’s expense to protect Lender’s interests in
the collateral. The insurance may, but need not, protect Grantor’s interests. The coverage that Lender
purchases may not pay any claim that Grantor makes or any claim that is made against Grantor in
connection with the collateral. Grantor may later cancel any insurance purchased by Lender, but only
after providing Lender with evidence that Grantor has obtained insurance as required by their agreement.
If Lender purchases insurance for the collateral, Grantor shall be responsible for the costs of that
insurance, including interest and any other charges Lender may impose in connection with the placement
of the insurance, until the effective date of the cancellation or expiration of the insurance. The costs of
the insurance may be added to Grantor’s total outstanding balance or obligation. The costs of the
insurance purchased by Lender may be more than the cost of the insurance Grantor may be able to obtain
on Grantor’s own.

15. Application of Proceeds. Grantor shall promptly notify Lender of any loss or damage to the
Property. Lender may make proof of loss if Grantor fails to do so within ten (10) business days of the
casualty. Whether or not Lender’s security is impaired, Lender may, at Lender’s election, receive and
retain the proceeds of any insurance and apply the proceeds to the reduction of the Indebtedness,
payment of any lien affecting the Property, or the restoration and repair of the Property. If Lender elects
to apply the proceeds to restoration and repair, Grantor shall repair or replace the damaged or destroyed
Improvements in a manner satisfactory to Lender. Lender shall, upon satisfactory proof of such
expenditure, pay or reimburse Grantor from the proceeds for the reasonable cost of repair or restoration if
Grantor is not in default under this Mortgage. Any proceeds which have not been disbursed within 180
days after their receipt and which Lender has not committed to the repair or restoration of the Property
shall be used first to pay any amount owing to Lender under this Mortgage, then to pay accrued interest,
and the remainder, if any, shall be applied to the principal balance of the Indebtedness. If Lender holds
any proceeds after payment in full of the Indebtedness, such proceeds shall be paid to Grantor as
Grantor’s interests may appear.

16. Lender’s Performance and Expenditures. If any action or proceeding is commenced that would
materially affect Lender’s interest in the Property or if Grantor fails to comply with any provision of this
Mortgage or any Loan Documents, after the expiration of any applicable grace or cure period including,
but not limited to, Grantor’s failure to discharge or pay when due any amounts Grantor is required to
discharge or pay under this Mortgage or any Loan Documents, Lender on Grantor’s behalf may (but shall
not be obligated to) take any action that Lender deems appropriate, including but not limited to
discharging or paying all Taxes, liens, security interests, encumbrances and other claims, at any time
levied or placed on the Property and paying all costs for insuring, maintaining and preserving the
Property and complying with all governmental requirements (including, without limitation, any claims,
costs or obligations arising under Environmental Laws). All such expenses will become a part of the
Indebtedness and, at Lender’s option, will: (i) be payable on demand; (ii) be added to the balance of the
Note; and (iii) be apportioned among and be payable with any installment payments to become due
during either: (1) the term of any applicable insurance policy; or (2) the remaining term of the Note; or
(3) be treated as a balloon payment which will be due and payable at the Note’s maturity. The Mortgage
also will secure payments of these amounts. Such right shall be in addition to all other rights and
remedies to which Lender may be entitled upon Default.

17. Title to the Property. Grantor covenants, represents and warrants that: (i) Grantor holds good
and marketable title of record to the Real Property in fee simple, free and clear of all liens and
encumbrances other than the Permitted Encumbrances or those in any title insurance policy, title report,
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or final title opinion issued in favor of, and accepted by, Lender in connection with this Mortgage, and
(i1) Grantor has the full right, power, and authority, acting alone, to execute and deliver this Mortgage to
Lender. Subject to the exception in the paragraph above, Grantor warrants and will forever defend the
title to the Property against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by, through or under Grantor. In the
event any action or proceeding is commenced that questions Grantor’s title or the interest of Lender
under this Mortgage, Grantor shall defend the action at Grantor’s expense. Grantor may be the nominal
party in such proceeding, but Lender shall be entitled to participate in the proceeding and to be
represented in the proceeding by counsel of Lender’s own choice, and Grantor will deliver, or cause to be
delivered, to Lender such instruments as Lender may request from time to time to permit such
participation.

18. Compliance with Laws. Grantor represents that, to Grantor's knowledge, the Property and
Grantor’s use of the Property complies in all material respects with all existing applicable laws,
ordinances, and regulations of governmental authorities.

19. Survival of Representations and Warranties. All representations, warranties, and agreements
made by Grantor in this Mortgage shall survive the execution and delivery of this Mortgage, shall be
continuing in nature, and shall remain in full force and effect until such time as Grantor’s Indebtedness
shall be paid in full.

20. Condemnation. If any proceeding in condemnation is commenced, Grantor shall promptly notify
Lender in writing, and Grantor shall promptly take such steps as may be necessary to defend the action
and obtain the award. Grantor may be nominal party in such proceeding, but Lender shall be entitled to
participate in the proceeding and to be represented in the proceeding by counsel of its own choice, and
Grantor will deliver or cause to be delivered to Lender such instruments and documentation as may be
required by Lender from time to time to permit such participation. If all or any part of the Property is
condemned by eminent domain proceedings or by any proceeding or purchase in lieu of condemnation or
if all or any part of the Property is sold in lieu of condemnation, Lender may at its election require that all
or any portion of the net proceeds of the award or sale be applied to the Indebtedness or the repair or
restoration of the Property. The net proceeds of the award or sale shall mean the award or sale after
payment of all reasonable costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees incurred by Lender in connection with the
condemnation or sale in lieu of condemnation.

21. Condemnation Award and Rebuilding. If all or any portion of the net proceeds of the award or
sale shall be applied to the repair or restoration of the Property, and if the net proceeds of the award or
sale are insufficient to cover the cost of rebuilding or restoration, Grantor shall pay such cost in excess of
the net proceeds of the award before being entitled to any reimbursement out of such net proceeds. Any
surplus which may remain out of such net proceeds after payment of such cost of rebuilding or
restoration shall, at the option of Lender, be applied on account of the Indebtedness or be paid to any
other party entitled thercto. In any event, so long as any portion of the Indebtedness remains unpaid,
Grantor shall commence rebuilding or restoration of any remaining portion of the Property promptly after
the taking and shall diligently pursue the same to completion.

22. Disbursement of Insurance or Condemnation Proceeds. In addition to the provisions set forth
herein, the following provisions shall control the disbursement of insurance and condemnation proceeds:

a. Before commencing to repair, restore or rebuild following a condemnation action or deed
in lieu thereof or damage to, or destruction of, all or a portion of the Property, whether by fire or other
casualty or condemnation, Grantor shall obtain from Lender its reasonable approval of all site and
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building plans and specifications pertaining to such repair, restoration or rebuilding, which such approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

b. Prior to each payment or application of any insurance or condemnation proceeds to the
repair or restoration of the Improvements upon the Property to the extent permitted herein above (which
payment or application may be made, at Lender’s option, through an escrow with a title insurance
company, the terms and conditions of which are satisfactory to Lender and the cost of which is to be
borne by Grantor), Lender shall be entitled to be satisfied as to the following:

1. Either: (1) such Improvements have been fully restored; or (2) the expenditure of
money as may be received from such insurance proceeds or condemnation award will be
sufficient to repair, restore or rebuild the Property, free and clear of all liens, claims and
encumbrances, except the lien of this Mortgage and the Permitted Encumbrances under this
Mortgage, or, in the event such insurance proceeds or condemnation award shall be insufficient
to repair, restore and rebuild the Property, Grantor has deposited with Lender such amount of
money which, together with the insurance proceeds or condemnation award, shall be sufficient to
restore, repair and rebuild the Property; and

il. Prior to each disbursement of any such proceeds held by Lender in accordance
with the terms of this Section for the cost of any repair, restoration or rebuilding, Lender shall be
furnished with a statement from Grantor’s general contractor (the cost of which shall be borne by
Grantor), certifying the extent of the repair and restoration completed to the date thereof, and that
such repairs, restoration, and rebuilding have been performed to date in conformity with the
plans and specifications approved by Lender and all statutes, regulations or ordinances (including
building and zoning ordinances) affecting the Property and all private restrictions binding on the
Property; and Lender shall be furnished with appropriate evidence of payment for labor or
materials furnished to the Property, and total or partial lien waivers substantiating such
payments.

C. Prior to the payment or application of insurance proceeds to the repair, restoration or
rebuilding of the Improvements upon the Property to the extent permitted herein above, there shall have
been delivered to Lender the following: (i) a waiver of subrogation from any insurer with respect to
Grantor or the then owner or other insured under the policy of insurance in question; and (ii) Such plans
and specifications and such insurance, in such amounts, issued by such company or companies and in
such forms and substance, as are reasonably required by Lender.

d. In the event Grantor shall fail to restore, repair or rebuild the Improvements upon the
Property within a time reasonably satisfactory by Lender, then Lender, at its option, may commence and
perform all necessary acts to restore, repair or rebuild the said Improvements for or on behalf of Grantor.

e. In the event Grantor commences the repair or rebuilding of the Improvements located on
the Property, but fails to comply with the conditions precedent to the payment or application of proceeds
set forth herein, or Grantor shall fail to restore, repair or rebuild the Improvements upon the Property
after receipt of insurance proceeds from Lender within a time reasonably deemed satisfactory by Lender,
then such failure of Grantor shall constitute an Event of Default.

f. Grantor agrees to pay all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by Lender pursuant to
the provisions of this Section, including, but not limited to legal fees and title insurance costs.
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g. The maturity date of the Note shall not be deemed to be extended as the result of the
application of the insurance or condemnation proceeds.

23. Imposition of Taxes, Fees and Charges by Governmental Authorities. Upon request by Lender,
Grantor shall execute such documents in addition to this Mortgage and take whatever other action is
reasonably requested by Lender to perfect and continue Lender’s lien on the Real Property or any other
Property. Grantor shall reimburse Lender for all taxes, as described below, together with all expenses
incurred in recording, perfecting or continuing this Mortgage, including without limitation all taxes, fees,
documentary stamps, and other charges for recording or registering this Mortgage.

The following shall constitute taxes to which this Section applies: (i) a specific tax upon this type of
Mortgage or upon all or any part of the Indebtedness secured by this Mortgage; (ii) a specific tax on
Grantor which Grantor is authorized or required to deduct from payments on the Indebtedness secured by
this type of Mortgage; (iii) a tax on this type of Mortgage chargeable against the Lender or the holder of
the Note; and (iv) a specific tax on all or any portion of the Indebtedness or on payments of principal and
interest made by Grantor.

24. Effect of New Taxation or Changes in Law. If, by the laws of the United States of America, or
of any State having jurisdiction over Grantor or the Property, any Tax or governmental charge of any
character whatever is due or becomes due on account of this Mortgage or the Indebtedness secured
hereby, except for income or franchise taxes of Lender, Grantor covenants and agrees to pay any such
Tax or governmental charge of any character whatever in the manner required by any such law when the
same shall become due. Grantor further covenants to hold harmless and agrees to indemnify the Lender,
its successors or assigns, against any liability incurred by reason of the imposition of any such Tax or
government charge on account of this Mortgage or the Indebtedness secured hereby. In the event of the
enactment after this date of any law of the State in which the Property is located deducting from the value
of land for the purpose of taxation any lien thereon, or imposing upon the Lender the payment of the
whole or any part of the Taxes, charges or liens herein required to be paid by Grantor, or changing in any
way the laws relating to the taxation of mortgages or debts secured by mortgages or the Lender’s interest
in the Property, or the manner of collecting Taxes, so as to affect this Mortgage or the debt secured
hereby or the holder thereof, then, and in any such event, the Grantor, upon demand by the Lender, shall
pay such Taxes, charges or liens or reimburse the Lender therefore; provided, however, that if in the
opinion of counsel for the Lender: (i) it might be unlawful to require Grantor to make such payment; or
(i1) the making of such payment might result in the imposition of interest beyond the maximum amount
permitted by law, then the Lender may elect, by notice in writing given to the Grantor, to declare all of
the Indebtedness secured hereby to be and become due and payable sixty (60) days from the giving of
such notice.

25. Further Assurances. At any time, and from time to time, upon request of Lender, Grantor will
make, execute and deliver, or will cause to be made, executed or delivered, to Lender or to Lender’s
designee, and when requested by Lender, cause to be filed, recorded, refiled, or rerecorded, as the case
may be, at such times and in such offices and places as Lender may deem appropriate, any and all such
mortgages, deeds of trust, security deeds, security agreements, financing statements, continuation
statements, instruments of further assurances, certificates, and other documents as may, in the reasonable
opinion of Lender, be necessary or desirable in order to effectuate, complete, perfect, continue, or
preserve: (i) Grantor’s obligations under the Note, this Mortgage, and the Loan Documents (as amended);
and (ii) the liens and security interests created by this Mortgage, and the priority thereof against other
liens or encumbrances (pursuant to the terms of this Mortgage), whether now owned or hereafter
acquired by Grantor. Unless prohibited by law or Lender agrees to the contrary in writing, Grantor shall

14



reimburse Lender for all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the matters referred to in this
paragraph.

If Grantor fails to do any of the things referred to in the preceding paragraph, Lender may do so for and
in the name of Grantor and at Grantor’s expense. For such purposes, Grantor hereby irrevocably
appoints Lender as Grantor’s attorney-in-fact for the purposes of making, executing, delivering, filing,
recording, and doing all other things as may be necessary or desirable, in Lender’s sole opinion, to
accomplish the matters referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Mortgage to the contrary, Lender shall have the right to amend this
Mortgage without further consent of the Grantor or any other person in order to conform this Mortgage to
any modifications made to the terms of the Indebtedness secured hereby, including, without limitation,
any modification of the maturity date of any such Indebtedness.

26. Full Performance. If Grantor pays all the Indebtedness, including without limitation all future
advances, when due, and otherwise performs all the obligations imposed upon Grantor under this
Mortgage, Lender shall execute and deliver to Grantor a suitable satisfaction of this Mortgage.

27. Event of Default. For purposes of this Mortgage, the term “Event of Default” shall mean any of
the following: (a) the occurrence of any Event of Default under the Note; (b) any event of default under
the SBA Obligations, beyond any applicable cure period therein; (c) any breach of the Grantor’s
representations or warranties set forth in this Mortgage; or (d) any breach of the obligations or covenants
applicable to Grantor as set forth in this Mortgage, provided the breach of such obligations or covenants
is not cured by Grantor within thirty (30) days of written notice from Lender to Grantor of such breach.

28. Rights and Remedies Upon Default. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an
Event of Default and at any time thereafter, Lender, at Lender’s option, may exercise any one or more of
the following rights and remedies, in addition to any other rights or remedies provided by law:

a. Accelerate Indebtedness. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the whole
Indebtedness secured hereby shall, at the option of the Lender, and without notice, become immediately
due and payable with reasonable attorneys’ fees, and thereupon, or at any time during the existence of
any such default, Lender may proceed to foreclose this Mortgage as provided by law, anything
hereinbefore or in the Note contained to the contrary notwithstanding and/or exercise any other right or
remedy available to it under this Mortgage or the Note or any other document securing or evidencing the
Indebtedness secured hereby.

b. Appoint Receiver. Lender shall have the right to have a receiver appointed to take
possession of all or any part of the Property. To the extent permitted by applicable law or a court of
competent jurisdiction, such appointment may be made either before or after foreclosure sale, without
notice, without regard to the solvency or insolvency of the Grantor at the time of application for such
receiver, without the requirement of posting of any bond or security and without regard to the then value
of the Property or whether the same shall be then occupied as a homestead or not. Lender hereunder or
any holder of the Note may be appointed as such receiver. Such receiver shall have all powers which
may be necessary or are usual in such cases for the protection, possession, control, management and
operation of the Property during the whole of said period. The court from time to time may authorize the
receiver to apply the net income in his or her hands in payment in whole or in part of: (1) the
Indebtedness secured hereby, or by any decree foreclosing this Mortgage, or any Tax or other lien which
may be or become superior to the lien hereof or of such decree, provided such application is made prior
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to foreclosure sale; and (2) after any such foreclosure sale, to the balance due of any amounts secured
hereby or by such decree after application of any proceeds obtained by such foreclosure sale.

c. Judicial Foreclosure. Lender may obtain a judicial decree foreclosing Grantor’s interest
in all or any part of the Property.

d. Non-judicial Sale. If permitted by applicable law, Lender may foreclose Grantor’s
interest in all or in any part of the Personal Property or the Real Property by non-judicial sale.

e. Deficiency Judgment. If permitted by applicable law, Lender may obtain a judgment for
any deficiency remaining in the Indebtedness due to Lender after application of all amounts received
from the exercise of the rights provided in this Section.

f. Additional Remedies. Grantor agrees that, to the extent permitted by law, this Mortgage
may be foreclosed by Lender, at Lender’s option, pursuant to the provisions of , as
applicable, as the same may be renumbered from time to time, or any successor provision thereof.

g. Tenancy at Sufferance. If Grantor remains in possession of the Property after the
Property is sold as provided above or Lender otherwise becomes entitle to possession of the Property
upon default of Grantor, Grantor shall become a tenant at sufferance of Lender or the purchaser of the
Property and shall, at Lender’s option, either: (i) pay a reasonable rental for the use of the Property; or
(i1) vacate the Property immediately upon the demand of Lender.

h. Other Remedies. Lender shall have all other rights and remedies provided in this
Mortgage or the Note or available at law or in equity.

1. Sale of the Property. To the extent permitted by applicable law, Grantor hereby waives
any and all right to have the Property marshaled. In exercising its rights and remedies, Lender shall be
free to sell all or any part of the Property together or separately, in one sale or by separate sales, and to
execute and deliver to the purchasers of the Property deeds of conveyance pursuant to law. Lender shall
be entitled to bid at any public sale on all of any portion of the Property.

J. Notice of Sale. Lender shall give Grantor reasonable notice of the time and place of any
public sale of the Personal Property or of the time after which any private sale or other intended
disposition of the Personal Property is to be made. Reasonable notice shall mean notice given at least ten
(10) days before the time of the sale or disposition. Any sale of the Personal Property may be made in
conjunction with any sale of the Real Property.

k. Election of Remedies. Election by Lender to pursue any remedy shall not exclude
pursuit of any other remedy, and an election to make expenditures or to take action to perform an
obligation of Grantor under this Mortgage, after Grantor’s failure to perform, shall not affect Lender’s
right to declare a default and exercise its remedies. Nothing under this Mortgage or otherwise shall be
construed so as to limit or restrict the rights and remedies available to Lender following an Event of
Default or in any way to limit or restrict the rights and ability of Lender to proceed directly against
Grantor and/or against any other co-maker, guarantor, surety or endorser and/or to proceed against any
other collateral directly or indirectly securing the Indebtedness.
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20. Maintenance of Property during Foreclosure. Upon and after the occurrence of an Event of
Default, Grantor hereby authorizes and empowers Lender, its successors and assigns: (i) to pay all Taxes
that may have been or that thereafter during the period of redemption from the sale under such
foreclosure may be levied or assessed upon any portion of the Property; (ii) to keep the Improvements
then existing upon the Property insured and to pay the premiums therefore as required hereunder during
the period of redemption (if any) from the sale under such foreclosure; (iii) to keep the Property in
thorough repair as required hereunder during the period of redemption, if any, of the sale from such
foreclosure; and (iv) to enter the Property and allow its representatives to enter the Property and perform
an environmental and/or property condition assessment (including inspections and sampling) to assess
the condition of the Property and at Lender’s sole option, correct any conditions that Lender, in the
exercise of its reasonable discretion deems necessary to comply with Environmental Laws and to keep
the Property in thorough repair.

30. Hold Harmless. Grantor shall save the Lender harmless from and indemnify Lender against all
loss, liability, damages, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by reason of
any action, suit, proceeding, hearing, motion or application before any Court or administrative body in
and to which Lender may be or become a party by reason hereof, including but not limited to
condemnation, bankruptcy, probate and administrative proceedings, as well as any other of the foregoing
wherein proof of claim is by law required to be filed or in which it becomes necessary to defend or
uphold the terms of and the lien created by this Mortgage, unless caused by the gross negligence,
malicious act or omission of Lender, and all money paid or expended by Lender in that regard, together
with interest thereon from date of such payment at the rate set forth in the Note shall be so much
additional Indebtedness secured hereby and shall be immediately and without notice due and payable to
Lender.

31. No Merger. There shall be no merger of the interest or estate created by this Mortgage with any
other interest or estate in the Property at any time held by or for the benefit of Lender in any capacity,
without the written consent of Lender.

32. Attorney’s Fees: Expenses/Lender’s Expenditures. Borrower agrees to pay upon demand all of
Lender's costs and expenses, including without limitation, Lender's attorneys' fees and Lender's legal
expenses, incurred in connection with the enforcement of this Mortgage. Lender may hire or pay
someone else to help enforce this Mortgage, and Borrower shall pay the costs and expenses of such
enforcement. Costs and expenses include Lender's attorneys' fees and legal expenses whether or not there
is a lawsuit, including attorneys' fees and legal expenses for bankruptcy proceedings (including efforts to
modify or vacate any automatic stay or injunction), appeals, and any anticipated post judgment collection
services. Borrower shall also pay all court costs and such additional fees as maybe directed by the court.

If any action or proceeding is commenced that would materially affect Lender’s interest in the Property or if
Borrower fails to comply with any provision of this Mortgage or any related documents, including without
limitation, Borrower's failure to discharge or pay when due any amounts Borrower is required to discharge
or pay under this Mortgage or any related documents, Lender on Borrower’s behalf may (but shall not be
obligated to) take any action that Lender deems appropriate, including without limitation, discharging or
paying all taxes, liens, security interests, encumbrances, and any other claims, at the time levied or placed
on any Property and paying all costs for insuring; maintaining and preserving any Property. All such
expenditures incurred or paid by Lender for such purposes will then bear interest at the rate being charged
under the Note from the date incurred or paid by Lender to the date such expenditure is repaid to Lender.
All such expenses will become a part of the Indebtedness and, at Lender's option, shall be (i) payable upon
demand; (ii) added to the principal balance of the Indebtedness and be apportioned among and be payable
with any installment payments to become due during either (1) the term of any applicable insurance policy;
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or (2) the remaining term of the Note; or (c) treated as a balloon payment which will be due and payable at
the Note’s maturity.

33. Governing Law. This Mortgage will be governed by federal law applicable to Lender and, to the
extent not preempted by federal law, the laws of the State of Minnesota without regard to its conflicts of
law provisions.

34. Waiver of Jury Trial. LENDER AND GRANTOR HEREBY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO ANY
JURY TRIAL IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM BROUGHT BY EITHER
LENDER OR GRANTOR AGAINST THE OTHER.

35. Successors and Assigns. Subject to any limitations stated in this Mortgage on transfer of
Grantor’s interest, this Mortgage shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties, their
successors and assigns. If ownership of the Property becomes vested in a person other than Grantor,
Lender, without notice to Grantor, may deal with Grantor’s successors with reference to this Mortgage
and the Indebtedness by way of forbearance or extension without releasing Grantor from the obligations
of this Mortgage or liability under the Indebtedness. All the covenants set forth herein shall run with the
land.

36. Waivers. Lender shall not be deemed to have waived any rights under this Mortgage unless such
waiver is given in writing and signed by Lender. No delay or omission on the part of Lender in
exercising any right shall operate as a waiver of such right or any other right. A waiver by Lender of a
provision of this Mortgage shall not prejudice or constitute a waiver of Lender’s right otherwise to
demand strict compliance with that provision or any other provision of this Mortgage. No prior waiver
by Lender, nor any course of dealing between Lender and Grantor, shall constitute a waiver of any of
Lender's rights or of any of Grantor’s obligations as to any future transactions. Whenever the consent of
Lender is required under this Mortgage, the granting of such consent by Lender in any instance shall not
constitute continuing consent to subsequent instances where such consent is required and in all cases
such consent may be granted or withheld in the sole discretion of Lender.

37. Books and Records. Grantor will keep accurate books and records in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices consistently applied in which full, true and correct entries shall be
promptly made as to all operations on or relative to the Property, and will permit all such books or
records to be inspected by the Lender and/or its duly authorized representatives at all times during
reasonable business hours, upon prior written notice to Grantor and if, and as often as, reasonably
requested by the Lender, Grantor will make reports of operations in such form as the Lender prescribes,
setting out full data as to the net revenues of the Property.

38. Recovery of Additional Costs. If the imposition of or any change in any law, rule, regulation or
guideline, or the interpretation or application thereof by any court or administrative or governmental
authority (including any request or policy not having the force of law) shall impose, modify or make
applicable any taxes (except federal, state or local income taxes imposed on Lender) reserve
requirements, capital adequacy requirements or other obligations which would (i) increase the cost to
Lender for extending or maintaining the credit facilities to which this Mortgage relates, (ii) reduce the
amounts payable to Lender under this Mortgage or any related documents, or (iii) reduce the rate of
return on Lender's capital as a consequence of Lender's obligations with respect the credit facilities to
which this Mortgage relates, then Grantor agrees to pay Lender such additional amounts as will
compensate Lender therefore, within five (5) days after Lender written demand for such payment, which
demand shall be accompanied by an explanation of such imposition or charge and a calculation in
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reasonable detail of the additional amounts payable by Grantor, which explanation and calculations shall
be conclusive in the absence of manifest error.

39. Notices. All notices provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when
delivered personally, or upon confirmation of delivery by a nationally recognized courier service (e.g.,
FedEXx), or three days after deposited in the regular United States mail, registered or certified, postage
prepaid, return receipt requested; any of which deliveries shall be addressed to the appropriate party as
follows:

To Grantor:

To Lender:

Either party may change their respective delivery address at any time by written notice to the other.

40. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision of this Mortgage to be
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable as to any circumstance, that finding shall not make the offending
provision illegal, invalid or unenforceable as to any other circumstance. If feasible, the offending
provision shall be considered modified so that it becomes legal, valid and enforceable. If the offending
provision cannot be so modified, it shall be considered deleted from this Mortgage. Unless otherwise
required by law, the illegality, invalidity, or unenforceability of any provision of this Mortgage shall not
affect the legality, validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Mortgage.

41. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Mortgage, specifically
including but not limited to all of Grantor’s obligations to pay the Indebtedness and other monetary sums
hereunder and pursuant to the Note.

[Signature page follows]

19



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has executed this Mortgage as of the date and year first

above written.

GRANTOR:
By:
Name:
Title:
ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF )
) ss.
COUNTY )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the

, the

of a

corporation.

This instrument was drafted by:

Maslon LLP

3300 Wells Fargo Center
90 South Seventh Street
Minneapolis, MN 55402

day of , by
corporation, on behalf of the

(sign)

(printed name)

Notary Public, State of

My commission:
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EXHIBIT A
Real Property

The following real property located in
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PERSONAL GUARANTY

THiS PERSONAL GUARANTY (“Guaranty”) is executed effective as of by
(“Guarantor”), in favor of CASA ERANCHISINGDE CORAZON, EECINC., a

Minnesota Hmited-Hability-eempanycorporation (“Payee”).
RECITALS

A. On the date hereof, a [limited liability
company/corporation]| (“Borrower”), is issuing to Payee a Promissory Note in an original principal
amount of § (the “Note”).

B. Guarantor is the sole owner of Borrower and will receive direct and indirect benefits
from the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Note.

C. As a condition to Payee agreeing to loan to Borrower the principal amount of the Note in
exchange for the Note, Guarantor has agreed to enter into this Guaranty and to fully guarantee any and all
obligations of Borrower under the Note, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Guarantee. Subject to the terms herein, Guarantor hereby unconditionally and
irrevocably guarantees to Payee the due and punctual payment of any and all obligations of Borrower
under the Note (the “Guaranteed Obligations”), to be satisfied fully whenever the Guaranteed
Obligations become due, whether on demand, at maturity or by reason of acceleration.

2. Obligations Absolute. This is an absolute, unconditional and continuing guarantee of
payment of the Guaranteed Obligations and shall continue to be in force and be binding upon Guarantor,
and Payee’s rights hereunder shall not be exhausted, until the satisfaction in full of all Guaranteed
Obligations. This Guaranty may not be revoked. The obligations of Guarantor hereunder shall remain in
full force and effect without regard to, and shall not be affected or impaired by any act or thing (except
full payment and discharge of all Guaranteed Obligations) including any of the following, any of which
may occur or be taken without the consent of, or notice to, Guarantor: (a) express or implied amendment,
modification, renewal, addition, supplement, extension (including, without limitation, extensions beyond
the original term) or acceleration of or to the Note; (b) exercise or non-exercise by Borrower or Payee of
any right or privilege under the Note; or (c) the failure, omission or delay on the part of Payee in
exercising any rights under this Agreement or in taking any action to collect or enforce payment or
performance of the Guaranteed Obligations.

3. Waiver. Guarantor unconditionally waives any defense to the enforcement of this
Guaranty, including without limitation, all presentments, demands for performance, notices of
nonperformance, protests, notices of protest, notices of dishonor, and notices of acceptance of this
Guaranty.

4. Independent and Separate Obligations. Payee shall not be required first to resort for
payment of the Guaranteed Obligations to Borrower before enforcing this Guaranty.

5. Expenses. Guarantor agrees to pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable



attorneys’ fees, that may be incurred by Payee in any effort to collect or enforce the Guaranteed
Obligations.

6. Amendments. Neither this Guaranty nor any of its terms may be changed, waived,
discharged or terminated orally, but only by an instrument in writing signed by the party against which
enforcement of the change, waiver, discharge or termination is sought.

7. Successors; Assignment. All of the terms of this Guaranty shall be binding upon the
Guarantor and its successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of Payee and its successors and
assigns; provided, however, that the Guarantor shall not assign any of her rights or obligations hereunder
unless Payee consents in in writing to such assignment. Payee may assign its rights under this Guaranty
to any subsequent holder of the Note.

8. Severability. If any one or more of the provisions of this Guaranty should be determined
to be illegal or unenforceable, all other provisions shall remain effective.

9. Governing Law; Venue. This Guaranty shall be governed by and be construed pursuant
to the laws of the State of Minnesota without regard to its conflict-of-law principles. Except to the extent
otherwise required by law, this Guaranty shall be governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota without
regard to its conflicts-of-law principles. THE PARTIES HEREBY CONSENT TO THE EXCLUSIVE
JURISDICTION OF ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT SITUATED IN HENNEPIN COUNTY,
MINNESOTA AND WAIVES ANY OBJECTION BASED ON FORUM NON CONVENIENS WITH
REGARD TO ANY ACTIONS, CLAIMS, DISPUTES OR PROCEEDINGS RELATED TO THIS
GUARANTY, THE NOTE OR ANY TRANSACTIONS ARISING THEREFROM, OR
ENFORCEMENT AND/OR INTERPRETATION OF ANY OF THE FOREGOING.

11. Term. The obligations of Guarantor under this Guaranty shall continue in full force and
effect until the satisfaction in full of all of the Guaranteed Obligations.

12. Final Agreement. This Guaranty supersedes any prior negotiations, discussions or
communications between the Guarantor and Payee and constitutes the entire agreement between Payee
and the Guarantor with respect to the Guaranteed Obligations. This Guaranty may be executed in one or
more counterparts, all of which, taken together, shall constitute the same Guaranty.

Signature Page Follows.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Guarantor has executed this Guaranty as of the date first written
above.

GUARANTOR:

By:

Name: , Individually

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO BY PAYEE:

CASA ERANCHISINGDE CORAZON, EECINC.

4854-9095-3893-v3
4928-0453-8123, v. 1

Signature Page—

Personal Guaranty



State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode
Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is
filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State Effective Date

Illinois See separate FDD

South Dakota [Pending]

Minnesota September23,2024[Pending]
Wisconsin April 2630, 26242025

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws,
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing
plans.



RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other information in
plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If Casa Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar
days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection
with the proposed franchise sale.

If Casa Franchising, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading
statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be
reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and the appropriate state agency identified
on Exhibit B.

The franchisor is Casa Franchising, LLC, 6301 Wayzata Blvd, St. Louis Park, MN 55416. Its telephone number
is 612-790-9673.

The name, principal business address and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the franchise
is ;

)

ISSUANCE DATE: April 2630, 26242025

Casa Franchising, LLC authorizes the respective parties identified on Exhibit B to receive service of process for
us in the particular state.

I have received a Disclosure Document with an Issuance Date of April 2630, 20242025 that included the
following Exhibits:

EXHIBIT A: STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

ExHiBIT B: LIST OF STATE AGENCIES AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

ExHiBiT C: TABLE OF CONTENTS OF OPERATIONS BRAND STANDARDS MANUAL

ExHiBIT D: LIST OF OUTLETS/FORMER FRANCHISEES

EXHIBIT E:FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ExHiBIT F: FRANCHISE AGREEMENT;-GUARANTY-STATEMENT-OE-OWNERSHIP-AND-MANAGEMENT;

GENERAL-RELEASE-TRANSEER-EORM;EASE-RIDER-AND-STATE-SPECIFIC-ADDENDA AND
RELATED DOCUMENTS

ExHiBIT G: DEVELOPMENT A GREEMENT;-STATEMENT-OF-OWNERSHIP-AND-MANAGEMENT;
GUARANTYAND-STATE-SPECHIC-ADDENDA AND RELATED DOCUMENTS

ExHiBIT H: ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF FUNDS AUTHORIZATION

ExHiBIT I: FRANCHISEE QUESTIONNAIRE

EXHIBIT J: CAsA LoaN DOCUMENTS

Please indicate the date on which you received this Disclosure Document, and then sign and print your name
below, indicate the date you sign this receipt, and promptly return one completed copy of the Receipt to Casa
Franchising, LLC, at 6301 Wayzata Blvd, St. Louis Park, MN 55416. The second copy of the Receipt is for your
records.

Date Disclosure Document Received:

Prospective Franchisee's Signature

Date Receipt Signed:

Print Name

Address:

Casa de Corazon® 20242025



RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other information in
plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If Casa Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar
days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection
with the proposed franchise sale.

If Casa Franchising, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading
statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be
reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and the appropriate state agency identified
on Exhibit B.

The franchisor is Casa Franchising, LLC, 6301 Wayzata Blvd, St. Louis Park, MN 55416. Its telephone number
is 612-790-9673.

The name, principal business address and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the franchise
is ;

)

ISSUANCE DATE: April 2630, 20242025

Casa Franchising, LLC authorizes the respective parties identified on Exhibit B to receive service of process for
us in the particular state.

I have received a Disclosure Document with an Issuance Date of April 2630, 20242025 that included the
following Exhibits:

EXHIBIT A: STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

ExHiBIT B: LIST OF STATE AGENCIES AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

ExHiBiT C: TABLE OF CONTENTS OF OPERATIONS BRAND STANDARDS MANUAL

ExHiBIT D: LIST OF OUTLETS/FORMER FRANCHISEES

EXHIBIT E:FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ExHiBIT F: FRANCHISE AGREEMENT;-GUARANTY-STATEMENT-OE-OWNERSHIP-AND-MANAGEMENT;

GENERAL-RELEASE-TRANSEER-EORM;EASE-RIDER-AND-STATE-SPECIFIC-ADDENDA AND
RELATED DOCUMENTS

ExHiBIT G: DEVELOPMENT A GREEMENT;-STATEMENT-OF-OWNERSHIP-AND-MANAGEMENT;
GUARANTYAND-STATE-SPECHIC-ADDENDA AND RELATED DOCUMENTS

ExHiBIT H: ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF FUNDS AUTHORIZATION

ExHiBIT I: FRANCHISEE QUESTIONNAIRE

EXHIBIT J: CAsA LoaN DOCUMENTS

Please indicate the date on which you received this Disclosure Document, and then sign and print your name
below, indicate the date you sign this receipt, and promptly return one completed copy of the Receipt to Casa
Franchising, LLC, at 6301 Wayzata Blvd, St. Louis Park, MN 55416. The second copy of the Receipt is for your
records.

Date Disclosure Document Received:

Prospective Franchisee's Signature

Date Receipt Signed:

Print Name

Address:

Casa de Corazon® 20242025
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